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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®RE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Shenyang Public Utility
Holdings Company Limited, | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

In 2019, the global economic slowdown intensified, alongside with
a more complicated external environment and internal conditions
for China’s economic development. Coupled with significantly
more economic and non-economic difficulties and challenges,
the overall landscape was more challenging than last year. While
stabilising its development, the Company strengthened risk
management to make sufficient preparation amid the prevailing
economic uncertainties and to soundly implement the Group’s
strategic deployment, so as to grow the shareholders and stand
with them amid adversity.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the 2019 Financial Year, Chaozhou Jinshan completed the
procedures for acceptance of completion and transfer of 38.6-
mu slope stabilization works (2018 Corresponding Period: 300-mu
of construction land) and recorded a revenue of RMB21,893,000
(2018 Corresponding Period: RMB69,903,000).

The settlement work of Zhongfang Chaozhou Jin Nan Industrial
Park Project is expected to be completed in 2020. The Group will
maintain communication with Chaozhou Jinshan to actively push
ahead the progress of settlement of the project and the transfer
of the remaining construction land.

Following the capital reduction in Chung Hwa Finance for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group gradually
rationalised the credit business in Hong Kong and terminated the
money lending licence in Hong Kong in September 2018.

During the 2019 Financial Year, Chung Hwa Finance recognised
revenue of approximately RMB4,537,000 (2018 Corresponding
Period: RMB10,188,000).

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Group recorded revenue from
property leasing of RMB130,000 (2018 Corresponding period: nil).
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®RE

Business Analysis

Currently, the infrastructure construction business remains the
principal business of the Group. The Group endeavours to develop
and push ahead the project progress and has gradually completed
the procedures of acceptance and transfer and settlement in
relation to Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park Project.

Given Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s increasingly tightened
policies on credit business, to reduce funding and credit risks,
Chung Hwa Finance completed the capital reduction in 2017 and
terminated the money lending licence in Hong Kong in September
2018. During the 2019 Financial Year, Chung Hwa Finance has
recovered the majority of its customers’ loans.

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Group focused on the
development of property investment business, deployed in first-
tier cities and surrounding areas nationwide, and successively
acquired properties in Beijing, Guangzhou and Sanhe, which have
gradually generated rental income.

COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT

In 2019, the global economic landscape revealed a downward
trend. Although the overall national economy remained within
a reasonable range, from a quarterly perspective, economic
growth slowed down quarter over quarter with growing
downward pressure. The Group was also in transition. Various
departments and projects of the Group needed more adjustment
and coordination. Faced with various challenges, the Group will
uphold the spirit of perseverance and strive to generate stable
and attractive returns to the shareholders. During the year,
according to the overall development strategy, the Company
adjusted and pushed ahead the existing investment projects,
including the further acquisition of shares of Chaozhou Rural
Credit Cooperative (currently reorganised as Chaozhou Rural
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.) and the proposed acquisition of 78%
equity interest in San He Jin Jiao. According to the operating
conditions of each subsidiary and the strategic direction of the
Company, the Company sold 100% equity interest in Shenzhen
Zhonghe, 100% equity interest in Shenzhen Shen He and 66.67%
equity interest in SHHH Development. While streamlining the
Company’s business, the Company acquired 100% equity interest
in Beijing Yufeng Chengyou Technology Company Limited as well
as 95% equity interest in each of the eight subsidiaries held by
Beijing Wanzi Apartment Management Company Limited based
on market conditions and political factors. The Group will strictly
monitor various existing investment projects based on the overall
economic conditions and the comprehensive capabilities of the
Group, seeking stable growth and enhancing its capabilities.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE®RE

RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year, the Group engaged CT Consultants Limited
to review the procedures, systems and internal control of the
respective operations of the Group on rotation basis. The Group
will take appropriate actions pursuant to the Internal Control
Review Report to rectify the weak areas in internal control
and risk management, so as to further improve its internal
risk management and replicate them to all departments and
subsidiaries to improve the risk management awareness of each
employee.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking into 2020, the Group will actively cope with the severe
economic environment locally and abroad, stabilise existing
businesses and strictly monitor operational risks. At the same time,
it will actively explore projects with higher development prospects
and optimise resource allocation to enhance the Group’s overall
capabilities.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude
to all the shareholders, business partners and all employees for
their support. With their support and encouragement, | believe we
will grow and move toward to success together!

Zhang Jing Ming
Chairman

29 May 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group for the 2019 Financial Year amounted
to RMB26,560,000 (2018 Corresponding Period: RMB80,091,000),
representing a significant decrease of approximately 66.84%
as compared with the 2018 Corresponding Period. The
substantial decrease in revenue is mainly due to decrease in
the revenue generated from the construction of infrastructure
and development of properties in the PRC as well as the credit
business for the 2019 Financial Year.

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Group has completed
the acceptance and transfer procedures of 38.63-mu slope
stabilization works of the Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial
Park Project and recorded the revenue for 2019 Financial Year of
RMB21,893,000 (2018 Corresponding Period: RMB69,903,000).
Zhongfang Chaozhou has completed the procedures for
acceptance of completion and transfer of accumulated 4,000-
mu construction land and 38.63-mu slope stabilization works.
Credit business contributed the revenue for the 2019 Financial
Year amounted to RMB4,537,000 (2018 Corresponding Period:
RMB10,188,000). The revenue for credit business decreased by
55.47% as compared with that for the 2018 Corresponding
Period. Furthermore, the Group also recognised revenue of
RMB 130,000 from the property leasing business.

Loss before tax for the 2019 Financial Year amounted to
RMB93,284,000 comparing with loss of RMB137,282,000 for
2018 Corresponding Period.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group for the 2019 Financial
Year amounted to RMB1,156,000 representing a decrease of
approximately 35.02% as compared with RMB1,779,000, for the
2018 Corresponding Period. The decrease in income tax expenses
was mainly attributable to the combined tax effect on (i) expenses
not deductible for tax purpose; (ii) loss not recognised for tax
purpose; (iii) income not taxable for tax purpose; and (iv) income
generated decreased.

Loss per Share
Loss per share for the 2019 Financial Year was approximately

RMB6.06 cents comparing with the loss per share for the 2018
Corresponding Period of RMB9.47 cents.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDN

BUSINESS REVIEW
Infrastructure Construction Business

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Group has completed
the acceptance and transfer procedures of 38.63-mu slope
stabilization works (2018 Corresponding Period: 300-mu
construction land) of the Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial
Park Project and recorded the revenue of RMB21,893,000 (2018
Corresponding Period: RMB69,903,000). The transfer of the
remaining construction land of the Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan
Industrial Park Project will be completed in 2020.

The completion and acceptance procedures of Phase 1 of
Zhongfang Chaozhou Jin Nan Industrial Park Project were entirely
completed. The settlement work of the project is expected to
be finalised by 2020. The Group will maintain communication
with Chaozhou Jinshan to actively push ahead the progress
of settlement of the project and the transfer of the remaining
construction land.

Credit Business

Following the capital reduction in Chung Hwa Finance for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group gradually
rationalised the credit business in Hong Kong and terminated the
money lending licence in Hong Kong in September 2018. During
the 2019 Financial Year, Chung Hwa Finance recognised revenue
of approximately RMB4,537,000 (2018 Corresponding Period:
RMB10,188,000).

Property Investment Business

During the 2019 Financial Year, the Group focused on
development property investment business and successively
acquired properties in Guangzhou, Beijing and Sanhe cities. Some
properties have generated rental income and recorded the revenue
of RMB130,000 (2018 corresponding period: nil). The Group will
actively push ahead the acquisition of 78% equity interest in San
He Jing Jiao and continue to identify potential property investment
projects.

E £ ) ]
ERER R R

PR019F B FE - ANEBE 5 38.63EF
EEMNEE TEEBEEREZETR(2018F
EHR : 300EAEERR Bt ) IR FE - 8715
et AR#21,893,000C (2018 EH : AR
#69,903,0007T) R EFMNEE TEREIEE
TR A A 22§ 20204 8K ©

PEBNCEIXEEES —HETIHKF
BEE 2K - BEALEETEEHE2020F
BR - AEBEBRFEBMNE LER  BiE
HERBNEERFIBERAHRTEE -

ERR%

HE2017F12 A3 B I BRFETRAE
EERER AEEBRSREUEENEERE
7% WH2018FIAKRIEBBHIEMEANE
1% o R2019FHTFE - mEEERERWA
4B ANREEA,537,0007C (2018 R AR
#10,188,0007T) °

MRBREARE

R20195 G E - AEBEEEHRYER
BER WHEBREM R E=AEHT
EITEWE - XowEERBRIEHES WK
W 8% 13 Wz A R % 130,000 7T (2018 4 [A]
H ) o NEBKERHES) =0 mB78% /%
X ZWET  WHEBVECHBENMERE
HE

8 Annual Report 2019  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Affected by the epidemic in 2020, the global economic situation
is uncertain, the Group will adhere to the development objective
of making steady progress, continue to maintain its core
competitiveness. The Group will actively respond to the state’s
policy of increasing infrastructure investment and push ahead
the development of existing projects. The Company will maintain
the its core business, improve the Group's ability to resist risks,
and at the same time promote the operation of existing property
projects and open up new profit points. In addition, the Board
will continue to devote efforts to explore various investment
opportunities and enhance the Group’s market competitiveness.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total assets amounted
to RMB996,411,000 (2018: RMB1,186,992,000), representing
a decrease of 16.06%. Non-current assets and currents
assets as at 31 December 2019 were RMB451,327,000
(2018: RMB557,519,000) and RMB545,084,000 (2018:
RMB629,473,000) respectively. The assets were financed by
current liabilities of RMB188,634,000 (2018: RMB297,059,000)
and shareholders’ equity of RMB718,925,000 (2018:
RMB864,736,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no bank borrowings. The
Group’s current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was 2.89
times (2018: 2.12 times) and gearing ratio (total liabilities/total
assets) was 0.19 times (2018: 0.25 times).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATES

Pre-acquisition of property in Beijing PRC

On 15 November 2016, Beijing Shen Shang, being the subscriber
entered into the pre-acquisition agreement with Beijing Zhong
Tou, pursuant to which Beijing Zhong Tou agreed to sell and
Beijing Shen Shang agreed to acquire a property at a total
consideration of RMB152,800,000. The property is a commercial
premise with the construction area of 2,800 sq.m. (with the
right to use 5,000 sg.m. of car parks at the basement level two
of the Beijing International Zone Convention Centre* it R & &
BREREEE (the “Convention Centre”)), being part of Phase
3 of the ancillary facility project of the Convention Center to be
constructed in Beijing Shunyi District Tianzhu Airport Commercial
Zone* L mTEFEE KL= (the “Beijing Property”).
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15
November 2016 for details.

2019 EBLAARERAOERLT

RERE

2020F REIEHE - 2IEER T -
AEEBEERFBRIENEREEZ R
BROBRFN AEBBEGRERBERMNAZE
MERRENEE  BHHSHPEEEE %
B RRARBRIZFZLER  REAE@R
Efee ) FINHEREMEBREMNES
FRFTAEFIE - 1o EESHEERD
Wﬁ%THW&é% MRFAAREENTIS
mES e

nEHREAMBERIE

M20194F 12 A31H » AEBENEEHLE
A ANR#996,411,0007 (20184 « AR
1,186,992,0007T ) * B 2 16.06% ° 722019
F12A318  ERBEERRBEED
A ANER#A451,327,000L (20184 « AR
557,519,000 7t ) & A R ¥ 545,084,000 J©
(20184 : AR #629,473,0007T) « BEIN
A & AR % 188,634,000 7T (2018 4F -
AR #297,059,0007T) R R E & AR
718,925,0007T(2018%F : AR¥864,736,000
TS ©

MR2019F 124318 » AEEWEIRITER °
ZlKEE’]/\/\L@Jtt@(;/IL@%E/;}IL@JE{%)EJ
2.891%(2018%F : 2. 12fF) REBEARBLL R (4
BEAEE)B019ME (20184  0.25(F%) °

EXWREHEMERRELT

TR P E AR A 3%

72016F 11 A158 » b HEm (BDREH)
AL R R AT B R - Bt bR
REHERItEEREREYE  BRE
A AR 152,800,0007C » ¥ AFLEEME
2,800 F F KT HH#FERILRGRBEAKERE
(@B ) T8 — 85,000 5 KEES
ZERwmE Bt mmER R REEE
AEEGEENSEP OEEREEEB 380
—Ho([dkmBE]) - EEFBEHNAAA
BEA2016F11 A15SBHNASE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

On 26 March 2018, Beijing Shen Shang and Beijing Zhong Tou
entered into a supplemental agreement in relation to the pre-
acquisition agreement to postpone the date of the acceptance
and transfer of the Beijing Property to 31 December 2019. As at
the date of this report, the transaction is still in progress. The pre-
sale permit for the project has been obtained on 17 August 2018.

However, due to multiple factors including the 70th anniversary
of the National Day, important meetings and the haze days, the
construction was suspended at the request of the government,
resulting in postponement of completion. Coupling with the
impact of the epidemic in 2020, the progress of the subsequent
construction has been affected, resulting in the completion of
construction and delivery the Beijing Property has not yet been
completed.

On 20 May 2020, Beijing Shen Shang and Beijing Zhong Tou
entered into a supplemental agreement to further postpone
the date of the completion of construction and delivery of the
Beijing Property to 30 June 2021, and Beijing Shen Shang agreed
to exempt the penalty of Beijing Zhong Tou for the delay of
completion of constuction.

Adjustment to the transaction model of acquisition of
properties in Hebei Province

On 9 February 2018 (after trading hours), Beijing Shen Shang
and San He Jing Jiao entered into an agreement (the “Property
Acquisition Agreement”) pursuant to which San He Jing
Jiao has conditionally agreed to sell, and Beijing Shen Shang
has conditionally agreed to acquire, the properties at the cash
consideration of RMB110,000,000. The properties, comprise
11 shop units (including Shop No. 5-1-101, 5-1-102, 5-1-103,
5-1-104, 5-5-111, 5-5-112, 5-5-222, 5-5-223, 5-5-324,
5-5-425, 5-5-426) with a total gross floor area of approximately
3,168 sg.m. together with 60 car parking spaces (No. 001-005,
008-010, 012-024, 027-029, 032-034, 036-055, 059-071) on
basement level of Phase 5 of Tian Zi Zhuang Yuan (K5 E),
located at Yanjiao National High-Tech Industrial Development
Area, Sanhe City, Hebei Province. San He Jing Jiao and Beijing
Shen Shang shall have completed and performed all of their
respective obligations under the Property Acquisition Agreement
no later than 9 August 2018, or such later date as the parties
may agree in writing. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 9 February 2018 for details of the Property
Acquisition Agreement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

On 17 August 2018, Beijing Shen Shang entered into a
supplemental agreement with San He Jing Jiao to extend the long
stop date to 31 December 2018.

On 18 March 2019, San He Jing Jiao and Beijing Shen Shang
entered into the compensation agreement pursuant to which it is
agreed that San He Jing Jiao shall additionally deliver the rights to
use one car parking space as compensation for delay in processing
the real property ownership certificate. The application of real
property ownership certificate was completed in April 2019.

On 5 August 2019, San He Jing Jiao and Beijing Shen Shang
entered into the termination agreement with respect to the
Property Acquisition Agreement and compensation agreement to
proceed with.

On 28 October 2019, Shenzhen Shenhe and Shanghai Wanbang
Enterprise Group Company Limited* 8B ¥ EEAER
Aal, Shenzhen Wanbang Real Estate Company Limited* )&
NFFEFBEEAR AT and Shenzhen Zhaowanda Investment
Company Limited* FEYITIKEEREBRAF entered into
the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Shenzhen
Shenhe has conditionally agreed to purchase and the vendors
have conditionally agreed to sell the Sale Shares, representing
78% equity interest of San He Jing Jiao at the consideration of
RMB321,000,000. San He Jing Jiao is currently engaged in a
property development project, namely Tian Zi Zhuang Yuan. It
is a large scale residential development project developed on a
site formed by various parcels of land with a total land area of
approximately 300,243.3 square meter located at the northern
side of Jingha Road (FR* ) within Yanjiao National High-Tech
Industrial Development Area, Sanhe City. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 October 2019, 18
November 2019, 20 December 2019, 6 February 2020, 11 March
2020, 15 April 2020 and 15 May 2020 for details.

At the date of this report, the acquisition has not been completed.
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Acquisition of 100% equity interests of Beijing Yufeng
Chengyou Technology Company Limited

On 24 June 2019, Shenzhen Shenhe and Beijing Chengyang
Software Company Limited* dt RI2F5E 88 HR A5 entered
into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which Beijing
Chengyang Software Company Limited* b Ri2f5EEEH R A
&) has conditionally agreed to sell, and Shenzhen Shenhe has
conditionally agreed to acquire 100% equity interests of Beijing
Yufeng Chengyou Technology Company Limited* 1t R EFE
BRI BBR AT at the consideration of RMB10,660,000. Beijing
Yufeng Chengyou Technology Company Limited currently holds a
commercial property at No. 15, Guang’an Road, No. 138, Hesha
Road, Datansha Island, Liwan District, Guangzhou, the PRC.
The Property comprises a shop unit with a gross floor area of
approximately 516.69 sq.m. and it is subject a tenancy agreement
at an aggregate monthly rental of approximately RMB32,000. As
valued by an independent qualified professional valuer, the market
value of the Property as at 30 August 2019 was RMB19,900,000.
Save as the above property, Beijing Yufeng Chengyou Technology
Company Limited has not commenced other business. As the
relevant percentage ratio in respect of each transaction is less
than 5%, each transaction is not subject to the announcement
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Directors consider
that the acquisition represents a valuable property investment
opportunity that are in line with the Group's business strategy and
future development.

The acquisition completed on 30 August 2019.
Disposal of 20% equity interest in Hai Yue Real Estate

On 12 September 2018, Tai He Chuang Jian transferred 20%
equity interest in Hai Yue Real Estate to Hou Feng Trading, the
largest shareholder of Hai Yue Real Estate at the consideration of
RMB133,000,000.

Hai Yue Real Estate owns Dongshan Plaza (3|1 E35) located at
No. 69 Xian Lie Zhong Road in Guangzhou comprising 166 office
units (owned property available for operation) with a gross floor
area of 22,026.54 sq.m. and 122 underground car parking spaces
(including 2-storey basement car park) with a total gross floor area
of 1,318.02 sq.m.

As the relevant percentage ratio in respect of the transaction
exceeds 25%, the transaction contemplated thereunder
constitutes a major transaction of the Company and is subject
to shareholders’ approval at the general meeting. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 12 September
2018, 5 October 2018, 1 November 2018, 6 December 2018
and 28 December 2018 and the circular of the Company dated
18 January 2019 for details. The transaction was completed on 4
March 2019.
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At the date of this report, Hou Feng Trading settled
RMB25,840,000 and the remaining balance of RMB87,160,000 is
yet to be paid.

On 21 April 2020, Tai He Chuang Jian has received a written
notice from Hou Feng Trading stating that it has difficulty in the
turnover of working capital due to the impact of epidemic and
Hou Feng Trading is not able to repay the consideration to Tai
He Chuang Jian in time. Hou Feng Trading promised to repay the
outstanding consideration of RMB101,100,000 to Tai He Chuang
Jian by installments according to the given repayment schedule.
Besides, Hou Feng Trading also agreed to provide guarantee in
favour of the outstanding consideration of RMB35,000,000 for
the Company. The Company has obtained a pledge over the
property in Shanghai.

Provision of loans to Guangzhou Leyou

On 7 November 2018, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with Guangzhou Leyou with a loan amount of
RMB15,000,000 for a term of eight months at an interest rate of
8% per annum. The loan is guaranteed jointly and severally by a
competent guarantor. As the relevant percentage ratio in respect
of the transaction is below 5%, the transaction is not subject to
any disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.

On 9 August 2019, the Company and Guangzhou Leyou entered
into a supplemental agreement to extend the term of loan for
further eight months to 6 March 2020 and adjust the interest rate
to 6% per annum.

Guangzhou Leyou settled RMB1,000,000 on 28 April 2020. On
20 May 2019, the Company and Guangzhou Leyou entered into a
supplemental agreement to extend the term loan with a amount
of RMB 14,000,000 for further twelve months to 6 March 2021.

Extension of loans to Guangzhou Leyou

The loan due from Guangzhou Leyou as at 31 December 2019
was approximately RMB15,000,000. Guangzhou Leyou settled
RMB1,000,000 on 28 April 2020. On 20 May 2020, the Company
and Guangzhou Leyou entered into a supplementary agreement,
pursuant to which the Company extends the loan period for the
remaining principal of RMB14,000,000 to Guangzhou Leyou.
The loan bear interest rate at 6% per annum with a term of 12
months to 6 March 2021.
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Extension of the acquisition of property in Beijing PRC

On 20 May 2020, Beijing Shen Shang and Beijing Zhong Tou
entered into a supplemental agreement, pursuant to which
Beijing Shen Shang agreed to extend the completion date of the
acquisition of Beijing Property due to the outbreak of coronavirus.
The acquisition is expected to be completed on or before 30 June
2021.

Acquisition of 34,420,335 shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit
Cooperative* FMHBERMEASERIE by Zhongfang

Chaozhou

On 3 January 2019, Zhongfang Chaozhou acquired 8,700,000
shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative* B/ & E24H= A
A EB#+t in aggregate held by eight natural persons at RMB1.8
per share. The total consideration of the transaction amounted to
RMB15,660,000 (the “1st Acquisition”).

On 24 January 2019, Zhongfang Chaozhou acquired 25,720,335
shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative* MR EH{E
FA& VEB#3t in aggregate held by 19 natural persons at RMB1.85
per share. The total consideration of the transaction amounted to
approximately RMB48,271,000 (the “2nd Acquisition”).

Upon completion of the 1st Acquisition and the 2nd Acquisition,
Zhongfang Chaozhou will hold 59,720,335 shares of Chaozhou
Rural Credit Cooperative* M mRER{EMAERE in
aggregate. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 24 January 2019 and 28 January 2019 for details.

On 21 June 2019, Chaozhou Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
(“Chaozhou Rural Commercial Bank”) was established and
commenced operation after the restructuring of Chaozhou Rural
Credit Cooperative* EJN & £+1{= B4 84t and Raoping
Rural Credit Cooperative* £ 8% 2 J{z 4 {EB+L and Chao’an
Rural Credit Cooperative* #1% & B {2 & (EREL.

Since the 1st Acquisition and the 2nd Acquisition occurred during
the period of restructuring of Chaozhou Rural Commercial Bank
and the shares held by the vendors including the natural persons
in Chaozhou Rural Commercial Bank are non-transferable within
one year pursuant to the relevant requirements, an aggregate of
34,420,335 shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative* g}
MR EM{EREAER from the 1st Acquisition and the 2nd
Acquisition have not been registered and converted into shares
of Chaozhou Rural Commercial Bank. Upon completion of the
registration, Zhongfang Chaozhou will hold an aggregate of
36,490,344 shares of Chaozhou Rural Commercial Bank.
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Provision of loans to Zhong De Logistics

On 24 January 2019, SHHH Development entered into a loan
agreement with Zhong De Logistics with a loan amount of
RMB8,000,000 for a term of one year at an interest rate of 2%
per annum. The loans are only used to settle the construction
costs by Zhong De Logistics. As the relevant percentage ratio in
respect of the transaction is below 5%, the transaction is not
subject to any disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.

Disposal of 100% equity interest of in Zhonghe Chuangjian

In view of the poor financial performance of Shishi Shen Guo Tou,
the Board passed a resolution on 1 April 2018 with intention for
disposal of 100% equity interest of in Zhonghe Chuangjian, which
holds 30% equity interests in Shishi Shen Guo Tou. On 1 April
2019, Shenzhen Shen He entered into the disposal agreement
with Guangzhou Yiwan Trading Company Limited* (“Guangzhou
Yiwan") EINEZEE 5 AR A7), pursuant to which Guangzhou
Yiwan conditionally agreed to purchase and Shenzhen Shen He
conditionally agreed to sell 100% equity interests of Zhonghe
Chuangjian, at a consideration of RMB13,200,000. The
transaction has been completed on 30 April 2019.

Disposal of 100% equity interest of Shenzhen Shen He

On 24 June 2019, the Company entered into the disposal
agreement with Guangzhou Yiwan pursuant to which Guangzhou
Yiwan has conditionally agreed to purchase and the Company has
conditionally agreed to sell 100% equity interests of Shenzhen
Shen He at the consideration of RMB13,950,000, including the
consideration for disposal of Zhonghe Chuangjian. As the relevant
percentage ratio in respect of each transaction is less than 5%,
each transaction is not subject to the announcement requirements
under the Listing Rules. The transaction was completed on 28
June 2019.

Adjustment to the transaction model of capital contribution
to Zhong De Logistics

On 11 May 2017, Shenzhen Shenxi entered into a capital
contribution agreement with Independent Third Parties (the
“Capital Contribution Agreement of Zhong De Logistics”),
pursuant to which Shenzhen Shenxi shall make capital
contribution in the sum of RMB155,000,000 to Zhong De Logistics
and account for 20% equity interest in Zhong De Logistics upon
the completion of the capital contribution. As additional time
was required by Zhong De Logistics to release the equity interest
pledged with the bank, according to the supplemental agreement
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to the Capital Contribution Agreement of Zhong De Logistics
entered into on 5 February 2018, the completion of registration
procedures with the Industry and Commerce Bureau was expected
to be completed by 30 September 2018. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 11 May 2017 and 5
February 2018 respectively for details.

On 12 March 2019, Shenzhen Shenxi, SNP Investment, SHHH
Development, Zhong De Logistics, Lu Hancai and Ma Xinan (both
being natural persons) entered into the supplemental agreement
to adjust the capital contribution in Zhong De Logistics where
the capital contribution to Zhong De Logistics was changed to
acquisition of an aggregate of 66.67% equity interest in SHHH
Development by Shenzhen Shenxi from Lu Hancai and Ma Xinan
respectively. The transaction is completed upon completion of
the registration procedures with the Industry and Commerce
Bureau in January 2019. Shenzhen Shenxi became the controlling
shareholder of SHHH Development and indirectly hold 20% equity
interest in Zhong De Logistics. The transaction was completed.

Reduction of registered capital of Shenzhen Shenhe to
RMB5,000,000 and change of registered address

On 24 June 2019, due to the need to implement the Group's
overall development strategy, the Board resolved to reduce the
registered capital of Shenzhen Shenhe from RMB200,000,000
to RMB5,000,000. At the same time, the registered address of
Shenzhen Shenhe was changed to Rm 2606A, Golden Central
Tower, No. 3037 Jintian Road, Fu'an District, Futian Sub-district,
Futian District, Shenzhen.

Disposal of 66.67% equity interest of SHHH Development
and shareholders’ loan

On 4 July 2019, Shenzhen Shenxi entered into a disposal
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to which,
the independent third party conditionally agreed to acquire and
Shenzhen Shenxi conditionally disposed of 66.67% equity interest
in SHHH Development and shareholders’ loan at a consideration
of RMB173,000,000.

Details of the disposal are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 4 July 2019, 25 July 2019, 30 August 2019, 8
October 2019, 31 October 2019 and 3 December 2019 and the
circular of the Company dated 20 December 2019.

As at the date of this report, Shenzhen Shenxi received payment
of RMB20,000,000. The transaction is still in progress.
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Acquisition of 95% equity interest of the 8 PRC Companies

On 30 December 2019, Shenzhen Shenhe and Beijing Wanzi
Apartment Management Company Limited* b RE LA AEEEHF
fR 22 7] entered into the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which Shenzhen Shenhe has conditionally agreed to purchase
and Beijing Wanzi Apartment Management Company Limited has
conditionally agreed to sell the 95% equity interest of the 8 PRC
Companies (the “Target Companies”) at the consideration of
RMB71,000,000.

The Target Companies hold a total of 125 subsidiaries, each of
which has entered into a “Beijing Commercial Real Estate Sale
and Purchase Contract* t RAEREREEEARE" with
an Independent Third Party, involving acquisition of 125 sets
of properties (“Properties”). The Properties are located in the
Zhiying Commercial Center in Liangxiang Higher Education Park,
Fangshan, Beijing, adjacent to Liangxiang University City North
Station. It is expected that the Properties will be used for leasing,
and will generate stable rental income to the Group in the future.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, EMOLUMENTS, TRAINING
SCHEMES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 45
(2018: 43) employees (including directors of the Company). The
Group has entered into employment contracts with all employees,
and offered employment package according with their positions,
qualifications, experience and ability. During the 2019 Financial
Year, the aggregate salaries and emoluments amounted to
RMB4,716,000 (2018 Corresponding Period: RMB4,062,000). The
Group also provide benefits to employees, such as contributions
to endowment insurance, basic medical insurance and housing
reserve in accordance with the relevant laws of the PRC. The
Group has not adopted any share option scheme for any of its
senior management or employees.

ASSETS SECURED/PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2019, no assets of the Group was secured or
pledged (2018: Nil).
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CURRENCY RISKS

Other than those subsidiaries established in Hong Kong, the
revenue and expenses of the Group are mainly denominated
in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on
transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional
and reporting currency of the Group which is Renminbi. The
change in the exchange rate of Hong Kong Dollar against
Renminbi will affect the result of the Group. In view of the
appreciation of Hong Kong Dollar against Renminbi, the reporting
currency, an exchange gain of RMB90,000 (2018 Corresponding
Period: gain of RMB1,532,000) has been recorded in the results
for the 2019 Financial Year. The Group currently does not have
hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The management
will consider hedging significant currency exposure in future
should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2018: Nil).

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividends
for the 2019 Financial Year.

DONATIONS

The Group has made a donations of RMB1,000,000 in total to
social charity to support low income households for the 2019
Financial Year (2018 Corresponding Period: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the total capital commitments of the
Group amounted to RMB239,050,000 (2018: RMB231,064,000).
Details of which were set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events after the reporting period and up to

the date of this report are set out in Note 48 to the consolidated
financial statement.
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES - ESNEREEENS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, aged 62, graduated from Shantou Business
School. Since 1986, Mr. Zhang has successively worked as the
deputy manager of Guangdong Haining Paper Packing Company
Limited* (B BEZEHMEESFR AT, the vice president of
Hong Kong Hai Yuan Industry Group Limited and chairman of
Beijing Zhongjin Chuangzhan Real Estate Development Company
Limited* t R EIRFHMERZEHBRAF]). Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in business management, corporate culture
and project and operational planning.

Mr. Leng Xiao Rong, aged 53, graduated from the Department
of Economics of Jiangxi University in 1989 with a bachelor’s
degree in accounting. He qualified as an accountant through
the national uniform examination in 1998. He was the financial
manager of Xiushui County Forestry Industrial Company in Jiangxi
Province (TP & E/KFEME TR A TF]) from 1989 to 1999, audit
officer of Shenzhen Petrochemical (Holding) Co., Ltd. (&I {t&E
E R AR AR from 1999 to 2004, financial director of China
South City Nanning (R 22 &3) and China South City Harbin (15
HYBEER ) which are the branches of China South City Holdings
Limited EERMIZIRAER A F)) (stock code: 1668) from 2004 to
2014 and investment director of Guangdong Yueshang High-
Tech Holdings Co., Ltd. (BR 2 s RHER AR A E]) from 2014
to 2018. Mr. Leng has extensive experience in various aspects
including corporate finance, audit and investment.
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Mr. Chau Ting Yan, aged 61, graduated from Nanjing
Communication Engineering Institute (F 785 TI22) in
1982. After his graduation, he had successively served as an
assistant engineer and the engineer of the 54th Research Institute
(FF+PURFFEFT) from 1983 to 1993; from 1993 to 2005, he
successively served as a general manager of Fine Lee Industries,
Limited (M EZABRAF) and chairman of the board of
directors of China Hani Group (F Bl{E%|£E); he has served as
chairman of Zhongjin Fuhua (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd. (F &=
# (b)) WEERAF) from 2005 to 2017; and he has been
serving as a director of Zhong Rong Jin Kong Capital Management
Co., Ltd. (PRESIZEEARETEHFRAF) since 2018 to March 2019.
Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in finance, investment and
corporate management.

Mr. Chau is appointed as an executive Director from 4 March
2019 which is approved in the election in the EGM held on 4
March 2019.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Yin Zong Chen, aged 56, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Yin graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology
(WBEYE T2 A2 with a master’s degree in Architecture and
Civil Engineering Professional. He is a member of the Shenzhen
Luohu District Committee of the CPPCC for the fifth session. He
successively served as the general manager, party branch deputy
secretary and senior engineer of Shenzhen Shenan Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. from 1997 to 2003, and the director, general manager and
senior engineer of Shenzhen Pan-China Engineering Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Pan-China Engineering Group”) from 2003 to 2007.
During his term in Pan-China Engineering Group, he obtained
the qualifications of national first class registered constructor,
registered supervision engineer and registered cost engineer. Mr.
Yin served as the general manager of the contracting division and
group vice president in Shenzhen Construction (Group) Company
Limited (RYITER (£E) ARAF) from 2009 to 2012,
currently served as an executive director of Guangdong Shiliuye
Construction Co. Ltd.* (BER+7VAERAR A F]). He has over
30 years' experience in architecture design, civil engineering and
infrastructure construction.
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Mr. Ye Zhi E, aged 34, graduated from South China Agricultural
University in 2008 with a bachelor of science degree in ecology.
He graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
in 2011 with a master of laws degree and has been engaged in
real estate legal affairs since graduation. He was an assistant to
lawyer of Guangdong Zhongquan Law Firm (&5 rh 22 M S 75 A7)
and a partner in Beijing DeHeng (Shenzhen) Law Offices (1t = {=1{&

G&YI) {2EMEFEFR), and currently holds the position of partner
of Guangdong Junyan Law Firm (ERZE 5 ZRMELHT). Mr. Ye
has extensive experience in business fields such as real estate
development, urban renewal and renovation of old towns,old
plants and old villages.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 47, graduated from the
University of New South Wales, Australia with a bachelor of
commerce degree in Accounting and Computer Information
Systems. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of Certified Public Accountants,
Australia and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of directors.
Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
investment and financial management. Between September
2001 and December 2015, Mr Chan was an associate director of
Go-To-Asia Investment Limited. Between July 2000 and August
2001, Mr. Chan was an investment manager with Softbank China
Venture Investments Limited. Between April 1995 and June 2000,
he worked at Ernst & Young in Hong Kong and his last position
was a senior associate with the audit and corporate finance
department.

Mr. Chan is currently (i) an investment manager of Sprint Asset
Management Limited; (i) an independent non-executive director
of China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 871); Hao Tian Development Group Limited (stock code:
474) and Fujian Nuogqi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353), whose
respective securities are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange; and (iii) an independent non-executive director of
Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code: 8016), whose
securities were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and have
been transferred to the main board of the Stock Exchange under
stock code: 3991.
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Mr. Chan was the independent non-executive director of the
Company since 12 February 2009 and has resigned on 21 June
2013. Furthermore, Mr. Chan was (i) an independent non-
executive director of Beautiful China Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 706) between March 2013 and February 2014 whose
securities are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange;
(i) an independent non-executive director of Far East Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 36) between November 2014
and July 2017 whose securities are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange; (iii) an independent non-executive director of
Focus Media Network Limited (stock code: 8112) between April
2015 and November 2015; (iv) an independent non-executive
director of Dining Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code: 8056)
between July 2016 and December 2018; and (v) an independent
non-executive director of L&A International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8195) between September 2014 and March 2017, whose
respective securities are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Gao Hong Hong, aged 49, graduated from the department
of monetary banking under the faculty of finance of Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics with a master’s degree in
economics in 1998. Since 1998, she has worked in the business
division and dealt with credit business in the international finance
division of Bank of China Shenzhen Branch. She successively
served as chairman of Bank of China Shenzhen Meili Sub-
branch, Bank of China Shenzhen Meilin Sub-branch and Bank
of China Shenzhen Shahe Sub-branch. She is currently the
assistant to general manager of the asset management centre
of Shenzhen Galaxy Holdings Group* (ZIII £ IEAREE). Ms.
Gao has extensive experience in investment, financing and asset
management.

Mr. Guo Lu Jin, aged 64, graduated from Renmin University of
China in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree. During his university
years, he was recommended to study a professional course in
sociology at Nankai University. Mr. Guo served at the General
Communication Station of the Lanzhou Military Region (E/1 &
% BET44u) as a soldier. Upon completion of studies, he held the
position of principal staff member of the Department of Higher
Education of the Ministry of Education (& 2= 5% E 7)) from
1982 to 1988. He was the director of the National Development
and Reform Commission from 1988 to 1993 and successively
became the person-in-charge of the Investment and Development
Department, General Office and Asset Preservation Department
of China Everbright Bank Share Company Limited from 1993 to
2015. He has extensive experience in various aspects including
finance, investment, macroeconomic adjustment and social
development strategies.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER :

Mr. Huang Chunfeng, aged 43, obtained a bachelor’s degree
from the School of Finance of Zhengzhou University in 2002, a
master’s degree in Business Administration from the Graduate
School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 2013 and
a master’s degree in EMBA from China Europe International
Business School (CEIBS) in 2017. From 1998 to 2010, he
successively worked in the sub-branch directly under Henan
Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
(stock code: 601398) and the Zhengzhou Branch of Shanghai
Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600000). From
2010 to 2013, he successively served as vice president of the
Xueyuan South Road sub-branch under Beijing Branch of Bank of
Shanghai Co., Ltd. (stock code: 601229) and Beijing Dongzhimen
sub-branch of Bank of Jiangsu. From 2014 to 2016, he was
the general manager of Beijing Guo Tai Zhong Tou Investment
Funds Management Co., Ltd. (BZEFH#& (tR) REHESER
AMR/AT). Since 2016, he has been the chairman of Chuang
Xing Yuan Asset Management Co., Ltd. (BI2Z2REEBEAR A
7). Mr. Huang has extensive experience in the areas of finance,
investment and corporate management.

Mr. Huang is appointed as a Chief Executive Officer of the

Company from 4 March 2019 which is effective after the
resignation of Mr. Deng Xiao Gang.
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SUPERVISORS:

Mr. Wang Xing Ye, aged 42, holds a master postgraduate
degree. Mr. Wang is currently the managing director of Beijing
Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd., director
of FE BN AR AR (formerly known as Hebei Beida Jade
Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Co., Ltd.) (stock code: 002960.
SZ), director of Enraytek Optoelectronics Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd., director of Ningbo Jade Bird Zhengyuan Equity Interest
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (BB & B TREREERER
B2 2 \]), director of Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment
Co., Ltd., executive director/general manager of Ningbo Liyuantai
Venture Capital Investment Management Co., Ltd., secretary to
the board of director/chairman of union of Beijing Beida Jade
Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited and the chairman of the
Board of Supervisors of the Company. He has profound experience
in investment and financing, asset and business reorganization.

Mr. Chen Jun Feng, aged 37, graduated from Southwest
University of Political Science & Law (FaFIBUAAKZR) with Bachelor
of Laws. Mr. Chen served as the assistant to the president of
Guangdong Xu Mastery Auction Company Limited (&R BiEZE
HEAMR AT from November 2008 to January 2010, assistant
to the president and legal manager of Guangzhou Sheng Tong
property Company Limited (BN E&EEXBR LA from
February 2010 to February 2012, the director and deputy general
manager of Guangdong Gung Ho Equity Fund Limited (BE¥R L&
pEiEE S HPR /AR from March 2013 to October 2015, and the
director of Zhuhai Kingma Holdings Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Shining Metals Groups, Inc) (Stock code: 400028). Since 2017, he
has been operation director of Kevin Talent Consulting (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen has extensive experience in investment and
financing, asset and business reorganization.

Ms. Huang Yong Jing, aged 41, graduated from Zhangzhou
University with a bachelor’s degree in food engineering. Since
2002, Ms. Huang has successively worked as the food inspector
in Xiamen Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (&P
™HAERRBRIRIZ D), executive manager and deputy general
assistant of Shenzhen Pico Investment and Development Company
Limited (FITHTERIKEEREABR AT and the executive
assistant of Shenzhen Anye Property Holdings Limited (&I
TEMEERARAR]). Ms. Huang is currently worked in the
integrated management department of the Company. Ms. Huang
is experienced in business administration and managing external
relations and affairs.
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Mr. Zhang Yun Feng, aged 55, graduated from Anhui University
of Finance and Economics (Z 1B A€ K E2) majoring in commodity
science. Mr. Zhang has worked as deputy general manager of
the marketing department in the headquarters of the Kunlun
Securities Company Limited (EmiE5 AR A F]), marketing
director of Shenzhen sale branch of the Hong Yuan Securities
Company Limited (RIREHRMD AR 7)) and the general
manager of Anhui Xin Tai Yuan Technology Company Limited (%
BERTRIFBRAT). He is currently the president of Shenzhen
Qian Yuan Kun Li Investment Technology Co., Ltd. (&I E. 7T
HHERERE AR AR]). Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in
capital management.

Mr. Fang Wei Ran, aged 34, graduated from Guangdong Ocean
University with Bachelor of Science in Financial Management.
He previously worked in Huizhou LCY Rubber Company. Mr.
Fang is currently the finance manager of Zhongfang Chaozhou
Investment Development Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Fang has extensive experience in
accounting practices and cost management.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES:

Ms. Qian Fang Fang, aged 37, is the Joint Company Secretary
of the Company. Ms. Qian graduated from the Northwest
University of professional accounting with a bachelor’s degree in
management in 2006, and was conferred a master’s degree in
management in 2008. Ms. Qian was appointed as the supervisor
of the Company for the period from 12 February 2012 to 3 March
2014. Ms. Qian was appointed as Joint Company Secretary on 6
March 2014.

Mr. Tung Sze Ho Dicky, aged 37, was appointed as Joint
Company Secretary of the Company on 1 August 2018, who is
delegated by an external secretarial service provider, Angela Ho
& Associates. Mr. Tung is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators). He has extensive experiences in the company
secretarial field.
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To the Shareholders,

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the supervisory
committee of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
(the “Supervisory Committee”), exercised conscientiously its
authority, safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders and the
Company, followed the principle of trustworthiness, honestly
carried out the duties of supervisors and worked cautiously and
diligently, in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
requirements of the relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong
and the Articles for their accountability to the Shareholders.

During the year, the major work performed by the Supervisory
Committee included the attendance of the Board meetings;
reviewing the report of the Directors and reserve appropriation
proposed by the Board, if any, for the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting; strictly and effectively
monitoring whether the policies and decisions made by the
management of the Company had conformed with the state
laws and regulations and the Articles or safeguarded the interests
of the Shareholders. The Supervisory Committee has also
reviewed the performance of the Directors, general manager
and senior management in the daily operation by various means,
and seriously examined the Company’s financial affairs and its
connected transactions. After the examination, the Supervisory
Committee concluded that:

1. the report of the Directors and the reserve appropriation
proposed by the Board for the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting are in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations and the Articles;

2. the Directors, general manager and other senior
management of the Company have strictly followed
the principles of trustworthiness, worked diligently and
responsibly, and discharged their duties for the best
interest of the Company. The Supervisory Committee has
not discovered that any Directors, general manager and
other senior management of the Company had abused
their powers, damaged the interest of the Company or the
benefits of the shareholders and employees or contravened
any laws and regulations or the Articles; and
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3. the consolidated financial statements of the Company for 3. KEMBE)SAMERTAR AR

the year ended 31 December 2019, which were audited by EZHARBEE2019412A318
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Company Limited, have truly and IEFEENGFEaVBERE  EENAR
fairly reflected the operating results and financial position MR T AREBE ML EE RIS
of the Group. The related parties transactions were fair Mo BEAEARHGRATEE  RE
and reasonable and had not infringed upon the interests BEARARNB RERRFEAOITE -

of the Company and the Shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee takes this opportunity to thank the EBREN—FF  EFEemMIESITEAR
Shareholders, Directors and all the employees of the Company for AIEMIRE BEREEEINANIE

their supports in the past year. IR RO R !
By order of the Supervisory Committee AEEEE M
Mr. Wang Xing Ye FHEEEE
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee EEeTE
Shenyang, 29 May 2020 &F% - 202065 H29R
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 60 and 61.

The state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 is set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 62
and 63.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during

the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 64 and 65.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There is no distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2019, calculated under the Company Law of the PRC,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was established,
(2018: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
the Company and under the laws of the PRC, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the financial information of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 222 and 223.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or
agreed to be granted by the Company to any of its directors,
Supervisors or employees.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming

Mr. Leng Xiao Rong

Mr. Chau Ting Yan (appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. Deng Xiao Gang (resigned on 4 March 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yin Zong Chen
Mr. Ye Zhi E
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
Mr. Guo Lu Jin
Ms. Gao Hong Hong

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent to the Group in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with article 100 of the Articles, all the Directors
shall be appointed at the general meeting for a term of three
years. A Director may serve consecutive terms if re-elected upon
the expiration of the terms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors, supervisors and senior
management are set out on pages from 19 to 25.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from his/
her date of appointment as a director or supervisor (or until the
expiration of the term of the current session of the Board or
supervisory committee) and thereafter subject to termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s written notice to the
other party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ service contracts disclosed above, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Group was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors, chief executives
and supervisors of the Company had interests or short positions in
any securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors and
Supervisors as referred to in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As of 31 December 2019, save as the Company’s Directors,
supervisors and chief executives, the following corporations and
individuals had interests and/or short positions in the Company’s
shares, underlying shares, securities, equity derivatives and/or
debentures, which are required to be recorded in the register of
members maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO:
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Percentage of total

Interest owners Shares issued share capital
EERTRFEE

RBFEA B in Bol

1 Beijing Hua Xia Ding 420,000,000 Domestic shares 28.58%

ItREER 420,000,0000% W& f% 28.58%

2 Huang Guang Fu (Note 1) 420,000,000 Domestic shares 28.58%

=HREMR(HEET) 420,000,0000% A& f% 28.58%

3 Beijing Lichuang Future 180,000,000 Domestic shares 12.25%

LT AR R 180,000,000% A & f 12.25%

4 Zhai Ming Yue (Note 2) 180,000,000 Domestic shares 12.25%

2R A (K7:#2) 180,000,0008% W& & 12.25%

5 Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long 140,000,000 Domestic shares 9.53%

I R E 140,000,0000% & A% 9.53%

6 Zhang Song (Note 3) 140,000,000 Domestic shares 9.53%

RAR(HTEE3) 140,000,0008% W& & 9.53%

7 HKSCC Nominees Limited (Note 4) 605,376,000 H-Shares (listed shares) 412%

BERREE(RIBAN)BRRB(Mit4) 605,376,000 HA% (_E A (H 41.2%
2019%% BHEARARRRAERAT 31
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Notes:

Huang Guang Fu is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests
in Beijing Hua Xia Ding. Pursuant to section 316 of the SFO, Huang
Guang Fu is also deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of
the Company held by Beijing Hua Xia Ding.

Zhai Mingyue is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests
in Beijing Li Chuang Future. Pursuant to section 316 of the SFO, Di
Mingyue is also deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of
the Company held by Beijing Li Chuang Future.

Zhang Song is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests in
Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long. Pursuant to section 316 of the SFO,
Zhang Song is deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of the
Company held by Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long.

As notified by HKSCC Nominees Limited, as of 31 December 2019, the
following participants of CCASS had interests amounting to 5.00%
or more of the total issued H-Shares of the Company as shown in the
securities accounts in CCASS:

(1) The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as
nominee holds 90,390,740 H-Shares, representing 14.93% of
the issued H-Shares of the Company.

2) Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited as nominee holds
66,052,000 H-Shares, representing 10.91% of the issued
H-Shares of the Company.

(3) Ever-long Securities Company Limited as nominee holds
64,000,000 H-Shares, representing 10.57% of the issued
H-Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company
has not been notified of any interests and/or short positions in
shares, underlying shares, securities, equity derivatives and/or
debentures of the Company which are required to be recorded
in the register maintained in accordance with section 336 of the

SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the 2019 Financial Year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 82%
— five largest customers combined 82%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 0%
— five largest suppliers combined 0%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers disclosed above.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all
the directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the directors and supervisors or their respective associates
was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to
acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year ended
31 December 2019.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed shares during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into
by the Group under the applicable accounting standards during
the 2019 Financial Year are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the related party transactions disclosed in the Note 45
to the consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in the
Listing Rules which are subject to the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the 2019 Financial Year
and a discussion of the Group’s future prospects are set in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 7 to
18 and the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 6 of this annual
report respectively.

Risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group have been
addressed in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 6 and the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 7 to 18
of this annual report respectively.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Likely development in the Group’s business

The likely development of the Group is shown in the business
prospect section in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and Chairman’s Statement in this annual report.

An analysis using financial key performance indicators

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to
the business of the Group are set out in the “Financial Review”
section in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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Environmental policies and performance

Environment protection is critical to the long term development
of the Group. The Group places importance in the management
practice so as to minimize waste, maximize efficiencies and reduce
negative impact to the environment.

Relationships with employees, customers, suppliers and
others

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment polices on remuneration and
other benefits.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts with the customers
and has regular review of requirements of customers and
complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of the performance
of suppliers on regular basis.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has an on-going review of the new
enacted laws and regulations affecting the operations of the
Group. The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
business of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, nor has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has

maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD REHEEHS

Details of significant events after the reporting period and up to EEREHERBEARERBENERS
the date of this report are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated HEEE NG A TSR EMTEE14 -

financial statement.
AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY AT EED

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year RABEZE2019F12A31MHIFEE 2558
ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by Asian Alliance jﬂkiﬁﬁamﬁgﬁ(ijjﬁ)‘*ﬂ-gﬂi$ﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@
(HK) CPA Company Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, TIEK HEEFEFTEEARTEERER
offer themselves for re-appointment. The Company will propose £ NABEE I AN T EE Hxﬁﬂﬁj(
relevant resolutions at the forthcoming annual general meeting of SR ZMERER -

the Company in this regard.

On behalf of the Board REEES

Zhang Jing Ming REYEA

Chairman EFR

Shenyang, The PRC, 29 May 2020 FRE e JElS - 202055 H29H
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The Board is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics which are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximising
shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time to comply with the regulatory
requirements, and to improve the in corporate governance
practice.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code of provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout for the 2019 Financial Year, except the
following:

Code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code requires that the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors. The Company did not arrange such
insurance cover during the 2019 Financial Year as Directors
considered that the risk of material legal claims against Directors
is minimal. Nevertheless, the Board will review this arrangement
from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances and
arrange for appropriate insurance coverage when necessary.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board, which currently comprises 8 Directors, is responsible
for the formulation of corporate strategy, and risk management to
protect shareholders interest. Daily operation and administration
delegated by the Board to the executive Directors and the
management.

The brief biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of
this report. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Group. The composition of the Board is well
balanced as all Directors have experience in their field of expertise
with a balance of skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the
operation of the Group.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualifications. In
addition, two non-executive Directors are appointed to provide
guidance to the Board.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors of their
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers them to
be independent of the management.
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The terms of appointment for all the executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are 3 years. All Directors shall be elected and removed by the
Shareholders in general meeting according to the Articles.

The policy relating to the Board diversity of the Group sets
up the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to
ensure the Board has the required skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and other qualities of the members of the Board. The
composition of the Board and its committee is regularly reviewed
by considering the benefits of all aspects of diversity. The Board
Diversity Policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed Directors be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Group’s businesses and their statutory
supervision responsibilities as directors of listed companies. The
Company will update the Directors on the latest development
regarding the Group’s businesses as well as the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, where appropriate. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in training
programmes held by qualified professional people in relation to
the revised code and amendments to the relevant listing rules, so as
to develop and update their knowledge and skills.

During the 2019 Financial Year, all the Directors have participated
in proper continuous professional development trainings to update
their knowledge and skills by attending briefings, conferences,
programmes, workshops and seminars as well as by way of further
education and self-study, so as to understand their roles, functions
and responsibilities.
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Attendance of individual Director at Board meetings for 2019 019 F B FEEENEESLFEEEEMNEY

Financial Year are as follows: T

Number of meeting SERE 14
Executive Directors: HITEE -

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming sRARAA ST A 12
Mr. Leng Xiao Rong RINRFHE 14
Mr. Chau Ting Yan (appointed on 4 March 2019) BER A (R2019F3 F4BERT) 8
Mr. Deng Xiao Gang (resigned on 4 March 2019) BB AN ST (RA201943 H4HEHT) 2
Non-executive Directors: FEHITESE -

Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRELE 13
Mr. Ye Zhi E ERELE 12
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHTEE -

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PR 8% 24 S A 13
Mr. Guo Lu Jin FBEERE 1
Ms. Gao Hong Hong SAAI L 13

All Directors have access to the advice and assistance of the Joint EREENNESSEFREEEARATES
Company Secretaries in relation to the Board procedures and KEEATMENE R RHBE
corporate governance matters.

The minutes of the Board meetings recorded all the matters EZE@HLHIINESTSTRIMEEH
discussed by the Board and the matters resolved. Minutes of ~ NZFHREET @ JHHEFEARWEET @ UH
Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretaries and are FREENEZEGNESH o

available for inspection by any Director or committee members.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FRRITRERE

The role of the chairman and the chief executive officer of ~ ARBEFERITHEEH ZBESH - WIEMH
the Company are segregated and not exercised by the same Bl — AEME - ZEARWALE - TTHEH
individual. The chairman is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming and the chief REEBREE -

executive officer is Mr. Huang Chunfeng.

With the support of the Joint Company Secretaries, the chairman EHFEARMENBST - TERREESE

ensures all the Directors are provided adequate information on EARKEREEEERMAREEZLRD
matters discussed in the Board Meeting in a timely manner. Bk e
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REMUNERATION OF COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 12 February
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The majority of committee members are independent non-
executive Directors and the committee chairman is Mr. Guo Lu Jin.
Other committee members are Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and
Mr. Ye Zhi E.

The roles of the remuneration committee include the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension benefits
and compensation payments (including any compensation payable
for loss of office or engagement), and make recommendations to
the Board about the remuneration of the non-executive Directors.

Details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
meetings are as follows:

FHERE

RRATR2012F2ANBRIFMEES -
WiERBEEE AT CEmBERE - X
BHEZEEKEABIIIENITESE  HEXE
SIEANBELL  HMWEE S8 AR
B R EERE S A o

FHZEeNBEERET2RATESY
RFEHFMES  BREVAE  BREHN K
MES  BEBEBABME AN
TEENFMRESSRHEES -

M ESSRNZTHLEFABOT

Number of meetings EERE 1
Mr. Guo Lu Jin HBEELEE 1
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PREGILSE A 0
Mr. Ye Zhi E ERERLE 1

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors.

The remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the nomination committee on 12
February 2012 and updated written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code on 29 March 2019. The majority
of committee members are independent non-executive Directors
and the committee chairman is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, the other
members include Mr. Guo Lu Jin and Ms. Gao Hong Hong.
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The duties of the nomination committee are reviewed and REZEenBESBT REFREIT
updated as follows:

to review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience, length of service and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually
and to make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

to identify individuals who are qualified/suitable to
become a member of the Board and to select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. Academic and
professional qualifications, business experience, expertise,
knowledge and diversity of perspectives required from
members of the Board as well as other requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited will be assessed to
determine if the nomination is suitable;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors to determine their eligibility;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular, the chairman and the
chief executive and the policy concerning the diversity of
the Board members, and the measurable objectives for
implementing such policy;

to review and implement the board diversity policy, as
appropriate and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy,
and the progress on achieving these objectives;

to review and implement the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate. This includes the nomination procedures
and the process and criteria to select and recommend
candidates for directorship set out in the Nomination
Policy; and

other matters authorized by the Board.
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Details of the attendance of the nomination committee meetings

REZEGZNZHTHEABOD

are as follow:

Number of meetings BERE 1
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SRASAA ST A 1
Ms. Gao Hong Hong SAAI T 0
Mr. Guo Lu Jin PEBRE 1
AUDIT COMMITTEE EERY

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code and updated on 29
March 2019.

The major duties of the audit committee are reviewed and
updated as follows:

o to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to
handle any problems of his or her resignation or dismissal;

. to review and monitor the external auditor's independence,
objectivity, and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature, scope of
the audit, and reporting obligations before the audit
commences;

o to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual reports and accounts, half yearly
reports and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them;

o to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

o to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has the appropriate standing
within the Company, and to review and monitor its
effectiveness; and

o to review the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors and one non-executive Director. The chairman of the
audit committee is Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan. The audit
committee held two meetings during the 2019 Financial Year.

Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as
follow:

EVZEeHMBBIIFNTESE R —BIF
WITESHEK - BRRESTFEAMBLE
o ARBE2019FHRFREA LB FRMIR

BEZLZEEgE -

BERZLZEEQRNETHRLEFABOT

Number of meetings BRRE 2
Mr. Chan Ming San Jonathan PREGILSE A 2
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRELE 2
Ms. Gao Hong Hong BAA LT 2

The Group’s unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2019 and audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been reviewed by the audit committee,
in relation to the compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have
been made.

The audit committee has met the external auditor without the
presence of executive Directors.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor. During
the 2019 Financial Year, the Company paid an aggregate of
approximately RMB1,829,000 to the external auditor of which
auditing services of approximately RMB1,660,000 and non-audit
services of approximately RMB169,000 respectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all

the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code for the 2019 Financial Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Company'’s financial statement showing a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group and in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibility to the shareholders on the consolidated financial
statement of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and the Group with the supports of finance
department of the Group. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board has applied the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and consistently followed the appropriate accounting
policies and provisions of laws.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective risk management and internal control system
within the Group. The Group's system of internal control and
risk management includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve
its business objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with
relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement
of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board is also responsible for reviewing from time to time the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.
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The Group has engaged CT Consultants Limited to provide
internal audit functions to review the control environment, risk
assessment, control activities, information system and monitoring
progress of the Group during the 2019 Financial Year and
reported its findings to the audit committee.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s risk management and
internal control system during the 2019 Financial Year, including
the report of CT Consultants Limited and the explanations by the
management. Issue raised for improvement had been identified
and appropriate actions were recommended.

An inside information handling policy is in place to enable the
Group to handle inside information. The Board as a whole
is responsible for identifying and considering the disclosure
requirements and guidelines regarding inside information.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for overall corporate strategy and
monitoring and control of the performance of the Group whereas
the management is responsible for the daily hands on operation.

When the Board delegates its management and administrative
functions to the management, it has given clear directions as to
the powers of the management and the circumstances where,
the management on behalf of the Company shall obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Qian Fang Fang was appointed as Joint Company Secretary of
the Company on 6 March 2014. Mr. Tung Sze Ho Dicky, engaged
from external service provider, was appointed as Joint Company
Secretary of the Company on 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang Jing
Ming, the Chairman, is the primary contact for external company
secretary. Each of Ms. Qian and Mr. Tung undertook not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the 2019
Financial Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) has been adopted by
the Board on 29 March 2019. Under the Dividend Policy, provided
that the Group is profitable and without affecting the normal
operations of the Group, the Company may consider to declare
and pay dividends to the Shareholders.
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The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board takes
into account, among others:

o financial performance, liquidity position, business condition
and strategies of the Group;

o actual and future operation and demands for liquidity of
the Group;

o expected future expansion plan of the Group;

o gearing ratio, credit facilities and indebtedness level of the
Group;

° gains, losses, retained profits and distributable reserves of
the Group;

o expectation of the Shareholders and investors and

industrial practices;

. general market condition;

o any restrictions against declaration of dividends; and

o any other relevant factors which the Board may deem
appropriate.

In proposing or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements, future growth and its shareholding value. In
accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company, all applicable regulations and factors above,
the Board may, from time to time, pay interim dividends or
special dividends to the Shareholders which the Board considers
reasonable after taking into account of the financial condition
and profit of the Company, and the Company may also announce
final dividends in forms of any currencies at the general meeting,
provided that any dividend must not exceed the amount proposed
by the Board.

The Board will continue to review the Dividend Policy from time
to time and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time.
The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at
any time or from time to time.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
for investors to understand the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.shenyang747.com,
to provide up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, and
corporate governance practices.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
its shareholders, in particular, through AGMs or other general
meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage
their participation. The Chairman of the Board as well as the
Chairmen of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee will make themselves available at the
AGM to meet with the shareholders.

The Chairman of the Board, the chairman or the representatives of
each committee together with the external auditor have attended
the AGM to answer any questions raised by the shareholders.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held in June 2020.
The notice of AGM has been sent to shareholders.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant
information on the Group’s business in a timely manner, subject
to relevant regulatory requirement.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual director.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.
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Two or more shareholders holding in aggregate 10 per cent
or more of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting
may, in accordance with the requirements set out in the Articles
of the Company, make a requisition to the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company stating the
objective of the meeting. The Board shall as soon as possible
proceed to convene the extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders or a class meeting after receiving the requisition.

SHAREHOLDERS ENQUIRIES

Any enquiries regarding the shareholding of H-Shares, including
the transfer of shares, change of address, loss of certificate etc,
should be sent to the Company’s H-Share Registrar and Transfer
Office, Hong Kong Registrar Limited at Rooms 1712-16, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Any enquires relating to the Company should be sent to the
Company'’s registered office for the attention of the Chairman of
the Board.

CONSTITUTION DOCUMENTS

The Articles is published on the website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BT R

/ ERl(EB)EHEMERFAERAA
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
EBRLOHARRBRBERAF

(incorporated in People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 221, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREiER

MEEstER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZRRFHEREFPE2MAERY

Impairment assessment of deposit paid for
acquisition of properties

As disclosed in Note 25(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2019, deposit of
approximately RMB147,100,000 (the “Properties
Deposit”) was paid for acquisition of properties (the
“Transaction”).

Management performed a valuation on the properties
with the assistance from an independent professional
valuer. With reference to the valuation, management
concluded that no impairment on the Properties Deposit
in respect of the Transaction was necessary as at 31
December 2019.
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Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on impairment of deposit paid for
acquisition of properties included:

- Obtaining the agreements to understand the
terms of the Transaction;

- Performing an independent check on the

ownership of the land in which the properties
located;

- Obtaining the valuation report from an
independent professional valuer related to the
properties and assessed the reasonableness of

the methodologies and assumption used;

- Evaluating the independent valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FREEst=EEZ)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
MEEitER ZRRFtEREF P2 MAREHD

Impairment assessment of deposit paid for BB 15T L0907 EFE(E)
acquisition of properties (Continued)

We identified the recoverability of the Properties Deposit - Obtaining an understanding from the
for the Transaction as a key audit matter due to the management about the status of the
fact that management’s assessment of the recoverable construction process and progress of the
amount of the Properties Deposit involved significant Transaction;

judgement.

- Obtaining confirmation with respect to the
amount of the Properties Deposit as at 31
December 2019;

- Reviewing the relevant correspondences and
documents provided by the management
to evaluate the status and progress of the
Transaction; and

- Discussing with the management on the
likelihood of completion of the Transaction and
timing on when the Transaction can be finalised.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREiER

FM@FtER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZRRFHEREFPE2MAERY

Impairment assessment of deposits paid for
potential investments

As disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2019, the Group
has deposits paid for potential investments with an
aggregate of RMB166,000,000.

Management performed valuations on the equity
interest of target companies with the assistance from
independent professional valuer. With reference to the
valuation, management concluded that no impairment
on the deposits paid for potential investments was
necessary as at 31 December 2019.

BN A T RERM T 26 E - N2019F12 A
31 E£EEEMEBERESIMNIIEA AR
166,000,0007T ©

EEBAB Y EEGEMBE TEEZARMNMEETT
H1E - S 2EHER - TEERL > B2019F12A31
BHEBRBER AN MR EHRIE

52 Annual Report 2019

BUEBTER BRT X (15T 2895 (EEF1E

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on impairment of deposit paid for potential
investments included:

- Obtaining the agreements to understand the
terms of the transactions;

- Performing company searches on the target
companies and land searches on the properties
held by the target companies on sampling basis;

- Obtaining the valuation report from
independent professional valuer related to the
business value of target companies and assessed
the reasonableness of the methodologies and
assumption used,;

- Evaluating the independent valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- Discussing the status of the acquisition process
with the management of the Company; and

- Confirming the year ended balance of deposit
paid.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRENEEZ)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
MEFitER ZRRFtEREEF P2 MAREHS
Impairment assessment of other receivables FEE A FE UG 5o h i (5 5F 15

As disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2019, the Group's
gross other receivables amounted to approximately
RMB146,480,000, and an allowance of credit losses of
approximately RMB71,615,000 were included in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

The impairment loss on other receivables included in
the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately RMB71,491,000.

The allowance for credit loss of other receivables
represents the management’s best estimates of the end
of the reporting period of expected credit losses under
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financial
Instrument expected credit loss model.

Management assess whether the credit risk of other
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and apply a three-stage impairment model
to calculate their expected credit losses.

FANER A MR W FE29FT# & - 7R 2019512 A 31
A ESEHMEREFRETFELN R AR 146,480,000
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Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on impairment of other receivables included:

- Unstanding and evaluating the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness
of the model selection and key measurement
parameters determination;

- For the historical information, discussing with
management to understand the management'’s
identification of significant increase in credit
risk, defaults and credit-impaired receivables,
corroborated management’s explanation with
supporting evidence;

- For forward-looking measurement, assessing the
reasonableness of economic indicator selection,
economic scenarios and weightings application,
assessed the reasonableness of the estimation by
comparing with industry data;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREiER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERRFHERERPEMAERY

Impairment assessment of other receivables
(Continued)

The measurement models of expected credit losses
involves significant management judgement and
assumptions, primarily including the following:

- selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters,
including probability of default, loss given default
and exposure at default;

- criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk or a default;
and

- economic indicator for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings.

We consider impairment assessment on other receivables
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the significant
estimates and judgment involved in determining
the expected credit losses allowance on the other
receivables.

BHEERBRNAEEA S NEEEEAHE RRR -
ITZREUTRIE:

-  KESEEANEEEHEEZRIEZH  BREE
PR - BRBRARERENAR

|
B

ERBAEERBBZIEMIEONGENT &

—  AIEMETENEEER  AREREESSENE

e

BB SEM BB RER S SRERESFFE - I
TIHREHRAMBERRNER N ETE M EKFIA
MR E R RBEATS R E R BT R A -

BER A FEA Beag st (B A1 (5)

- Challenging the management the sufficiency of
impairment loss based on the specific facts and
circumstances; and

- Checking major data inputs used in the expected
credit losses models on sample basis to the
Group's record.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

HthEH

ERREEFHHMENAR - HBLERE
BHEREFHRANER - BETBEFEME
HREBFIZEE RS

BAYEAMBRERNBELAL NREEME
Bt BRATAHZEFEMERERETATR

HEERE A

BABRMBREYBHREROES  RANE
TRHEEMER @ FBiRs  TEEM
EMEREREPBHRRARMERETER
TR ERFEERBBRE LT FE
EXREHRVEN - EXRERMASHITHITIE
MREMRBEMEFEEAE R - H A
FBERELEE - R MILEBAREEER

EFRARESMALIHRGSMBHSE
ARBHRE

BERAREFEBEREEASAAEREM
BB B SR EER REBRQHEA SR
REBRBEEMAANGE MERE - WH
HRRAREETBRERNBHE N FEERN
HEF S SRR M B B B KR WP & B R B4
HBE -

ERmEGEVBHRRE - EAREFAEN
ff BERBERELEMEN  YEBABR
THREAFECEABNER  UREMRR
BRERGFER BRI BERREFAE
# BEEEBFRIUFILLE  AFIEEMLE
FREVERITER

m
pu

of
B
gl

AMATEREE BESENMBER

55



— /- B » ol SN

Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chung Chi Chiu

Practising Certificate Number: P0O6610

8/F Catic Plaza

8 Causeway Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

29 May 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F 128318 IFE

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wiz ARBTR ARBTT

Revenue 1y = 7
Contracts with customers BEAEL 21,893 69,903
Interest under effective interest method BERFEETHFE 4,537 10,188
Leases HE 130 -
Total revenue ¢4 26,560 80,091
Cost of sales —E JDN (21,330) (64,966)
Gross profit EF 5,230 15,125
Other income H WA 9 1,316 257
Impairment losses on goodwill EENREEE - (1,320)
Impairment losses under expected credit TRHE BB EREE THR

loss model, net of reversal BEETE - kR 11 (77,614) (57,416)

Loss from changes in fair value of financial A (BETABZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss MBS EER

AR EEEHNEER - (30)

Loss from changes in fair value of REMEN DA BEE
investment properties KB 20 (730) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEWB AR T 38 1,072 46
Exchange gain, net P 3 W s F /e 20 1,532
Depreciation e (1,790) (156)
Staff costs BT (4,716) (4,062)
Other operating expenses Hih Lg% (7,541) (5,318)
Share of loss of associates DEEE R REE (8,548) (85,940)
Finance cost BhE AR 10 (53) -
Loss before tax BAIEs I8 (93,284) (137,282)
Income tax expense FrisHiR X 12 (1,156) (1,779)
Loss for the year FREE 13 (94,440) (139,061)

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: EX(Eig)RFIFER :

— owners of the Company . WNGIE =N (89,049) (139,215)
- non-controlling interests — IR RS (5.391) 154
(94,440) (139,061)
Loss per share BEEBR
— Basic (RMB cents) —BER(ARED) 15 (6.06) (9.47)
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#HE(ARED) N/ARiEH N/ANE A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEaRkRAEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
UN: ARBTT

Loss for the year FREBR (94,440) (139,061)
Other comprehensive (expense) Htt2mE(FAZ)BA

income
Item that will not be reclassified to TEEF EZEm 2 HA -

profit or loss:
Fair value (loss) gain on investments BAREEFTAEMEEKRAR

in equity instruments at fair value e AR T EREN AR EE(ER)

through other comprehensive income Wz (57,188) 2,400
Item that may be reclassified B gt B 2 Bm o HE -

subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEGEF CERZE

translation of foreign operations 790 2,615

Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMEE(FS) WA -

for the year, net of income tax TSR (56,398) 5,015
Total comprehensive expense FEAZEAZHREAE

for the year (150,838) (134,046)
Total comprehensive (expense) 2EFAX)RMABEBRER :

income attributable to:

— owners of the Company . VNCIEZ DN (145,811) (135,768)

- non-controlling interests — IR (5.027) 1,722

(150,838) (134,046)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LEe RN X

At 31 December 2019
#2019 12A31H

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wiz ARBTR ARBTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE KRR 17 49,411 49,617
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 15,834 -
Prepaid lease payments FERAERRK 19 = 9,000
Investment properties KEYE 20 19,400 -
Goodwill kS 21 - -
Interests in associates BN RIARERS 22 - 61,278
Equity instruments at fair value through BRARBEFTAHM
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) Z2EWA([ERAREE
FFARM2EKA DK
MEART E 23 52,743 49,000
Deposit paid for capital contribution BRFEMZ RG] S 37 - 150,000
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties WM NME] S 25 147,100 236,736
Deposits paid for potential investments BB MG 2 26 166,000 -
Deferred tax assets BETIBEE 41 839 1,888
451,327 557,519
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Contract costs B UK 27 128,124 136,921
Loan and interest receivables FEUWE R N FI B 28 14,339 107,717
Deposits and other receivables HE5e= 36N 29 74,998 16,445
Amount due from an associate FEU — [ = 2 B RUR 45 - 1,676
Restricted bank balances SR BRI T A B 31 80,542 87,456
Bank balances and cash IRITEEHRNIRS 30 7,627 149,258
305,630 499,473
Assets classified as held for sale D ASEHENEE 24 239,454 130,000
545,084 629,473
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENAE
Trade payables FERTERRK 32 67,231 85,324
Contract liabilities ARAaE 34 61,749 84,299
Other payables and accruals E AR SR R EET B 35 22,926 52,364
Lease liabilities — current portion HEBGE - REHBH 36 754 -
Amount due to a non-controlling interest  JEfT — & IEIEARAR F XIE 45 2,625 2,061
Amount due to a shareholder FEfRH—Z IR FIE 45 5,219 1,540
Financial guarantee contract IS ERA R 33 - 49,787
Deposits received BETE 24 20,000 20,000
Tax liabilities HIBAE 1,605 1,684
182,109 297,059
Liabilities associated with assets classified DR EHE R
as held for sale BEHBNAG 24 6,525 -
188,634 297,059
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LEe RN X

At 31 December 2019
#2019 12A31H

2019 2018

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HraE ARBTR ARBTT

NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERTHAR
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY E 3 h=Ki

Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEaFE RS

NET ASSETS HERE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXERHE

Share capital AR

Reserves Ei]

Equity attributable to owners RATHEER ANEEERS
of the Company

Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R A

TOTAL EQUITY Higa

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 221 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
May 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Jing Ming
REEEA

Director

EF

36

39

40

356,450 332,414
807,777 889,933
264 -
807,513 889,933
1,469,376 1,469,376
(750,451) (604,640)
718,925 864,736
88,588 25,197
807,513 889,933

FLIOB BN EFHINGATEHRE  K5F
EH20209F5 A29 B B RIFER Y - ik
THEERERRE :

Leng Xiao Rong
B
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31HIEFE

At 1 January 2018 018 A1E 1469376 30476 105,028 3610 305 (898,361) 1,000,504 008 1022540
(Los)profit orthe year ER(EE)EH - - - - - (3905 (139219 154 (139061)
Other comprehensive income Ef2ENA
e that il not be recssfed Tegirkz
to profit o los: EnlE
Fairvalue gain on nvestments BORBETARNRE
inequity insruments at FVTOC! BARBATARED
fiya L - - - 2400 - - 2400 - 2400
ltem that may be reclssfied subsequently B4R EHAEE
to proft orloss: ERlEE
Bichange difference arsing on tension ~ RAEIEA £HEL
o foreign operations JESEE - - - - 1047 - 1047 1,568 2615
Other comprehenshie income for the year, ~ £RERZENA -
et of income ta MRkER - - - 2400 1,047 - 3447 1568 5015
Tota comprehensie EMRENARR)EE
income (expense) for the year - - - 2400 1,047 (139215 (135768) 170 (134,046)
Release of O resenve upon HERLA BETAL
disposal of equity intruments 2EAZ BT AR
athvToc! BEROAEEHA
ERER\NER - - - 1) - n - - -
Acquistion of subsiaries Note 37(c) ~ SEHB AT HE70) - - - - - - - 1437 1431
At 31 December 2018 H018F12A318 1469376 30476 105,08 58% 142 (1037464) 864,736 5,197 889933
2019F% EBARRERAERAT 63



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equ;ity
MERZSHR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTHAARG
Statutory Non-
Share Share surplus ATOC  Exchange  Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium Teserve Teserve Teserve losses Total interests Total
BOARE
HHARE
EEER  BENA

B BRER  OWE  MER  ERGR  RMEN LU it
RBOOD  RVBOD  RVBOOD  RMBOOD  RVBOID  RVBOOD  RMBOD  RVBON  RMBOND

ARETL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ABETn  ARETr  ARMTR  AREfRn  ARETR
(Note39) (Note ) (Noteb)

W9 () (W)

At 1 January 2019 A01951A718 1,469,376 300476 105028 58% 140 (1037464 864736 5197 889,933

Loss for the year EffE - - - - - (89019 (89049 (530 (04440

Other comprehenshe fepenselincome ~~ EE2E(ER A

e that will not be recassfed TEETEZER Bl
to profit orloss:
Fair value Ioss on investments BOREETAZGRE
inequity nstuments BAMRATAEAEN
At ATOC (hote ) DrERERIE) - - - [y - L - by
ltem that may be reclssfed subsequently  E# TR EFAEEERY
fo profit or loss: Eh:
Bichange difference arsing on translatin - R E 5 ERkE 7
of forign aperatons EizE - - - - 126 - 4 364 [El
Other comprehensive expense)income — EMEHAE(ER WA
forthe year, net of income tax TBEER - - - (57,188) 46 - (56,762) 364 (56,398)
Totel comprehensive EpzE
(expense) income or the year (FAsE - - - 068909 (14581) 50 (150839)
Release of AVTOCI reserve upon dsposal -~ 1 ERAR BIEETAE (D
of mvestment inequitynstuments st~ 2EUAZRETAR
ATOCI ote ) BRROAEE AR
RERAREH ) - - - (0 - 3000 - - -
Diidend paid to noncontoling interest ~ B F5EERBEZ RS
(Note46) (Kitte) - - - - - - S 1 11

Acquistion of subsidaries (Note 37 @) WENERFW#75) - - - - - -

77488 77488

At 31 December 2019 R2019%12R31R 1,469,376 320476 105,028 (54,290 188 (113513 718925 88,588 807,513
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEBZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium

Share premium comprises surplus between the value of net assets
acquired and the nominal value of domestic shares issued as a result
of the incorporation of the Company as a joint stock limited company
and the share premium from the issuance of H-shares.

Statutory surplus reserve

The Group is required to set aside 10% of its profit after taxation
prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and
regulations to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches
50% of their respective paid up capital or registered capital, where
further appropriation will be made at the directors’ recommendation.
Such reserve can be used to reduce any losses incurred or increased
the capital.

Distributable reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, distributable reserve shall
be the lower of the accumulated distributable profits determined in
accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations as stated
in the PRC statutory audited financial statements and the accumulated
distributable profits determined in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The Group did not have
any reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2019 and
2018.

Included in fair value gain on investments in equity instrument at
FVTOCI was approximately RMB3,000,000 which was related to equity
instrument that has been reclassified as held for sale during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and disposed during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Share of loss of associates
Impairment losses on goodwill
Impairment losses on other receivables
Impairment losses on loan and interest
receivables, net
Impairment losses on amount due
from an associate
Loss from changes in fair value of
investment properties
Loss from change in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net
Loss on written-off of property,
plant and equipment
Finance cost
Financial guarantee

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease in contract costs
Decrease in loan and interest receivables
Decrease in trade receivables
Increase in deposits and other receivables
Decrease in trade payables
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities
Increase in amount due to
a non-controlling interest
Decrease in other payables and accruals

Cash (used in) generated from
operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

BERY
BRILATE R
HE
RITHBHA
mE - BEX&

RiBITE
EREEENE
DIEME R EIER
AEAREEE
HAb MR B R E B 18
e E R e ) BOF 88

R (E B 1R
& e — g & R R SRR Y

MERE
BREMENRIABEEBNER

AR BE AR AR
DA BESBEESE
i B 2 R F B

WIEYE - BE K
RiEHER
BUE KA
BATSHER
BEERQRBWH
BERSRE
BRKAR D
JE U 30 K 1) B RR
AR OB
e MM EUTIE N
J& SRR RORL A
ARABECRD)EMN
e —%

FEFR AR B SRR IR
HAb e & et & AR

(Zf1)
REEERBOHAE
BN FTSHRR

(Xf1)
RERERBOHASSA

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT AREFIT
(93,284) (137,282)
(101) (77)

270 156
1,520 -
8,548 85,940

= 1,320

71,491 124
6,123 1,826

= 5,679

730 -

= 30
(1,072) (46)

5 —

53 -

= 49,787

(5,717) 7,457
8,797 61,875
31,255 60,617

= 128,701
(32,283) (17,292)
(18,093) (25,501)
(22,550) 84,299
564 109
(18,233) (27,979)
(56,260) 272,286
(167) (2,202)
(56,427) 270,084
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received
Deposit received from assets classified
as held for sale
Deposit paid for acquisition of properties
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of right-of-use assets
Purchase of prepaid lease payments
Net cash (outflow) inflow on
disposal of subsidiaries
Net cash (outflow) inflow on
acquisition of subsidiaries
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI

Proceed from disposal of equity instruments

at FVTOCI

Proceed from disposal of financial assets
at FVTPL

Increase in amount due from an associate

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in amount due to a shareholder

Decrease (increase) in restricted bank
balance

Dividend paid to a non-controlling interest

Repayment of lease liabilities

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented by:
Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash included in assets

classified as held for sale
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RITHREBERE

B

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
101 77
20,000 20,000
(20,364) (96,736)
- (252)
(6,450) -

= (6,000)

(482) 48
(15,413) 28,210
(63,931) -
= 5,400

- 85

- (2,990)
(86,539) (52,158)
3,679 1,540
6,914 (84,299)
(9,070) -
(939) -

584 (82,759)
(142,382) 135,167
149,258 11,198
768 2,893
7,644 149,258
7,627 149,258

17 -

7,644 149,258
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1.

68

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a joint stock limited company incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The addresses of the principal place of business of the
Company in PRC is Room 2-12-5, Block B, Diwang
Club Apartment, No. 19 Wenyi Road, Shenhe District,
Shenyang, the PRC.

The address of the registered office of the Company in
PRC is No. 1-4, 20A, Central Street, Shenyang Economic
and Technological Development Zone, the PRC.

The address of the principal place of business in Hong
Kong is 8/F, Skyway Centre, 23 Queen’s Road West,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 46
to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi ("RMB"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in Hong Kong whose functional currencies are
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”) are RMB.

The Company’s H-shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 16 December 1999.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation Uncertainty over Income
("Int") 23 Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to Hong Kong ~ Plan Amendment,
Accounting Standard Curtailment or Settlement
("HKAS") 19

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

RANRGREETHEEMEE
SHEUN(EFRMBEER ) (E)

(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are RNEEERFEMMHTBEGRIEELT

mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued) FEMEREENZ)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases 2.1 BEHMBHEERE 160 #H
g/

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded
HKAS 17 Leases ("HKAS 17"), and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
1 January 2019, the Group applies the definition
of a lease in accordance with the requirements set
out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date
of initial application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
at amounts equal to the related lease liabilities
adjusted by any prepaid or accrued lease payments
by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is
recongised in the opening accumulated losses and
comparative information has not been restated.

AEBEERAFEERERE
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RIERHMEOME - AEER
AMEEOES PR S HERRE
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LAERE165 - W RFTE
N20195F 1 B1BERERE R
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BEBEEVEREERSE
16.C8(b)(i) 57 1B K 1L FE E R 48
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. BRARBEGREETHEEMER

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") SR ([ HFEMBSER ) (E)
(Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are RAEFERINERMTGHEGREEET
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued) EBMEREER(Z)
2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 2.1 BB ERELERNE 1658
E/#E)
As a lessee (Continued) TEAEATAN (4B)
When applying the modified retrospective RBERERAEETBREE
approach under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group A 1655 B THRIEETEH A
applied the following practical expedients to leases E o REBIRFIER S LR
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS EIHE S LB E R Y LT
17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant BEE B ERE 175518
to the respective lease contracts: BREHENIHEERIATE
BRAIITREE 7 E
o elected not to recognise right-of-use assets . RIS AAERR BN E
and lease liabilities for leases with lease term B EHE®EET12EA NG
ends within 12 months of the date of initial R EEREEES
application; and EREEas &k
o excluded initial direct costs from measuring . REREBBH:TSE
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial FREERMGIBE
application. BERKIN o

201958 BHEARRERAERAT 71
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. RFHEHREETNE EHERE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") SR FEMRESER ) (&)

(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are REEERFENH T ARG RIEELT

mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued) EBMEREER(Z)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 2.1 FTEHBHEERF 165 H

g%

As a lessee (Continued) 1EAEATFAN ()
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases RIEERLRI DB AEEEHERN
previously classified as operating leases, the HECHEaER  A&EE0
Group has applied incremental borrowing rates REXRERBEERABESR
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial FRENISEEAFE - HESE
application. The weighted average incremental EERERANINETLEIESE
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group RFNENF27%E4.75%

entities range from 2.7% to 4.75%.

At 1 January
2019
72019518 1H

RMB’000
AR®TIT

Operating lease commitment as at 31 72018412 A31 B & AT E&#
December 2018 2,071

Lease liabilities discounted at relevant  IZiBRIIL S E KT XN ERE
incremental borrowing rates 1,985

Less: Practical expedient — leases with & : BB AI{THEE 5% — T HA

lease term ending within 12 RE R FER B A st
months from the date of initial 12{E AR REE
application (81)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1BNHEEE 1,904
Analysed as: D
Current B 915
Non-current JEE 989

1,904
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. BRARBEGREETHEEMER

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") SR ([FEMESEDN ) (&)
(Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are REAEERFEREAGREEE]
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued) EBMEREER(Z)
2.1  HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 21 FEHBEHEEEHE 167 #E
B/#&)
As a lessee (Continued) TEAERTN (B)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own A2019F1 818  BIEEBAN
use as at 1 January 2019 comprises the following: FHEEENEREBENT
ESF
Right-of-
use assets
ERREE
Note RMB’000

Krst AR®TT

Right-of-use assets relating to & B S B 75 3 5 4E R
operating leases recognised F16R e iR ELERE
upon application of HKFRS 16 BRANFEREEE 1,904
Reclassified from prepaid WIENHEENREFHLE a
lease payments 9,000
10,904
Notes: Bisr
(a) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC for (a) A2018%F 12 A31H » #H1E
own used properties were classified as prepaid lease BAMENTEBEE
payment as at 31 December 2018. Upon application AR ZESEAENBE
of HKFRS 16, the prepaid lease payments amounting o NIEREBBHREE
to RMB9,000,000 were reclassified to right-of-use Bl 16551 - TENMEENR
assets. 49 AR #9,000,0007LE EF

DEEEREEE -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. FHE¥EHREEITHEEHIEH
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") &) ([ FEMEEEn ) (&)
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are NEEERSENMTBEGHREELT

mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued) FEEMEREENZ)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 2.1 FBEBHERELERNE168H
B/#)

The transition to HKFRS 16 has no impact on the
accumulated losses at 1 January 2019.

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 January 2019. Line times
that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

MR2019% 118 » BEEES
BT SR & RIS 1658 ¥ 251
BIWESE -

HA201951 A1 B4RA BN
RAEANSEEIERATH
B RZBEHYENBEATE
BN o

Carrying
Carrying amounts amounts
previously under
reported HKFRS 16
at 31 December at 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
#201951A18
SRR REEEUE
2018412 A31H HREERE 1658
2HMEREE HE ERE{E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT AE%TT
Non-current Assets EREHEE
Right-of-use assets FHEEE - 10,904 10,904
Prepaid lease payment ~ FENFERN 9,000 (9,000) -
Current Liabilities REAR
Lease liabilities HEABE-RBED
— current portion - 915 915
Non-current Liabilities JEFEI& &
Lease liabilities HEABE-FERBH
- non-current portion - 989 989
Note:  For the purpose of reporting cash flows from Bfat - BRIRMEEEMEE2019F

operating activities under indirect method for the
year ended 31 December 2019, movements in
working capital have been computed based on
opening consolidated statement of financial position
as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.

74

NRANBLEFERELS
¥BHMBESREMS » 28
EeEBEREN ERER
201941 81 B HA¥4R & B
BRI KETE -

Annual Report 2019  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



e e e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material*

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Benchmark Reform*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgements. In particular, the
amendments:

o include the concept of "obscuring" material
information in which the effect is similar to omitting
or misstating the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users
from "could influence" to "could reasonably be
expected to influence"; and

o include the use of the phrase "primary users”
rather than simply referring to "users" which
was considered too broad when deciding what
information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group's annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application of
the amendments is not expected to have significant impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group
but may affect the presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the "New Framework") and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards

The New Framework:
o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on
rights and a new liability definition that is likely to
be broader than the definition it replaces, but does
not change the distinction between a liability and
an equity instrument;

o discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select
a measurement basis for a particular asset or
liability;

o states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

o discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined
financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred
to the previous versions of the framework. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2020, with earlier application permitted.
Other than specific standards which still refer to the
previous versions of the framework, the Group will rely on
the New Framework on its effective date in determining
the accounting policies especially for transactions, events
or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the
accounting standards.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (the “Companies Ordinance”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain investment
properties and financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounting for in
accordance with the scope of HKFRS 16 (since January
2019) or HKAS 17 Leases (before application of HKFRS 16),
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs
is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisition of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard;
and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
of which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary's net assets in the event of
liguidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree's identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the "measurement period" (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does
not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
the group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purpose are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interests in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interests in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value
upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

FEERBE(E)
REBEATMHEE(F

EAKETBEBERRBEEAY
BNE - BALENRRETHNE2E
AR ISR ESE RN RSE
R o i AR E R E R AT & R R A
S AZRERR BBV BREER
FOMMENHHEE - AIAKEER
ZABERAEBEFERERD M
RAEBERREBRFERFODA
BfE - B2 Q)RR mE B ST R
e b h BB 2 R R AE R s ()
FISEREAABEZANEZRE  an
BEEHEBEARMNKEHEREA
BR o MtSN AREEREAMEE LS
EWASLE 2 R RERNAAESEA
B AEEBENTERNEREE
EXAEMFEEERR - Hit - 8
LRBEACREMEEBARERL
W EE e ERBEEERA
ERENDEERS  IAKEER
HE B0 &R B2 R RIRE IR
BaREERREEER O RERE(ER
BN BEHE) -

ERBEARNRERBRAEDE
POIR A B AR B 46 A A 8 A 2
e IR RSB DR AR -
DA BETEERTE -

fie 7N 55 [ IR EL OBk i 0 R B R R A
REmMARBEEERAEDRE 58
Al BERENHERREERA
EREHN D EERS  IAKEEH
5T AT 50 EL b 2 T A T BB B )R
Bt AR a B RE DB

DRREE -

fiaf 2 [ B A8 B AN SR B M B 2 R AIETT
R BEBERANEREAEE
BENBRAT  HBBEQREITRS
PREEME N RERT @R AKE N
IRE MR PR o

Annual Report 2019  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



‘7 “-g

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a complete sale
within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant
subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment,
in an associate, the investment or the portion of the
investment that will be disposed of is classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are met, and
the Group discontinues the use of the equity method in
relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale
from the time when the investment (or a portion of the
investment) is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (or disposal group) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair values less costs to sell which continue to
be measured in accordance with the accounting policies as
set out in respective sections.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when "control" of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component.
A significant financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its construction
of infrastructure and development of properties. The Group
first assesses whether these costs qualify for recognition as
an asset in terms of other relevant Standards, failing which
it recognises an asset for these costs only if they meet all
of the following criteria:

€)] the costs related directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of
the Group that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

(©) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in Note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in Note 2)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in Note 2)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise, expect for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group's
interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rate at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserves (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intented use or sale.

All other borrowings costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate
of interest is treated as a government grant, measured
as the difference between proceeds received and the fair
value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwvill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below).
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management and for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Effective 1 January 2019, investment properties also
include leased properties which are being recognised as
right-of-use assets upon application of HKFRS 16 and
subleased by the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from change in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Effective 1 January 2019, a leased
property which is recognises as a right-of-use asset upon
application of HKFRS 16 is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifieds the sublease as a finance
lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHBE(Z)
Financial instruments (Continued) EMTH(E)
Financial assets (Continued) HEEEE)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

HBEEN D ERE R E(E)

108

assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income (“OCI") and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’'s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the "other income” line
item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the "loss from
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss" line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") on financial assets (including
loan and interest receivables, amount due from an
associate, other receivables, bank balances and restricted
bank balances), and other item (financial guarantee
contract) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

3.

FEERBE(E)
®MIR(E)
HERE(E)

MBEERIREE B HIHREERF9
WARETTRIE G2 B R A Z R E

AREERBIERBHHREERIEIW
RRER I 15 B E (B RS SF
B BB g R EFIE - e
Wk ~ RTTEEER R IR BIRTITAEER) I
HibIRE (M BRERE Q) ETERME
EEE(IAMEREBR]) TRERF
- FAHEEBESE NS HMEH
HIE - URREERR B TR
IATREVEE ) o

E2HEHEEBERIENERTIAN
BERHFHAMARRENEHMESL
MIEHEEER - HEmE - 124
EHEEEE(12EBRAFBERS
ROBERRESAHR12EARATEE
BENENEMHEFELENSO M
BEHEEER - FEDREAKESR
A EEERRE  UYMEBARER
= BERLERREERRE B BN
B EARKAR IR FHEEH AR -

AR TAMS  AREEE
BER2{E A B ES B RN E R
- BRIFEEE R B 1) 5 R AR AR
ER - ARBEREIYEREE
B - HERTHEREHBNEER
1B DIRBER NS ERARELEERD
Ky R] REME Bk E SRR SRR SR AN E ©

Annual Report 2019  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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3.

112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contract, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined,
the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the discount
rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group's other receivables, loan and interest
receivables, amounts due to an associate,
bank balances and restricted bank balances
are assessed as a separate group. Loans to
related parties are assessed for expected
credit losses on an individual basis);
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of loan and
interest receivables, other receivables and amount
due from an associate where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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3.

118

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to accumulated losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including (trade payables, other payables
and accruals, lease liabilities and amount due to a non-
controlling interest/a shareholder) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and contract costs

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and contract costs to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and contract costs are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and contract costs (Continued)

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other
assets related to the relevant contracts in accordance
with applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any,
for assets capitalised as contract costs is recognised to
the extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining
amount of consideration that the Group expects to receive
in exchange for related goods or services less the costs
which relate directly to providing those goods or services
that have not been recognised as expenses. The assets
capitalised as contract costs are then included in the
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to which they
belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment of that
cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and contract costs (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and contract costs (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating units
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating units or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal and constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the
effect of the time value of money is material).

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA
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4.

124

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The Directors have not come
across any significant areas where critical judgement are
involved in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Estimated impairment loss on deposit paid for
acquisition of properties

The impairment loss on deposit paid for acquisition of
properties was based on the assessment of the recoverable
amount of such deposit, which requires an estimation
of the fair value of the properties at the date of the
acquisition. The assumptions include management’s
estimate on the construction costs that will be expended
to complete the development and the gross development
value of the properties. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the properties.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment loss on deposit paid for
acquisition of properties (Continued)

Impairment loss is recognised where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that such deposit is higher than the
estimated fair value of the properties at the date of the
acquisition. Where the actual is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
deposit paid for acquisition of properties and impairment
loss in the period which the actual outcome is known or
such estimate has been changed.

Estimated impairment loss on deposit paid for
potential investments

The impairment loss on deposit paid for potential
investments was based on the assessment of the
recoverable amount of such deposit, which requires
an estimation of the fair value of the net assets of the
companies to be acquired at the date of the acquisition.
The assumption includes management’s best estimate of
the set of economic condition in the future.

Impairment loss is recognised where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that such deposit is higher than
the estimated fair value of the net assets of the companies
to be acquired at the date of the acquisition. Where
the actual is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of deposit paid for
potential investments and impairment loss in the period
which the actual outcome is known or such estimate has
been changed.

Fair value of investment property

Investment property is carried in the consolidated
statement of the financial position at 31 December 2019
at its fair value of approximately RMB19,400,000 (2018:
Nil). The fair value was based on a valuation on the
property conducted by an independent firm of professional
valuer using property valuation techniques which involve
certain assumptions of market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result
in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
property and corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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4.

126

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment property (Continued)
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’'s unlisted
equity instruments, financial assets, amounting to
RMB52,743,000 (2018: RMB49,000,000) are measured
at fair value with fair value being determined based on
significant unobserved inputs using valuation techniques.
Judgement and estimation are required in establishing
the relevant valuation technigues and the relevant inputs
thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could result in material adjustments to fair value of these
instruments. See Note 6(c) for further disclosures.

Provision of ECL for loan and interest receivables and
other receivables

Impairment loss on loan and interest receivables and other
receivables represent managements’ best estimate of
losses incurred at the reporting date under ECL models.
Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan and
interest receivables and other receivables have increased
significantly since their initial recognition. The Group is
required to exercise judgement in making assumptions
and estimates when calculating impairment loss, including
any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from other
receivables portfolio and historical loss experience on the
basis of the relevant observable data that reflects current
economic conditions.

The measurement of the ECL involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the selection of appropriate models and
determination of relevant key measurement parameters,
criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default was incurred,
economic indicators for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and weightings,
management consideration due to significant uncertain
factors not covered in the models and the estimated future
cash flows. The information about the ECL are disclosed in
Note 6(b).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment property (Continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and Hong
Kong. However, the implementation of the tax various
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the
PRC. There are many transactions and calculation for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB19,621,000 (2018: RMB6,113,000) and
approximately of HK$10,492,000 (2018: HK$10,334,000)
available for offset against future profits in the PRC and
Hong Kong respectively. No deferred tax asset in relation
to unused tax losses has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. In case where
there are future profits generated to utilise the tax losses,
a material deferred tax asset may arise, which would be
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year in which such profits are recorded.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes lease liabilities, amounts due to a non-
controlling interest and shareholder, net of cash and
bank balances and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on the recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BERREE

AEBEERETEANRRAEE 2
BERENSELE  WEBBLES
NG AR BIRRERZ AL - K
SEEREREEFAR -

AEBZERNGEHEBEFER B
HEAE - EAIFHERBRR RBRR
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ESTHEMEANGEE - (FREHD
EXRBEOER - REES 22
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&MIA

a. Categories of financial instruments a. &R T ARER
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTRT ARBFIT
Financial assets HMBEE
Equity instruments at FVTOC! BR EBEFIARMEE
WARIBRAT A 52,743 49,000
At amortised cost REESHAR 177,506 362,552
Financial liabilities HMBAR
At amortised cost RHESHR 99,019 141,289
Financial guarantee contracts BISIERE A = 49,787
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMTEE)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERBEERERKE
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include AEEBHNTESM T EBIER
equity instruments at FVTOCI, loan and interest NRBEFAEMEE AL
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount BATEH - ERERLFE -
due from (to) an associate/a non-controlling e R EAM R - U ()
interest/a shareholder, bank balances and cash, —RIEL AT — R IEE R
restricted bank balances, trade payables, other B —ZBREFIE - RITEHS
payables and accruals, lease liabilities and financial LEE -  ZREERITEE -
guarantee contract. Details of the financial EEREZR - HinEN = R ESt
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The BH . HEaBRVBERE
risks associated with these financial instruments 40 ST A BN
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate EoBZESHTAEENE
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity e ISR (SR - 7
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks KEMGLNEMERRRE) 28
are set out below. The management of the Group REErsEcRE o X
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure I an{a] PR AR Z SR AR
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely AEFBETEEBEE RERRE
and effective manner. BB - DARE(R % B RN A5 b b BR
HUB & HHE 1 ©
Market risk iz -]
0] Currency risk (0 B
The Company and its subsidiaries have intra- RKAFIREWBATA
group balances with other group entities B H i 5 B F AL LASNE
denominated in foreign currency which also HEMEBERNARRE
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. £ RS AREE R
BEE LR -
The carrying amount of the intra-group RIBEEARAEEER
balances that are denominated in currencies TR LN KL
other than the functional currencies of the HEMEBAQ G B
relevant group entities at the end of the HEEEmMEMT ¢
reporting period are as follows:
Liabilities
R
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
Intra-group ES=N
balances NG
HK$ BT 308,932 329,811
RMB AR 353,520 272,440
20195 EEARBERGERAT 129
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6.

130

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2018: 5%) increase
and decrease in RMB against HK$. 5%
(2018: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes intra-group
balances where the denomination of the
intra-group balance is in a currency other
than the functional currency of the lender
or the borrower. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in post-tax loss for the
year and a negative number indicates an
increase in post-tax loss the year if RMB
appreciate 5% against the foreign currency.
There would be an equal and opposite
impact on post-tax loss for the year if RMB
depreciates 5% against HK$.

6.

eI R(E)
b. MERREEERRBEZ)
MR (E)
()  EEmEEE)
BUREDT

HK$ BT
RMB AR #E

T IESRRF A%
BRREL - MBS
FABRTIREIEEN -
fid AR 5B TR B
5% @ AIEFARER
BEARERARARZF
£

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
15,447 16,490
(17.676) (13,622)

TERFAVAEBBRAR
WSS TT R BEFHE R BT
E5% (20184 : 5% )
ZHBUREDNT o FTAMK
REEH R 5% (20184 -
5%) BREZEEA
BAEERIINER R
bR WREKREREH
[EXRSIEBRELEE) 25T
H - BREEIMBIESE
BRARBES(ZE
BEA R B EEESRIAER
ANk EFRATNBEE B A
HNEEEETE) c AR
BN ONEEFHES% 0 A

Annual Report 2019  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to lease liabilities and
fixed-rate loan and interest receivables and
fixed-rate other receivables.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances and restricted bank balances
as detailed in Note 30 and Note 31
respectively.

The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates risk
on financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this
note.

Bank balances and restricted bank balances
are excluded from sensitive analysis as the
Directors consider that the exposure of cash
flow interest rate risk arising from them is
insignificant.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA
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6.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SBMTAE)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEEEERBE (&)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) ikl A=)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
measured at FVTOCI. The Group invested
in unquoted equity securities for investees
operating in bank industry sector for long
term strategic purposes which had been
designated as FVTOCI. Price risk was
monitored by the management of the
Group and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analyses for unquoted equity
securities with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 3 were disclosed in
Note 6(c).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group's credit risk exposure are
primarily attributable to other receivables and
deposits, loan and interest receivables, amount due
from an associate, bank balances, restricted bank
balances and financial guarantee contract. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated
with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment
for financial assets and other items under ECL
model. Information about the Group’s credit risk
management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable,
are summarised as below:

(iii)  EMEESER
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Loan and interest receivables

The Group’s management manages and analyses
the credit risk for each of their new and existing
customers before standard payment terms and
conditions are offered. The management assesses
the credit quality of each customer based on
customer’s background information, financial
position, past experience and relevant factors. The
Group also reviews from time to time the financial
position of the customers.

Reversal of impairment loss of approximately
RMB6,972,000 and impairment loss of
approximately RMB 13,095,000 (2018: impairment
loss of approximately RMB1,826,000) was
recognised during the year. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in this
note.

The Group’s has concentration of credit risk of
50.7% and 49.3% of the trade receivables was
due from two debtors respectively in the credit
business.

Amount due from an associate

The Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the associate. The Group’s credit
risks in these balances are mitigated through the
value of the assets held by these entities and the
power to participate the relevant activities of these
entities. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the amount due from an associate was
disposed through disposal of subsidiaries. As at 31
December 2018, the Directors believe that there are
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on lifetime ECL (credit-impaired).
No impairment loss (2018: impairment loss of
approximately HK$5,679,000) was recognised
during the year. Details of the quantitative
disclosures are set out below in this note.
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EBARHE - K2018%F12
A31H  EFERE ZEFHE
MEE R B B8RRI K
ELA - MASEER2EEY
SEEB(ERBEEERE)E
R ERE - SR EERR
EEE (20184 - MEBEY
5,679,000/ 70) - BE=E{L#E
BEARHE AN T3
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Bank banks and restricted bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances and restricted bank
balances are limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for bank balances by reference
to information relating to probability of default and
loss given default of the respective credit rating
grades published by external credit rating agencies.
Based on the average loss rates, the 12m ECL
on bank balances and restricted bank balances is
considered to be insignificant.

Other receivables

The Directors make periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivable based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. For those other receivables that
the Directors believe that there is no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL. For those other receivables that
are past due or there is significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Directors provide
impairment based on lifetime ECL. Impairment
loss of approximately RMB71,491,000 (2018:
RMB124,000) was recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out
below in this note.

6.

eI R(E)
b. HMHERREEBRRKE(Z)
15 HmBE R i (BT (2)

IRTTAEER R IR IR 748

MRR S H BERREETR
BEATSEEFAZEREFE
ﬁﬁ HURTT 402 R X IR 4R
EHMEERBRAER - A%
@ﬂ%*ﬁ%%*ﬁﬁg LR
Fresth Sz B B HBER
MEAIBRENERBIBITA
e E12E ATEIEEEIE -
ERFHEBEE  BOEHK
RIR IR TAE SRR 1218 ATEH
EEBBHERATK -

EEREFELHERLE  BE
RERIA R AR B B ATHE
HEEREEER  HEAME
Wz MTW@&FWﬁE%ﬂ
BIRHE © BLEx S H b UK

BOEERA Em*%w
KzEeHENEERRILER
EEM - RAEERE12E
AEMEEEBRELRER
- R AN A HRER

UREERBREZ EANZE
Hib YR - EERIBEZHIE

HEEBEELDRERE -
FABRBREEBEEBHARYE
71,491,000t (20184 : AR
#124,0007T) - B E
HIFHB R AKX o
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GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMTEE)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERBEEEERBE(Z)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERREFGE)
(Continued)
Financial guarantee contract BIFEHER A #)

For financial guarantee contract, the maximum
amount that the Group has guaranteed under
the guarantee contract was RMB49,787,000 as
at 31 December 2018. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the financial guarantee contract
was disposed through disposal of subsidiaries. As
at 31 December 2018, the Directors believe that
there are significant increase in credit risk of these

TP ERELHME - 742018
F12A318 » AEEBEREER
BHEHERANZSE2EAA
R #£49,787,0007T » & & 2019
F12ANBIFE - BEE
REWTVEBHEWBERARE
€ - 2018 12H318 ' &%
RAE ZEFRENEERKRS

amounts since initial recognition and the Group BRERAREBEZE FF - ﬁﬁzjx
provided impairment based on lifetime ECL (credit E.E%Hﬁgﬁg{;j’frgﬁa(aﬁ
impaired). No impairment loss (2018: Impairment S = SORE) (EE R E R -

loss of HK$49,787,000) was recognised during the
year. Details of the financial guarantee contract and
quantitative disclosures are set out in Note 33 and
this note.

EWIﬁEWME%EQmS
F A E1E4949,787,000%
J0) - BEEUBEREHREL
55 M R B BB 5E33 AT
5T o

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment REBHAL=ZERRE L BIE
comprises the follow categories: (HEIELATER -
Internal Trade Other
credit rating Description receivables financial assets
hBERER i g RnEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does Lifetime ECL 12mECL
not have any past-cue amounts -not credit-impaired
{EmR RHOENERE AT BEFREE 2HRAEERR NEARBEESR
~BHREERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL 12mECL
usually settle in full -not credit-impaired
BR2E ERABERIBARENERERHEN PHEREERE 2EREHEERR
-ERESRE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
since initial recognition through information - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
i34 [FERRENSRRREZEN PHREAEERR PHRAEERR
(BARHBIINTERESNER) -BHAEERE -EHREEHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the assetis credit impaired  Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired ~~ Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired
BR ERBRTAELREENE 2HRAEERR 2HRAEERR
- HREERE —HREERE
Write-off There is evidence that the debtor is in severe financial ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
i RERE mFﬁAaAEEW@H$¢I$ ARAR  HEEELE HHEmEeR

AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTARZ)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERSEEEERBE(Z)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEERREFEE)
(Continued)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of TEH N AREBNEEER
the Group'’s financial assets and financial guarantee FRIERANBETTEREEE
contract, which are subject to ECL assessment: BIEOEEREH O
External  Internal
credit credit 12m or 20.19 2018
rating rating Jifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
SRR ABRR  N@RHRA 20195 2018F
i i FHREER FE#E FEEE
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
3 AR%TT ARBTR ARETRT ARETH
Financial assets at
amortised costs
RESRFHENMEEE
Bank balances 30 Baa2-Al N/A 12mECL 1411 146,170
RTHH TER NEARSHEEER
Restricted hank balances 31 Al N/A 12mECL 80,542 87,456
XRHBTES TER NEARSEEER
Other receivables 29 NA (Note a) 12mECL 22,530 16,514
LAV TER (fita)  ERBHEERE
Lifetime ECL (not 10,950 -
credit-impaired)
FHRBEERE
(BELREESR)
Credit-impaired 113,000 146,480 - 16,514
IREERE
Loan and interest receivables 28 NA Watch list ~ 12m ECL - 119,181
BREFRAE NER B2eE  EREHEESE
Doubtful  Lifetime ECL (not 16,080 -
credit-impaired)
G rHRBEERE
(BLREEFR)
Loss Credit-impaired 15,732 31,812 - 119,181
BB HREERE
Amount due from an associate 45 NA Loss Lifetime ECL - 7355
(credit-impaired)
el — e N EE TER BB *HEHEERE
(BREERE)
Other item
HER
Financial guarantee contract 33 NA Loss Lifetime ECL - 49,787
(Note b) (credit-impaired)
BBERAN D) NER B8 rHRBEERE
(PREERE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTARZ)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEEEERBE (&)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEERREFGE)

(Continued)

Notes: Hiat -

(a For the purpose of internal credit risk management, (a) MAREERBRETEmNS
the Group uses past due information to assess 7R £ [ FI| B 18 B A k) AR BT
whether credit risk has increased significantly since EERKRE VP ERURS
initial recognition. LEEZEE -

Not past
due/no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
bk 30
By EETEERY e
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFTT ARETT ARETT
2019 20195
Other receivables H e R 113,000 33,480 146,480
2018 20184
Other receivables H bR - 16,514 16,514
Amount due from an associate e — B A R RUE 7,355 - 7,355

(b) For financial guarantee contract, the gross carrying (b) MBS ERELMES » Bl
amount represents the maximum amount the Group MERRANEERERBSD
has guaranteed under the respective contract. BERNSESSE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTARZ)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERBETEEERBE(Z)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERREFEE)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Hiat - (&)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances TREHE G HAL B R EE
that has been recognised for other receivables: BEEIER -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
1218 A 2 HATEER 2 HATE
HEHEE =R EEBE
R  (BEEERE) (HREEHE) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AR®BTET ARETRT ARETRT
At 1 January 2018 R20185F1H1H - - - -
New financial asset originated PR s aE 124 - - 124
At 31 December 2018 2018F12A31H 124 - - 124
Change due to financial instruments ~ F#2019F1 818
recognised as at REBTEHEE) -
1 January 2019:
- Impairment losses recognised —BERREEE 49 - _ 49
New financial asset originated FrEs et & E 845 684 69,913 71,442
At 31 December 2019 #2019 1283180 1,018 684 69,913 71,615

Changes in the loss allowances for other receivables are
mainly due to:

Hi BB BB BN ES T ZHRN
AT BB -

Increase in lifetime ECL

2T EREREN
Increase Not credit- Credit-
in 12m ECL impaired impaired
12(8R A
EEEREM EEHAE HAGEHEKE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AR%TT AR%TT
Financial assets originated FrEs e s & E 845 684 69,913
2018
Increase in lifetime ECL
2 EEBREEEREM
Increase Not credit- Credit-
in 12m ECL impaired impaired
121E A FaER
EEEEE M EEERE HREERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETT ARKETFT AR¥EFT
Financial assets originated FrEse s & 124 - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

b.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTARZ)
Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEEEERBE (&)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEERREFGE)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Hizx - (&)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances TR EREWER LT EERR
that has been recognised for loan and interest receivables: BB IR ¢
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
1218 A 2 HATEER 2 HATEHR
BHEE EEEE EEEE
BB (BEERE) (HREERE) “aEt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARET T ARETF T
At 1 January 2018 H2018F1A1H 9,396 - - 9,396
Changes due to financial Ap2018F1A1H
instruments recognized as HREHMIA
at 1 January 2018: e
— Impairment losses recognised —BHERRERBE 1,826 1,826
Exchange adjustments [E 3 R 242 - - 242
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 11,464 - - 11,464
Change due to financial E2019F1A1H
instruments recognised as REBTA
at 1 January 2019: HEE)
— Transfer to lifetime ECL — R 2 HTE
(not credit impaired) ZEEE
(EEERE) (2,080) 2,080 -
— Transfer to lifetime ECL — w2 HEREE
(credit-impaired) BiE(HBREERE) (2,724) - 2,724 -
— Impairment losses recognised —BERREEE - 128 12,967 13,095
— Impairment losses reversed —BREREBE (6,472) (500) - (6,972)
— Written off —H g8 (209) - - (209)
Exchange adjustments [E 3 AR 21 33 41 95
At 31 December 2019 7201951283180 = 1,741 15,732 17,473
139

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA



Ay SR e,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMTEE)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEEEERBE (&)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEERREFGE)
(Continued)
Changes in the loss allowances for loan and interest EWERRF BEBEENE
receivables are mainly due to: BT ERRATRIBME :

Increase/(decrease)
in lifetime ECL
2HFAMERER
/(D)

Decrease Not credit- Credit-
in 12m ECL impaired impaired
12 A

BERBRRY EEHAE HAEHEKE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR®TT AR®TT

Debtors in financial difficulty and HERAIENEFALERE
transferred to credit-impaired HIREERE (2,724) - 2,724
Past due and transferred to lifetime ECL & #1 Hit #& 8 = 2 HAFE £
(not credit-impaired) EEEB(BEERE) (2,080) 2,080 =
Settlement received from debtors WEHANEELEE (6,472) (500) =
Further impairment made for not credit- Ht 4 (=& 6 (B FE U FR B
impaired receivables e E—SRE - 128 -
Further impairment made for debtor PREFRI A EEA
in financial difficulty EL#E— S RE - - 12,967
2018
Increase in lifetime ECL
ZHiTEHA (S B BRI N
Increase Not credit- Credit-
in 12m ECL impaired impaired
1218 AFEHR
EEEEEM EEERE HREERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKETIT ARETT ARETT

Further impairment made for not credit- 5t £ (= & 5 (& fE Uz 8
impaired receivables ELE—FRE 1,826 - -
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HE2019F12A31AILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMTEE)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEEEERBE (&)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEERREFEEZ)
(Continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TREY O phE — SR
allowances that has been recognised for amount TIFUEMER R EE RS R -

due from an associate:

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
ZHITEH]
EEEE
(LREERE)
RMB'000
AREFTT
At 1 January 2018 20185 1A1H -
Changes due to financial instruments ER2018F1 /18
recognised as at 1 January 2018: REBTANE
— Impairment losses recognised —ERRAEEE 4,365
New financial assets originated FTEs BRI B E 1,314
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 5,679
Changes due to financial instruments ER2019F1 /18
recognised as at 1 January 2019: EReMIANE
— Disposal through disposal of a subsidiary —FERHE—FNEATIEE (5,679)
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12A31AH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTARZ)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERBETERAERKE(Z)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERREFEGZE)
(Continued)
Changes in the loss allowances for amount due FE U — RSB 24 N B ZE B 1E
from an associate are mainly due to: HEHNEHTERRATNRIER
o
2019 2018
Decrease in Increase in
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) B(EEliEMIoE]{El))
2019 20184
2HWE EIHELE
EEER EEEE
(HBREERE) NS
my B
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARET T
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHHBAR (5,679) -
Legal proceeding arise on E— & R R E L
an associate NELIEIN - 4,365
Financial assets originated FTEs MM EE = 1,314
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HE2019F12A31AILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTARZ)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERSEERERKEZ)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEER R EF )
(Continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TREH O IEERE LIFE
allowances that has been recognised for the RS BERER R
financial guarantee contract:
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
2 HITEH]
B
(HRIEERE)
RMB'000
ARETFT
At 1 January 2018 M2018%1A1H -
Change in credit risk EERERE 49,787
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 49,787
Changes due to financial instruments ER2019F1 18
recognised as at 1 January 2019: ERALRIANE
— Disposal through disposal —FRPE—HHBARLE
of a subsidiary (49,787)
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H -
Changes in the loss allowances for financial MBRRANEERENED
guarantee contract are mainly due to: FERRUATEEMR
2019 2018
Decrease Increase
in lifetime in lifetime
(credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
ECL ECL
2R FHIFEH
BEHBA {%EESTE
(HBREGR) (gl i)
Y 0
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBFIT
Legal proceeding arise ZELIEIN - 49,787
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMEAR (49,787) -
Liquidity risk REBELmE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group FEERBESRERAE - K
monitors and maintains a level of bank balance and EEERWERRITHERKIE
cash deemed adequate by the Directors to finance 2R —RIKFE - ZKEEES
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of RERHENANEE ZEE -
fluctuations in cash flows. R B IR & R 2R B FT S 2R A
7K
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6.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SBMTAE)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEEEERBE (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BEEESmE(Z)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAVWAEBHRSBEEH T
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. BUER] o ZETVIRAEEHT]
The table has been drawn up based on the WEREENKaENSEER
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities BB ENREEE SR
based on the earliest date on which the Group can ERE - TREBHERESARE
be required to pay. The table includes both interest FBERAE o
and principal cash flows.
Liquidity tables TEE DK
On
Weighted ~ demand or Total
average within Over5  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year 25 years years  cash flows amounts
e BEARE 1t
Fgie  BOMF 155% ik REREER EE
% RMB"000 RVB'000 RVB000 RVB'000 RIB"000
ARETL  ARMTT  ARETT ARBTR ARBTR
2019 019%
Trade payables B NARER 67,231 - - 67,31 67,31
Other payables and accruals BN RETER N/AFER 22,92 - - 22,92 22,926
Amount due to anon-controling interest B[ —23HERR R NAFER 2,625 - - 2,625 2,625
Amount due to a shareholder EN-alkEE NAFER 5219 - - 5219 5,219
Lease ablites HERE 214 775 28 - 1,064 1018
98,776 289 - 99,065 99,019
2018 2018
Trade payables ERER NANER 85,324 - - 85,324 85,324
Other payables and accruals EHENTRETER NA R 52,304 - - 52,364 52,364
Amount due to a non-controlling nterest B[ —% 33 RRRFE NA TR 2,061 - - 2,061 2,061
Amount due to a shareholder ER-akEE NIA TS8R 1,540 - - 1,540 1540
Finandial quarantee contract HRERAY NIA T8 49,787 - - 49,787 49,787
191,076 - - 06 191076
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guarantee amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Board is responsible for determining
fair value and the process of determining fair value.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The Board works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

6.

®MIR(E)

b. HMHERREEBRRKE(Z)
ADELEE(E)
HBETK (&)

ERMBEREORBRAE
EREEBEERLTHE TN E
K z&@mRRERSTE
ABERER) - RRRREH
RZHEH  ARERBASRER
BERS BB IR 2 P REIETR
1K - R - MG AR TR
SITRBRERIRHEARZ AT
M TSBURR R 5 77 P B 1)
EREBREFEEXER
ER 2 AIREIE ) M A 1L -

eRTAZARRENE

AEEFHD BT ARMEH
HBEMBRAREBEAE -EF
CHETAARBERETEAA

EBEMNBERS -

KT AR EER - AKREF
RAISNmEABERE - &
RBEFE-—RBAE ~AEEHE
RIBE =T AERMGEMRE
I8 - EF S H]EMRING
HEMBZAIENEILSEN
RERM R AR T A B -
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HE2019F12A31AILFE

6.

146

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SmMTARE)
c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments C. EMTAZAREBHENEZ)

(Continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (i) EEFHESEZLR
that are measured at fair value on a BEIEESEEL 2
recurring basis REEHE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are REIREHIK - NEEH
measured at fair value at the end of each WA EEETIEAR
reporting period. The following table gives BETTE - TEHBW
information about how the fair values of METZEHBKEE
these financial assets are determined (in ZANBHE(LCEER
particular, the valuation technique(s) and B 2 5 E T e A2k
inputs used). B) e

Level 3
E=M
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREBFIT
Equity instruments at FVTOCI RO REERA
HthZ2EKkA
MEEEIR 52,743 49,000
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTARZ)
[ Fair value measurements of financial instruments C. ERMTATARBHEHNEZ)

(Continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (i) FEFHESEZLR
that are measured at fair value on a BEYIZESEEL 2
recurring basis (Continued) REEHFIE(E)

Fair value as at
LRRE
Valuation
31 December 31 December ~ Fair value technique(s)and  Significant
Financial assets 2019 2018 hierarchy key input(s) unobservable input(s)
R2019% 20185 fEERHER EXTUER
HBRE 128318 123318 ARAESR IERARE AR
Unlisted equity investments 1.38% equity 9.26% equity Level 3 Market approach Discount of lack of
at FVTOCI (Note) investment in investmentin - &=4 5k marketability,
BAAREGALMEERA Chaozhou Rural  Chaozhou Rural determined by reference
B3 ETRAT A7) Commercial -~ Credit Corporative, to the share price of
Bank (defined  which is engaged listed entities in similar
in Note 23), in banking industries of 4.9%
whichis engaged  business in PRC R TARAILNE
in banking N BRERNNELT
business in PRC RTEHH ERHREER
RPERE AMmE 54.9%
e EHER
HMRERT AfEBTH
(EEAMEBN  926%RAKE
1.38%BFRE
Note: An increase in discount for lack of Wit . FTERABRZ TSR
marketability used in isolation would result BUHENESEE LA
in a decrease in fair value measurement of HEBIR AR EE
the unlisted equity investments at FVTOCI, STAEMEESA
and vice versa. For the year ended 31 B3 EmIRARKRE
December 2019, a 1% increase/decrease BARBETEH
in discount for lack of marketability and Do RZIA o B
holding all other variables constant would £2019F12H31H
decrease/increase the carrying amount of IEFE  BRE=m%5
the unlisted equity investments at FVTOCI BT E LA
by approximately RMB5,860,000 (2018: TBE1% - TATEE
RMB8,000,000). R =2 N
RARBETSAR
fth 2 E WA K IE E
AR E M ERE
BT’/ ALY
AR #5,860,0007T
(20184 : AR®
8,000,0007T) °
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 K\$$F§r§ii$§ .
and 3 in current and prior year. — ZRERZELE
B o
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6.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SEMTEZ)
C Fair value measurements of financial instruments C. EMTEAZAARBENEZ)
(Continued)
(i)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (il E=BWLARBEHEL
measurements BE
Assets — Unlisted
equity securities
at FVTOCI
BE-—ERR
EEF AHEM
ZHEAH
I EIRAE S
RMB'000
AREFT
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1A1H 182,000
Reclassified as asset classified BN D BRI RHE
as held for sales HENEE (130,000)
Disposal HeE (5,400)
Fair value changes N EEZE) 2,400
At 31 December 2018 2018%F12A31H 49,000
Purchase BE 63,931
Fair value changes NREEE (60,188)
At 31 December 2019 K2019F12A31H 52,743
Included in other comprehensive Ht2mEkABER
income is an amount of approximately RAREBHRSEA
RMB60,188,000 fair value loss (fair value BAREBEEFTAEME
gain of 2018: RMB2,400,000) relating to mWABKRAT AR
the unlisted equity securities classified as FE_E AR AR FE  AERE Y

equity instruments at FVTOCI held at the
end of the current reporting period and is
reported as changes of “FVTOCI reserve”.

The Directors consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

DABEEBEBHARE
60,188,000 7T (2018 4F
NAEEKRS AR
2,400,0007T) * 3 [E
BIEAREBEFTAE
fib 2 E AW E

8 -

BEERR - NEAMH
WRIZE AT Z
B aE A B A
BZREEREAAE
(ELEE=
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

7. REVENUE 7. ke
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as FERAER NI HHTOT -
follows:

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi AR®FT ARBTT

Type of services BR#5XE R
Construction of infrastructure and B RERHiE%
development of properties v E g

Slope stabilisation works Rl EE TR 21,893 -

Construction of land bR - 69,903

Revenue from contracts with EESHE

customer (a) 21,893 69,903

Interest under effective interest BERFEETHFE

method 4,537 10,188

Leases HE (b) 130 -

Total revenue Pl 26,560 80,091

Notes: Wist -

(a) All the revenue from construction of infrastructure and (a) KEEWERSR MY X RROME
development of properties was recognised at a point in time Yo JoiR R B R A Bl — KA 1
based on the contracts entered into with a stated-owned X((M—FR D ZHNEHNE—F
enterprise located in the PRC (the “Sole Customer”). BHHERR
The relevant infrastructure and properties specified in the RE ) ETR AR E ek i M M 2
contracts are based on the Sole Customer’s specifications TOiRIEME P RO BARIEL - AEE
with no alternative use. Taking into consideration of the R o AE B S AR AR
relevant contract terms, the legal environment and relevant R RAARARITRGITE | BEIE
legal precedent, the Directors concluded that the Group T AR GRS ATIZ FF SR 2 A
does not have an enforceable right to payment prior to I (R E AT 58 BT TR S o EUE
the completion of the acceptance and transfer procedure. AERREEREDEFEZROBENE
Revenue from construction of infrastructure and development B TR MY KW T —F S
of properties is therefore recognised at a point in time when ) B 28 (BB M5 (S 72 - ST P A PR 2 )
the completed infrastructure and property is transferred to R - MANEEARBUGHE - BX
the Sole Customer, being at the point that the acceptance AR R EIRAE -
and transfer procedure completed and the Group has present
right of payment and collection of the consideration is
probable.

The Sole Customer made advance payments to the Group M — PR (IR DA TE
while the acceptance and transfer procedure is still ongoing. EZAEEEL TN RIA - NS
The advance payments result in contract liabilities being Ha B EREERS R RN
recognised throughout the construction and development R . B SR AR e el o e —
period until the completion of acceptance and transfer FPES R T ARG ERE
procedure and the Sole Customer obtains control of the HliERLE ©

completed infrastructure and property.

The Group considers the advance payments contain significant REER

financing component and applies the practical expedient 5 HUES

of not adjusting the transaction price for any significant BEVN:Y

financing component as the period between payments and g

transfer of the associated infrastructure and property is less 2 —

than one year.

The Group also applies the practical expedient of not AEETTERERER R - T
disclosing about the transaction price allocated to the DECEEZSE L5 MM NELHE
remaining performance obligations for contracts with ENZHER  RESMBERRER
cusltomers as all revenue contracts are for period of one year AR A —F AT o

or less.

2019 EEARBRROERLE 149



— /- Sy ol SN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

7.

150

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Leases

REVENUE (Continued) 7. W&(E)
Wizt - (&)
(b) #HR
Year ended
31/12/2019
#HE2019%F
12A31HILEE
RMB’000
AR®TT
For operating leases: PMACEREmS -
Lease payments that are fixed EEHERRK 130
8. S

SEGMENTS

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”), being the chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM"), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focus on types of goods or services delivered
or provided. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

During the year, the Group commenced the business
engaging in property investment along with the acquisition
of Beijing Yufeng Chengyou Technology Company
Limited* (”Beijing Yufeng”) (as detailed in Note 37(b)),
and it is considered as a new operating and reportable
segment by the CODM.

Specifically, the Group’s reporting segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

- Construction of infrastructure and development of
properties

- Credit business
- Securities investments
- Property investments

* For identification purpose only

Annual Report 2019

RERDERDHRBAFEME - [
ARBEFEE((EER)(AXELE
REE(ERBERRE ) ERE
BT AT A sk B 2 7 AR S
R o REBAREE R W®E D AP
b 8 GF AE T R AR EIREE PRI

o
EDE o

TR AR EEEE KR R RN
MExARAR(TLRER ) (FFRHE
7)) IERMEREEY - TELE
RREGZ ERINEE R RED TR

ARME  ARERBEFEVHERE
HERFSSRH AT ME D EAT

hf[[3

- ERREEREMEZR

- pEES
—  ERE
- DERA
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8. SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. SER(E)
Segment revenues and results DB R R
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and PATT B 7 £ MR 0] 3R 5 26 215 4
results by reportable segment: HREESN -
For the year ended 31 December HT12831ALLEE
Segment revenue Segment results
AR ABER
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AR®TT AREFT
Construction of infrastructure and B aER
development of properties nEERE 21,893 69,903 766 6,252
Credit business EEEK 4,537 10,188 (1,699) 7,258
Securities investments EHRE = - = (30)
Property investments MERE 130 - (600) -
Total @t 26,560 80,091 (1,533) 13,480
Share of loss of associates AMEEEATEE (8,548) (85,940)
Impairment losses under expected BHEEHERI TN
credit loss model, net of reversal REEE  MkRED (71,491) (55,590)
Other income =T 1,316 257
Unallocated exchange gain, net RORENETE = [
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEHBARKEEE 1,072 46
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BER
equipment RETE (270) (156)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRESERE (1,520) -
Staff costs BIMA (4,716) (4,062)
Other operating expenses Hin @&y (7,541) (5,318)
Finance cost BERA (53) -
Loss before tax BRAER (93,284) (137,282)
201943 EBARARERGERATF 151
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8.

152

SEGMENTS (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales in the current year (2018: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note
3 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment results
represents the (loss from) profit earned by each segment
without allocation of share of loss of associates, certain
impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net
of reversal, other income, gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
net, depreciation, certain exchange gain, net, finance
cost, financial guarantee and central administration costs
including directors’ emoluments and staff costs. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

FE(E)
SMBRRERE)

N EHREN D MUK EERE IR
Fayias - AFEEILED EBREIHEE
(2018%F : f&) -

REPHHNEARRELAKTENS
AR ARR (FF AR 6 M B WmA M e
3)° ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂé%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂlm(ﬁéﬂé)
i Al B 53 N WP (2 AN
8- i‘EEIH%EJE’E'TE*EEﬁTE’J%:F/WE
BRONRED) - Al - BER
BoREIFE - T8 ETERLK
mOFR  BERAK - MBERET
RITBRA(BRESME M8 TK
$) SIS E IR D B M R IR FHA T )
RIEERREERNTTA ©

SHRERAR

DAT%$%@?ET$&%&,§%%%B§U
DHEERBED

Segment assets SHEE

Construction of infrastructure and ERERpEER R
development of properties LESLE

Credit business EEXER

Securities investments BHEE

Property investment MEIRE

Total segment assets HEEERTE

Asset classified as held for sale DA IEHENEE

Unallocated corporate assets KAOMRABIEE

Consolidated assets REEE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTTT
208,601 224,377
14,339 107,717
166,500 -
389,440 332,094
239,454 130,000
367,517 724,898
996,411 1,186,992
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8. SEGMENTS (Continued)

&

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

SEB(E)

SPBRERARE)

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
Segment liabilities AR
Construction of infrastructure and BRI
development of properties MEBER 128,980 169,623
Credit business (B ES = 17
Securities investments BHERE = -
Property investment MERE 253 -
Total segment liabilities DI BERTE 129,233 169,640
Liabilities associated with assets SERABIEHEEE
classified as held for sale HEANBE 6,525 -
Unallocated corporate liabilities RNBEABIEE 53,140 127,419
Consolidated liabilities measE 188,898 297,059
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MO EPEERD IR L DEEERM
allocating resources between segments: =

all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, prepaid lease payment, interests in
associates, equity instruments at FVTOCI, certains
deposits paid for acquisition of properties, deposits
paid for potential investments, deposit paid for
capital contribution, deferred tax asset, certain
deposits and other receivables, certain restricted
bank balances, bank balances and cash, amount
due from an associate and assets classified as held
for sale.

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables and accruals,
lease liabilities, tax liabilities, amount due to a
non-controlling interest/a shareholder, financial
guarantee contract, deposit received and liabilities
associated with assets classified as held for sale.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

BR¥E - BB Mk - (ERE
BE  FANEENT RS
REZ D WA BEFA
Hip 2 EBARBATE - 5t
WBMEMXNETE 2 &
EREMXNNETE XA
SAWETE  BERBEE
TR REMBEYG - BT
XRBIRITAER - |ITHEHRK
B U — B QAR
BERDBERFBIEHENEEN
S DEETREDHOMEE
o

BETHEMENREESE
A-HERE PHEAGE &
T — R IEEWAR, — R AR
PR~ BBEREH - BHET
ERESESFFHENEE
HENRERIN  DEETEE
DESHIFA RIS -
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SEGMENTS (Continued) 8.

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss

or segment assets:

mpaimentlosseson ~~ BIFSERTA
goodel TSR
Impairment lossrecognised  EUEFFIE
on loan and interest FENAE
recevable, et B
Loss from changesinfair ~ FENEALE
value of investment EZINER
properties
Loss from change in BARERA
fair value of financial BRmES
assets at FUTPL EENLL
EEZEN
i
Exchange gain, net EXdaTE

Construction of
infrastructure and
development of properties  Credit business Securities investments
ERBHRERORRR HRER B50E

219
RMB000

018
RMB000
ARRTT

219

018
RMB000 IO RVB000
ABRTR JN vl ARRTT

219

2018
V000
AERTT

ABRTT

- - -1 - -
- S 17 I Y3 - -
- - - - - 3
- - o) (150 - -

FE(E)
Rt 5 BRFE

FAAD BN R EB RO BMEENE
MIEER

Property investment Unallocated Total
hREE 31 it
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB'000 WGIVGAVUNN RMB'000 WRGIVEONNNM RMB'000 LY

AERTT

ARETTL

AERTT

ARBTT W3 el \RH T

- - - - -1
- - - - B 16
730 - - - W -
- - - - - 0
= - = () (%) (153
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8. SEGMENTS (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

FE(E)
Hitt#EH(2)
EHRHTIBLERREELESR

BEDBENREBRXDBEENE
ME %R

Construction of
infrastructure and
development of properties  Credit business Securities investments  Property investment Unallocated Total
ERRHRERDRRE ERRE B5HE WERE Y1) #it
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB'000 RIVERCONE RMB'000 WRCVEMVEON RMB'000 WRGHVEXOIAN ARMB'000 WRUCAVGONE RMB'000 WRGIVELVURN RMB'000 ERUNERU)
ABRTT IHSpoMABRTT JNSSyMARRTT INEARMMARKTT INSurl ARRTT INSSTMARRTT J\sen
Depreciation of property, ~ 91% ~ BER
plntandequipment ~ HEE 2 3 1 10 - - - - %7 143 00 15
Depreciation of right-of- ~ (FBEEE
Use assets & - - - - - - - - 1520 - 1520 -
Additions tonon-current  FEREIEE
assets (Vote) REW)
- deposis paid for -z
acquiston of 5]
propertes HEa - - S - - -0 - - %7% 7400 %736
- fight-of-use i
asels 2E - - - - - - - - 649 - 649 -
- prepaid lease -Bft
payments REM - - - - = - = - - 9,000 - 9,000
- Gepost paid for -BERE
potentil it
investment HE? - - - - - - - - 166,000 - 166,000 -
- property, -
plant and Bk
equipment % - - - - - - - - W 8en w883
- investment propertis  —RBHE S - - - - Wm0 - - - 010 -
Other income EfA (95) - - - - - - - 1) (131) (257)
Interests n REEAAN
ass0ciates s - - - - - - - - - 61218 - 6118
Share of loss of AEBELT
associaes B - - - - - - - - 858 85940 8568 85940
Ganondisposal of Loss~~ EREAA
on subsidiries, net ez = - = - = - = - (1m) (e} (1072) (46)
loanon writen-off of 3% -
property, plant and HRRRER
equipment Fi - - - - - - - - 5 - 5 -
Impairment losses HEREYE
recognised on BiaE
other receivables Fi - - - - - - - - Tt 124 149 124
Impairment losses b
recognised on DAFERR
amount due from HAEER
an associate - - - - - - - - - 5679 - 5,679
Financial quarantee BIRER - - - - - - - - - 49787 -
Finance cost HERL - - - - - - - - - - 5 -
Note:  Additions to non-current assets excluded financial instruments Wit - IERBSEEARBETBRESHTANLE

and deferred tax assets.
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8.

156

SEGMENTS (Continued) 8.
Geographical information

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group operated in two principal geographical areas — the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets.

SEB(E)
HERH

HZE2019F N 2018F 12 A31 B IE4F
B AEEEMEEZEHELELHE
BRI EEEE)REE -

AEBEKRBINDEF RSN ERER
BERES - NEESERBEE
MERIREEMERES -

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets*
REIBERKER IEmMENEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
NS Sl ARKETT BN A ARBTT
PRC Fh 22,023 69,903 397,585 506,620
Hong Kong B 4,537 10,188 160 11
26,560 80,091 397,745 506,631
* Non-current assets excludes financial instruments and * FERBEETBIESR T A NIELEF

deferred tax assets.
Information about major customers
Revenue from customer of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is
as follows:

HARE -
FREFR®H

HRREE A B B M A A S L 4
W24 21 0% 1 -

BPA-RTRIRE
ROEER

Customer A — Construction of
infrastructure and development of
properties

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT ARBT T
21,893 69,903
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hthilg A

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTTT

Bank interest income IRITRBHA 101 77
Loan interest income (Note 29(a)) BFRBUAHE29(a) 1,053 -
Sundry income HMIEU A 162 180
1,316 257
10.  FINANCE COST 10. MERE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HES

—

EF B 53 -

11.  IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS 11. FEHESEEEXTHEESS
MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL MEREE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT

Impairment losses recognised AT IE B 3R (B E)RIE
(reversed) on: E518
— loan and interest receivables —EWEZRREFE 13,095 1,826
— loan and interest receivables —ENER LTS (6,972) -
— other receivables — H At FEIGR 71,491 124
— amount due from an associate — R — R B & R B FRIE - 5,679
— financial guarantee — B HEIR = 49,787
77,614 57,416
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 6(b). BB ELA B E R E6Db) °
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

FRSIREAX

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTT

Current tax: BNERTIA -
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax
- Hong Kong — &8

Deferred tax (Note 41)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors
considered the amount involved upon implementation of
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime is insignificant to
the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong Profits
Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for the year ended 31 December 2019. No provision
for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the Group
did not generated any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Hong Kong
profits tax of the qualifying group entity is calculated at
8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable
profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits
above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the Company and the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

—REIREMER

EERIB (M 5F41)

90 1,730
= 1,937

90 3,667
1,066 (1,888)
1,156 1,779

MR2018F3A21H » BB EZRIA
2017 BB (BRT ) (BTHR)EHIER
([ZER])  SIAMBPHFEH RS
€ o ZEZEM2018F3A28HEEK
BRE S UYREBETEER - BIEW
BHEFNEHRERNE  GEREEETE
79 & 2,000,000/% 7T &9 % F1 i 128.25%
FIFR R A - M ARE2,000,00078 THY
B IZ16.5% MR- - TRE
MR B FIESHEGENEEE LR T
TS B2 16.5% AR — R RS -

HE2019F12A31BIEFE  EFR
B RERFSHRMAS®RS RN
RS ANERERMEMTREE - &
R EHIRE E 201912 A31 8 15
[T ER T E F16.5% 5T F - AR
NEE B £ D E B B A (T 0] FERRE R %
A WESEBHRBELEE -

HE2018F12A31BILFE » &K
SEEREEBFSHAE2,000,000%
TR A AT FE AR B8 A #6512 8.25% M i
KRG - MR 82,000,000 TTHY(EET
JE R FR R A2 16.5% M B REH

RIEFECEMSRE( RERER
FED REEMSBEERIEN - AR
7 &P B B A R R MIEEE 2
RAE25% o

Hip AR R E A M BRIRIL AR RDA
RERITHHERTE
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FEWRRAX(E)
The tax charges for the years can be reconciled to the loss REEBRRERT  EFAFRER X HR
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss ASE 2 HEMT -
as follows:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT

Loss before tax BrIRATESIR (93,284) (137,282)
Income tax at applicable tax rates RIRERA R ERER (21,488) (35,859)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible SRS AR

for tax purpose Mg 19,672 52,179
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBBAR

for tax purpose MR E (1,744) (14,520)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTREEEORETE 4,716 118
Tax reduction AR - (139)
Income tax expense FrEiRAX 1,156 1,779
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HE2019F12A31AILFE

13.  LOSS FOR THE YEAR

13. FABKR

Loss for the year has been
arrived at after charging:

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief
executives’' remuneration (Note 14)

Other staff cost (excluding directors’
emoluments)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits
— Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

Total staff costs

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Loss on written-off of property,
plant and equipment

Auditor’s remuneration (including the
fee for PRC subsidiaries)
— Audit service
— Non-audit service

Donation

Contract cost recognised as an
expense

FARIRD AR

BEE EELIBTRAER
WS (HfiF14)

HAth 8 TR
(TBREFEHD)
—¥&  TEMEAMERN
—IRAAR A I K

TRk A 4858

o

Vi

M BB RRETE

EREEENE
Y% - BE K
R EE
ZEE N (2R B E
RANER)
— 2 BR
— IFRBURTS
B/
HER R
BRI

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTTT
1,665 1,652
2,657 2,089
394 321
3,051 2,410
4,716 4,062
270 156
1,520 -

5 —

1,660 902
169 93
1,000 -
20,853 63,651
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14. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 14.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

Directors’, supervisors' and chief executive's
remuneration for the years, disclosed pursuant
to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies

EF E¥F FETHRARRLA

BEFHER

() EF EERFETHRARS
B &

FRREER LR R RF]
ROIBKENES EEREE
TTERABEF BT

Ordinance, is as follows:

Salaries and

Contributions
to retirement

Fees allowances  benefits schemes
ot
g FeRak FHEIES #
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N 4 N AE®TT IN:
For the year ended 31 December ~ &F2019%12A31A
2019 LLEE
Executive directors BTEE
Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman) KA 100 260 15 375
Deng Xiao Gang (Note ) HEmz) 14 = 4 18
Chau Ting Yan (Note i) BERHrti) 99 = = 99
Leng Xiao Rong (Note i RN (i) 100 191 18 309
Sub-total Nt 313 451 37 801

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

EXATHITEEMER LN RERALARAKENEHEEMRRART -

Non-executive directors FHTES
Yin Zong Chen FTE 30 - - 30
Ye Zhi E (Note i) EREW:tii) 30 - - 30
Sub-total INgt 60 - - 60
The non-executive directors' emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.
EXRTERTEEME R A REREARTESMRANRY -
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14.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 14, B¥ - E¥ . TEFBRAEBRES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) BEaHER(Z)
(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’s (a) EFE EERIFETHAED
emoluments (Continued) & (&)

Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
allowances  benefits schemes

YR

fig a2k g L Ll
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AERTR AERTR AERTR AEBTR

Independent non-executive directors HILFH{TES

Chan Ming Sun Jonathan BRsnst 120 - - 120
Guo Lu Jin (Note i) SEE(Witii) 120 - - 120
Gao Hong Hong (Note vi) B M) 60 - - 60
Sub-total st 300 - - 300
Sub-total st 673 451 37 1,161

The independent non-executive directors' emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

XA B TEEME R RS REARAESMRRART -

Chief executive officer T

Huang Chunfeng (Note i) Rkl - 260 13 bYE]
Supervisors Ex

Fang Wei Ran TR 10 99 10 119
Huang Yong Jing EKE 10 59 8 7
Wang Xing Ye TR% 15 - - 15
Zhang Yun Feng il 10 - - 10
Chen Jung Feng frigig 10 - - 10
Sub-total IVt 55 158 18 231
Total #a 728 869 68 1,665
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

14.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 14, B¥ - E¥ . TEFBRAEBRES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) BEFER(Z)
(@) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive's (a) EE -E=ERFTETBAESN
emoluments (Continued) [0 FAC=P)
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
Fees allowances  benefits schemes Total
RINER
5 o Rzt HEG5 fe
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

For the year ended 31 December ~ HE2018%12A318

2018 JI:3: 4
Executive directors BER
Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman) KA 22 100 258 18 376
Deng Xiao Gang (Note j W ) 100 150 18 268
Huang Zhen Kun (Note i) EES(E) 16 w3 25 284
Leng Xiao Rong (Note i) RINE(Biitiin) 50 9 9 153
Sub-total et 266 745 70 1,081

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

EXATHTESME RN RERALARA K BN EHER MR ARI -

Non-executive directors FaRTES

Li Yu Xiang (Note iv) XM 15 - - 15
Yin Zong Chen FRE 30 - - 30
Ye Zhi E (Note i ERE (i) 15 - - 15
Sub-total et 60 - - 60

The non-executive directors' emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

IR EEME RN RS REAL AR MR MR -

Independent non-executive directors FIFHITEE

Chan Ming Sun Jonathan [z 120 - - 120
He Qing Jia (Note i) EEy) 15 - - 15
Yu Guan Jian (Note v) RERWHY) 18 - - 18
Guo Luin (Note i) DEEWitin) 61 - - 61
Gao Hong Hong (Note vi) S (i) 53 - - 53
Sub-total et 267 - - 267
Sub-total INit 593 745 70 1,408

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

EXARERTEEME R N REREARAESMRRART -
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GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

14.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 14, B¥ - E¥ . TEFBRAEBRES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) meaFER(Z)
(@) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive's (a) EE -E=ERFTETBAESN
emoluments (Continued) e Z)
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
Fees allowances  benefits schemes Total
RINET
e Ha Rzt HE s 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT AEBTT v S

Supervisors Es

Fang Wei Ran FER 10 74 8 9
Huang Yong Jing EKE 10 9 15 17
Wang Xing Ye IRE 15 - - 15
Zhang Yun Feng REE 10 - - 10
Chen Jung Feng BiIE 10 - - 10
Sub-total it 55 166 23 244
Total an 648 911 93 1,652
There was no arrangement under which a director EHE20194F K 20184 12 A 31
or the chief executives waived or agreed to waive AIEFE - W\ESFHEE1T
any remuneration during the years ended 31 B B i E o R B P AT
December 2019 and 2018. No emoluments have ML - BLE2019F 22018
been paid to the directors or chief executives as an F12A318LEFE @ BERE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or FoXEZTHA B E AT BN
as compensation for loss of office during the years ® 0 EAIMAREBE S IAA
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. SEig e R RRERA(E -

Notes: Bt

[ Resigned on 4 March 2019 i 201943 A4 B EHT

i Appointed on 4 March 2019 ii 20193 R4BEZE

iii Appointed on 28 June 2018 iii MR2018F6 H28 AL (T

iv Resigned on 28 June 2018 iv 201846 A28 HEHT

v Retired on 11 February 2018 v 20182 11 HIRE

vi Appointed on 12 February 2018 vi MR2018F2 A12AEZR(T
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

14. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 14.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group
during the year include two directors and one chief
executive officer (2018: three directors), details of
whose emoluments are set out in Note 14(a) above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining two (2018: two) highest paid employee
who are neither a director, supervisors nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

EE BT FRTRARRESR
BRFER(E)

(b)

Salaries and allowances e MoEEh
Contributions to retirement benefits RIREFFTE
schemes R

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

IEEREFHER

FRAEBRLZES#HEE
BIEMBZEER —RAITHAE
#H(2018%F : ZREFE) A
A1 S 2 B E RN L3R
14a) - A B TIME(2018
F:WMB)EARAES  BF
REBTHRAENRSHEES
REFEEFIBT

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTTT

688 638
31 15
719 653

Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AR%1,000,0007T

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the Directors, supervisors, chief executive officer
or any of the two highest paid employees as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
Directors, supervisors, chief executive officer and
the two highest paid employees has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during each of
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
Apart from the Directors, chief executive officer
and supervisors, the Group has not classified any
other person as chief executives during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

BEZME TN T TIIEE

Number of employees

BEAH

-:iEI 2018
2 2

#H E20194F 2018 12 A 31
BIEFEE AEEHMERE
£EE - TRAHIMER
S EEERN— A NS E
BIMAFIMAREE % 2 ZE)
BB (E o BLE2019F &
2018512 A31BIHFE - &
B B THBRIEEWEA
EeFEENEXRERE
TREE - HZE20194 22018
F12A31BLEFE - BRES -
THREMESRI - REBEY
EERIMEMALTHEATE
THAE »

165



— /- AN r Sl SRS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

15.  LOSS PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

BERER

ARAHEEANEEBREREBRTR
AT 8B E -

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT

Loss for the year attributable to owners of KA THEA AFENL

the Company FANEE (89,049) (139,215)
2018
‘000
T
Number of shares Ein&H
Weighted average number of ordinary PEREXREEMEHLR
shares for the purpose of basic loss A& DN S 15 8K
per share 1,469,376 1,469,376

No diluted loss per share for both 2019 and 2018 were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in
issue for both 2019 and 2018.

16.  DIVIDENDS 16.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during 2019, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2018: Nil).

B 20194 K201 8F 8 B B 31T
TER RUE2VZMEFEZE

Bz B

MR2019%F » EESNRESTERIK
BEMBREFARRLBRAE - M
B R HA R DA SR TR 4 2 R BT ] AR
B(2018%F : &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. V% - BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
improvement  equipment vehicles i progress Total
& KER
HERE WOERR RE ERIR L]

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AREBTT ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR

CcosT 5%
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1A1H 23 177 1,459 - 1,659
Additions NE 134 118 - - 252
Acquired on acquisitions of KB A RRER

subsidiaries (Note 37(c)) (B37(c) - - - 48,581 48,581
Exchange adjustments B AE 1 1 - - 2
At 31 Decernber 2018 20184128318 158 29 1,459 48581 50,494
Acquired on acquisition of TR I B 2 ] U

subsidiary (Note 37(a)) (Hi#37@) 20 127 - - 147
Reclassified as held for sale BNOBRRIENEE

(Note 24) (Fiit24) (20) (127) - - (147)
Exchange adjustments [ B 3 2 - - 5
Written-off bk - (105) - - (105)
At 31 December 2019 1#2019%12A31R 161 193 1,459 48,581 50,394

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZiHFER

AND ACCUMULATED ZitR(E
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018 201851 A1H 14 148 554 - 716
Provided for the year (Note) FRBENZ) 11 18 131 - 160
Exchange adjustments B R - 1 - - 1
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12 4318 25 167 685 - 877
Provided for the year (Note) FEREEHT) 95 46 131 - 272
Reclassified as held for sale ENDERFHEHEE
(Note 24) (Hiz24) (56) (10) - - (66)
Written-off s - (100) - - (100)
At 31 December 2019 #201912A31H 64 103 816 - 983
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2019 #®2019%12A31H 97 90 643 48,581 49,411
At 31 December 2018 B2018%F 124318 133 129 774 48,581 49,617
Note: Included in depreciation provided for the year of Mt FRTERBRHARE2,0007T
approximately RMB2,000 (2018: RMB4,000) is capitalised (20184 : ARH4,0007T) 720194
in contract costs in the consolidated statement of financial 12 A31 BERE IR R P A LR
position as at 31 December 2019, as these furniture, fixtures AETERNE  RARZEEM - #
and office equipment and motor vehicles are used at the BERMAERBEARARETIREBIR
construction site. HER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

17.

18.

168

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. Y% BEREBHKZ)
The above item of property, plant and equipment are A EWE  WEREEEBEJVLNES
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates SER THIEFREIRITE -
per annum:
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the HERE MBS 20%
lease term or 20% (PABEE 3 A)
Furniture, fixtures and office 8-20% B RER 8-20%
equipment I YNEX
Motor vehicles 8-20% T 8-20%
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. fEH@EEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HE L HEYE 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT
As at 1 January 2019 2019518 1H
Carrying amount BRmE 9,000 1,904 10,904
As at 31 December 2019 72019%12831H
Carrying amount BRmE 14,959 875 15,834
For the year ended 31 December H=201912A31H
2019 IFFE
Depreciation charge WrERY 491 1,029 1,520
Expense relating to short-term leases B E RAEERN G
and other leases with lease terms end RERBAMBHRE
within 12 months of the date of AR 21657 B BT
initial application of HKFRS16 128 A AR 2 EAtb
HEBBANRX 184
Total cash outflow for leases HEZRe ML BE 7,573
Additions to right-of-use assets TREEERE 6,450
Additions through acquisition of FHiRHENEA T
subsidiary 43
Reclassified as held for sale BNOBAFEHE (43)

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of 1 year and 3 years, Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancelled period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

SZMEFE  AREHEEZERR
ERNEE - H 1%/:.\%’7»!;&%}%@
KIFFTSL - MEGRIIIZ @RI E
BE o B8 B ARG MG EA
BEEHY NS T RERENRE
B AEEREBAANERYEEA
HIR] R BT TRV AR -

Annual Report 2019  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



e e e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

19.  PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR LAND USE RIGHTS 19.
LOCATED IN THE PRC

B4 7 oh B Y L i 8 R i TR 3R
A0 E

Analysed for reporting purposes as: TEIRE B EL ST
2018
RMB’000
ARETTT
Non-current asset IERENEE 9,000

At 31 December 2018, the prepaid lease payments for
land use right held for own use are located in the PRC and
the Group is in the process of obtaining the land use right
certificates.

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20.

The Group leases out retail store under operating lease
with rental payable monthly. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 3 years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies of
group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the
property at the end of lease term.

2018% 128318 @ HEE A
FEAENENEENKURFE » K
EE IS M E RS -

REME

AEBRELEHEHETERE -
HeABAXN - HE—RVH /3
f'z o

HRPAHENREEEREEMNY
EEEBIHE  AKETERHEER
Prm A SNE R - HE R AR HEE
RBRETBEHREERRESHEEA
BEMRAEEE -

RMB'000
AREETTT
FAIR VALUE LREE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 R2018F1A1H ~ 2018F 12 A31H K
and 1 January 2019 20191 H1H -
Acquired on an acquisition of a subsidiary U 3% —fEIF1 BB A =R ES
(Note 37(b)) (Bt5t37b)) 20,130
Net decrease in fair value recognised in RIEZERNERH AN EE
profit or loss DERARE L= (730)
At 31 December 2019 72019512A31H 19,400
Unrealised loss on property revaluation AR EERN
included in profit or loss REIREE (730)
201975 BEBARBRRROGERAT 169
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

20.

170

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2019 has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on the respective date by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the Group.

The Directors work closely with the qualified external
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use. The fair
values of certain investment properties have been adjusted
to exclude prepaid or accrued operating lease income to

20.

wEMEE)

AEBREYHEMR2019F12 431K
AREEDZERNSEYEBEENE
VEERBEEGHEMTPEFETHEERD
AIRNE B BHETTRHERET -

EFEABRINEHEMBEZSE
VAR & 3 B i (B el R AR 2L 3 A 88
bE o

WIEETZEMEN R EER - W%
ZEEAREREREBNMAR - &
TREMENAABECHABREZME
BNREFEEHERANBRESE

avoid double counting.

Valuation
technique

{E{ERR

5 -

Significant
unobservable inputs

AUERZEEBARE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
ABRRBABBEALNRRED
[ ]F3

Retail store located in
PRC — completed properties
NP ENTERE
-BRINE

BEEREEE

2019: RMB19,400,000
(2018: Nil)

2019% : AR™19,400,0007
(20185 - &)(Hyzt)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the

year.

Direct comparison

Market unit rate, taking into
account the recent transaction
prices for similar properties
adjusted for nature, location and
conditions of the property, which
is RMB38,500 per square meter
("s.qm”)
BARRENELRRHER
(BRMmEEE - w2 RkRE
HRE)NTHEESTAK
([FEH* ) ARH38,0007

A significant increase in the
market unit rate used would
result in a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa

FrERAE TR BB AR LA KE
HRABEBRZEM  RZTA

RER WEEAXEHE=F -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 20. BEHEE)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of IR B EE VI EYES = ERAD
investment properties on recurring basis: NBEEEZHE

Investment
properties
classified as
Level 3
SHEEE=R
ZRBEME
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2019 7R201951H1H -
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37(b)) U 8% — REIFfT /B8 X A1 U B8 (/223 7(b)) 20,130
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss {82 NHEZ A 2 BER A F5a (730)
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H 19,400
The above net decrease in fair value recognised in profit U EREAEBREDIBRZRNEZNA
or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss is HEERDFEIARBERRITE

attributable to the change in fair value of investment YIS NRBEEEFTE -

properties at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

21.

172

GOODWILL 21. B8
Acquisition
Acquisition of
of  Chung Hwa
Zhongfong Finance
Chaozhou Limited Total
k@
g RERH
RE M ARALEH 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT
COST 5%
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NF-A—H- 44,459 1,320 45,779
and 31 December 2019 —E-\E+t-ZA=1—-HAK
ZE-NEFTZA=T—H
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT RitiRE
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—HA—H 44,459 - 44,459
Impairment loss recognised BRERRESR - 1,320 1,320
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE-N\E+-A=+—-HBF 44,459 1,320 45,779

31 December 2019

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

“T-AET-A=t-R

IREE
RZE-NF+-A=+—H

R-E-\F+-A=t—H

Annual Report 2019  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



/=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

21.

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment test on goodwill

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill with
indefinite useful lives set out above have been allocated
to two cash-generating units (“CGU"), comprising one
subsidiary engaged in the construction of infrastructure
and development properties segment and one subsidiary
engaged in the credit business segment.

Construction of infrastructure and development of
properties — Zhongfong Chaozhou (“Unit A")

The principal activity of the Unit A is the land development
project in Chaozhou (the “Project”). The Project cover
three construction phases (ie. phase |, phase Il and phase

I).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the profitability
of Unit A was adversely affected due to the following
factors: (1) there are no acceptance of completion of the
constructed land during the year; (2) the trade receivables
are long outstanding and the settlement is slow; and (3)
country government has yet to be entered the procedures
of bidding of phase Il and phase lll of the Project, the
timetable for construction of phase Il and phase Il of
the Project cannot be determined and the Group was
uncertain on the timing of acceptance schedule of the
remaining land area of 624 acres of the Project which is far
beyond the original timeframe.

Under these circumstances, the Directors decided to fully
impair the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Unit A
and impairment loss of approximately RMB24,459,000
has been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Credit business - Chung Hwa Finance Limited (“Unit B")

The principal activity of the Unit B is provision of credit
business with the money lender license in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
had determined not to renew the money lender license in
Hong Kong and scale down the credit business upon the
expiration of the money lender license on 12 September
2018. Under this circumstance, the Directors decided to
fully impair the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Unit
B and impairment loss of approximately RMB1,320,000
has been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2018.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

21.

(-} {6V
i 2 (A

SUBERIAME - 0 E Xt AR &
RAMEAFMOEEC DA EMIER
cELEV(REEEEM]) 81
AR EERREERMEZERD
HEMB AT R —AREEEXR
Colthi=PNCIIC

ERGEERRMRER -—PEHEM
(TAERSI 1)

AB(L 7 = BEE AR EIET 5
ZEE([EA ) - BB » = HER (A
—Hy . —HAR=HF) -

HZE2017F12A31MBLEFE - @17
(MRFRALEZEDZRTHTEA
QEWEREHRNAEERGEEE
#E ROBERBSHAEATEE =
B —HIMRIZIERF MELAETE
HLBEEH_HE-HNERRALTEER
THEEIE B8 T L EE624E 2 el
HRERZEE(EERBRERER) A

BRMBMENZBITMFTZE

FEHEFEBERT  EERTEHRBASBN
EEZEEERBERE @ WHRNE
FE2017F12 A3 HILFE B
RIREEEL AREE24,459,0007T °

ERRE-PEERFRLF([BE
fir 1)

BEMZ FBXBRANABBRMEER
15 WHRAEANIR

HE2018F12A31HIEFE - AR
RIRETEETENNEARR I
2018 F9 8 12HME AR RBEMEZE
MREEER - EHBRAT EFHR
ERUNERE N ELENEEEL B
FE  WREZE2018%E 12 A31H 1F
FEMNBEZNERREBEHARE
1,320,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F 128318 IFE

22,

174

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

22. HRHRELTHER

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT
Cost of investment RPN 238,549 150,000
Share of post-acquisition loss SMEWEE R BB R

and other comprehensive income HEhZ2mEBA (7,366) (85,161)
231,183 64,839

Less: Accumulated impairment loss B BEREFDREEE
recognised - (3,561)
231,183 61,278

Reclassification as assets classified as held ~— EZH MBS I AIS1ERE
for sale (Note 24) L EBE(Ki24) (231,183) -
- 61,278

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting

AEBRRE R RO LR BHFE

period are as follow: /N
Proportion of Proportion of
Country of Principal place  ownership interest  voting rights held
Name of entity registration  of business  held by the Group by the Group Principal activity
FRERKE FREHA
El&R BB FEEXME HANERNS RRELH FTERE
m 2018 m 2018

Shishi Shen Guo Tou Commercial PRC PRC - 30% - 30%  Operation of commercial
Property Company Limited complex
("Shishi Shen Guo Tou") (Note a)

RABERBRER i HE LEBRGAAE
BRAR(RWRER])(ita)

Shenzhen Zhong De Logistics PRC PRC 30% - 30% - Domestic logistics, freight
Company Limited forwarding, warehousing
("Zhong De Logistics") (Note b) and distribution services

A TERERERAR HhE hE Bnn - HERE

(TR ) (7:0)

Annual Report 2019

R R HET

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



e e e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

22.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 27 August 2018, Putian Licheng Branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (“ICBC"”) submitted an arbitration
(the “Arbitration”) to the Xiamen Arbitration Commission,
against Shishi Shen Guo Tou to recover a bank loan with an
outstanding principal and the financing interest amounting to
RMB141,569,000 and RMB720,000, respectively, as well as
the expenses incurred for realising creditor’s right (collectively,
the “Legal Proceeding”). Shenzhen Zhonghe Chuangjian
Investment Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Zhonghe”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, being the guarantor to the loan, was named as
defendant in the Arbitration. Details of the Legal Proceeding
has been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
11 September 2018.

On 1 April 2019, Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian Investment
Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen Shen He"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a disposal agreement with an independent third party
(the "Purchaser 1), whereby Purchaser | has conditionally
agreed to purchase and Shenzhen Shen He has conditionally
agreed to sell the entire equity interests of Shenzhen Zhonghe
which holds 30% equity interests in Shishi Shen Guo Tou to
Purchase | at a consideration of RMB13,200,000. The disposal
has been completed on 30 April 2019. Details of the disposal
are disclosed in Note 38 (a).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Shenzhen Shenxi
Investment & Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Shenxi”) acquired 66.67% equity interest in Shenzhen
He Hui Huang Development Company Limited (“SHHH
Development”). SHHH Development held 30% equity
interest in Zhong De Logistic. The acquisition of SHHH
Development has been completed on 22 January 2019.
Details of the acquisition are disclosed in Note 37(a).

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

22.

RBEATINER(E)

Bt

(a)

(b)

M2018F8H27H » RE TR RITAL
MERAANERZHEZIT((IEE
THMEMMHEZESRE M (T
) ZROMRAEREEHARE
B-SRTEINES LBERNE
7 Bl AR % 141,569,000 & A R %
720,0007T + LA K 5t B IR E R AEF)
ELENRAZ (GEIEERER]) &Y
MRABIRREZRARA R ([N
REe | ARFEE2ENBAR) -
BZEBRMERA - BN
A BEEEDFHFHBRAQFA
HiA2018F9A 11 HMREHEE »

2019418  FYITILFIEIZ
BEBERGRAR([RXM] - &
AREEEZENBAR) BBYE=
HTEBIDISZLHERZ - Bk
BEABRGRERE  mAILAE
BHREHERAMFAREIFE30%
BAERRIIRE N2 HRETE S
REAARK13,200,0007T ° HES
EEA2019F4 A30H %MK - HESE
THA BRI FE38(a) i % °

HE2019F 128318 ILEFE - ®YIT
IEEEERARAR(RIKE])
KEFRINMmEEBRERERA A
(TRNEEERE |)66.67%ALHE -
FYNEBEERITEREMRI0%
BEHE o RIS IBREERKEEEERN
2019 1 228 %Rk - IR EEM
BERKIFE37(@)F #EE -
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22,

176

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. MEREATINES(Z)
Summarised financial information of associates BEATIHMETHEE
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s REEBZS AR BER B EST
associates is set out below. The summarised financial TX o LTI BERIEI5H 2 A7)
information below represents amounts shown in the RIEE B RE BRSO 53R
associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance FIIRAEHE ©
with HKFRSs.
The associates are accounted for using the equity method B AR AR AR ZE R A MR
in these consolidated financial statements. RALR -
Shishi Shen Guo Tou 2018
AXiEER RMB’000
AREEFTT
Current assets MENVE B 749
Non-current assets ERBEE 429,058
Current liabilities MENAE (64,444)
Non-current liabilities ERBEG (161,100)
Shishi Shen Guo Tou 2019 2018
EHERE RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
(Note)
(W)
Revenue Wz 3,044 9,744
Loss for the year FNEE (3,943) (286,466)
Other comprehensive income for the year  FRE 2 E WA = -
Total comprehensive expense for the year — FNE Sk 4458 (3,943) (286,466)

Dividends received from the associate
during the year

Note:

FREBERT
LGNS

From 1 January 2019 to 30 April 2019 (date of disposal)

BfaE : B2019%181HEE2019F4 8308
(HEBE)1E
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22.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. MEEATINRES(E)

Summarised financial information of associate
(Continued)

BELATMMBRHBEZE)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

B ERBE BN RE P RE

information to the carrying amount of the interest RN —EEE AR SN EREY
in associates recognised in the consolidated financial BE :
statements:
2018
RMB’000
ARBFT
Net assets of Shishi Shen Guo Tou AMRBERFEE 204,263
Proportion of the Group's ownership REERAIRBIS RS #
interest in Shishi Shen Guo Tou Eaynall 30%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest REBERARRERE
in Shishi Shen Guo Tou EmrIREE 61,278
Zhong De Logistics 2019
BEE RMB’000
AR®TRT
Current assets MENVE B 5,319
Non-current assets ERHEE 1,645,223
Current liabilities mEBEE (879,933)
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE -
Zhong De Logistics 2019
mEmR RMB’000
AR®TT
(Note)
(Hiax)
Revenue Weas =
Loss for the period HAAN 18 (24,553)
Other comprehensive income for the period ERFYE fth 2 E A =
Total comprehensive expense for the period HiR 2 [ Sz 4258 (24,553)

Dividends received from the associate
during the period

Note:  From 21 January 2019 (date of acquisition) to 31 December Bzt -

2019.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

EEIAISE A UNCIEEE G i d5)

B2019F1 A218 (WEHH)Z=2019

128318 -

177



Ay S A,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

22.

23.

178

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22.

Summarised financial information of associate
(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest
in associates recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

RBEATINER(E)

BEATNMBRHBEZ)

B E R E BN AR A B HRR
ERNE A R RS R ELR

2019

RMB’000

AR®TIT

Net assets of Zhong De Logistics RIEYREEE 770,609
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REERREY A S &

interest in Zhong De Logistics Mz bl 30%

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in BN REWRH
Zhong De Logistics = IREE 231,183

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BofBEFARMZE AR
IR

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFTT

Unlisted investments: FETRE -
— Equity securities (Note) —RAFE S (M at)

52,743 49,000
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23.

24.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Note:  As at 31 December 2019, the unlisted equity investment
represents 1.38% equity interest in a PRC private limited
company which is principally engaged in banking business
in the PRC. The Directors have elected to designate this
investment at FVTOCI as it is the Group's strategy to hold
these investments for long-term purposes.

As at 31 December 2019, an aggregate of 21,310,344
shares, which represented approximately 0.81% equity
interest in that PRC private limited company, has not been
registered under the name of the Group by the relevant
banking company due to the restriction on restructuring.
The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has acquired
the beneficial interest of the equity interest at the end of the
reporting period, and the registration can be performed upon
the relevant restriction released.

As at 31 December 2018, the unlisted equity investment
represents 9.26% equity interest in a PRC private company
engaged in banking business. The Directors have elected
to designate this investment at FVTOCI as it is the Group's
strategy to hold these investments for long-term purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
disposed of its certain unlisted equity securities at a
consideration of RMB5,400,000, which was also the fair value
as at the date of disposal. A cumulative gain on disposal of
RMB 112,000 has been transferred to accumulated losses.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
During the year ended 31 December 2019

On 4 July 2019, Shenzhen Shenxi entered into a
disposal agreement with an independent third party
(the “Purchaser Il"), whereby the Purchaser Il has
conditionally agreed to purchase and Shenzhen Shenxi
has conditionally agreed to sell 66.67% equity interests
and the shareholder’s loan of SHHH Development at the
consideration of RMB173,000,000. The assets and liabilities
attributable to SHHH Development, which is expected to
be sold within twelve months, have been classified as a
disposal group held for sale and are presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position (see
below). The net proceeds of disposal are expected to
exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant assets and
liabilities and accordingly, no impairment loss has been
recognised.

Deposit of RMB20,000,000 has been received from the
Purchaser Il and was recognised as deposit received as at
31 December 2019.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

23.

24,

BoRREFARMSE AR
¥IRE)

Btat : 2019128318 @ FEEmBRAR
BE—MEENTREYERITEBN
FEFLABRAE1.38%HAE - &
FEEBUREIET AR AR EE
AHME2EBAGE  BREEAEE
BSRBS R IGZ SR EFERBIRE -

M2019F12 8318 » AR EHAR
Hl - FERRIT AR MARUAE@E &
ERA 21,310,344/ 0515 - HHER
ZHBEFLABRAFLI0.81%MIME o
EERAREERBEHRCKIER
BB - MARZE A RIEE
MR IR R 1R HETT o

M20185 12 A31H » JE L MARAIE
BiE—HREERITESOTRELAR
F19.26% MR - EEREBILIEE
EEARARBEFAEMEZEERA
T2 REARASEENRBERZS
BEBERBRRE -

HZE2018F 128318 ILFE - A&
EHEERETIELMBRAZES - R
85 AR ¥5,400,0007C * TRAEER
PERHHAREE - HEMRFUK
#HAREE112,000T 2 ERAE R E

=
DEEBEHENSTE
#$F2019F12A31HILEE

201997848 @ RINLEEIF T
F=HBBNDTLEERH - B
I BANEBEREZBEmARIL
BERHRELERIIEGBEERE
66.67%BERBEREER  REAAR
#5173,000,0007T ° AT RYIE 18I 5
BREGHEERABEERNTZEANRN
HE - DEARBIEHENTEHE]
YRR ETBRAKREBZY (AT
X) o BEHHESFUEF5EHB HHRE
EENMBENERERFE QT EER
BEEE -

M2019F12 8318 * & B E HIUE
=14 AR #20,000,00070 1 2 HER A
BUETE -
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24.  ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Continued) 2. SELBBERENIEE)

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued) #HE20195F 12831 HILEE(Z)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of SHHH
Development classified as held for sale are as follows:

DEBFEHENRY GBRERN
TREENAESERWT

180

2019
RMB’000
AR®TT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) 1% - B R&E(H:£17) 81
Right-of-use assets (Note 18) EREEEME18) 43
Interest in an associate (Note 22) PR E R RIMER (t22) 231,183
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR MRS 17
Amount due from an associate FEU— RISt & A R FRIR 8,000
Other receivables EAb UK 130
Total assets classified as held for sale DR AEBIEHEEERSE 239,454
Amount due to the Company FERT AR B FRIE 8,000
Trade payable FEFBR 3K 38
Other payables EAB R 6,443
Lease liabilities HeEasE 44
Total liabilities (before intra-group elimination) & {E42%8 (FNFR £ BN A B S AT) 14,525
Less: Intra-group elimination B EERA B (8,000)
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DEASEHENA GRS 6,525

Annual Report 2019  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

24.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2018

On 12 September 2018, Shenzhen Tai He Chuang Jian
Investment Development Company Limited* )&%
BEIEKREEREREIEALT ("Tai He Chuang Jian”),
being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a disposal agreement (the “Disposal Agreement
1”) with the purchaser (the “Purchaser Il1"), whereby
the Purchaser Ill has conditionally agreed to purchase
and Tai He Chuang Jian has conditionally agreed to sell
20% equity interests of Guangzhou Hai Yue Real Estate
Development Company Limited (“Hai Yue Real Estate"”)
at the consideration of RMB133,000,000 (the “Disposal
1”). The investment in 20% equity interests of Hai Yue
Real Estate, which is expected to be sold within twelve
months after the reporting date, has been classified as
assets classified as held for sale and is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
net proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the
net carrying amount of the assets and accordingly, no
impairment loss has been recognised.

Deposit of RMB20,000,000 had been received from the
Purchaser Il and was recognised as deposit received as at
31 December 2018. Details of the Disposed | have been
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 12
September 2018, 5 October 2018, 1 November 2018, 6
December 2018, 28 December 2018 and the Company’s
circular dated 18 January 2019.

Disposal | was completed on 4 March 2019. A cumulative
gain on disposal of RMB3,000,000 has been transferred to
accumulated losses.

* For identification purpose only

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

24,

DIEBIBEHENEE(Z)
#$F2018F12A31HILEE

R2018%9 8128 » FIlmFAAIZE
REREARET ([ RE8I®E]
ARRI2EMBRAR)EESH([BE
M) HE ([ HEmE) - &
I EANEKRHREEEMRGAZE
BRGREHERINESERHERRE
ERAR([BBEHE|)20% % -
KRB A ARK133,000,0007T ([ HE
B/IH) - BEAINBEFEHE20%ME
RIHEBRFEBBRET—@EARD
B DBEARBEHENEE W
GUBRAREBZY - BRI HEAM
BREFEBLEERDFE - HF
EHEREETE o

R2018F12 A31H » B E HIIHER
T4 AR#20,000,000T 2 fER A
BEETS - BELHESHEINGFBER
AARBHES B A2018F9/128 -
2018410 A5H ~ 2018511 A18 »
2018512 A6H - 2018512 A28HH
NERKATHER2019F1 H18H
A KR A ER o

HEEEDN2019FE3 8405w/ B
£ 2tz A R #3,000,0007T 2 8 #
ZE5EE -

* s
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25.  DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTIES 25.

Deposit paid for acquisition of Properties | Ui 2EI(F# 2 fta)
(defined in Note a) ZisAnNEH kA

Deposit paid for acquisition of Properties |l

(defined in Note b) e HET &

Notes:

(a) On 15 November 2016, Beijing Shen Shang Investment &
Consulting Company Limited* (“Beijing Shen Shang”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an acquisition agreement (the “Properties Acquisition
Agreement 1”) with a vendor (the “Vendor 1), pursuant to
which Vendor | agreed to sell, and Beijing Shen Shang agreed
to acquire a commercial premise with the construction area
of 2,800 square meters (with the right to use 5,000 square
meters of car parks at the basement level two, being part of
Phase 3 of the ancillary facility project of Beijing International
Zone Convention Center* to be constructed in Beijing Shunyi
District Tianzhu Airport Commercial Zone* (the “Properties
1”) at the cash consideration of RMB152,800,000. Details of
the acquisition of the Properties | has been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 November 2016.

At 31 December 2019, the balance of RMB147,100,000
(2018: RMB140,000,000) represented a refundable deposit

paid for the acquisition. The acquisition is expected to be
completed on 30 June 2021.

* For identification purpose only

182

W iEY I (& Z M atb)

iR MRAZTRIET &
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
147,100 140,000
- 96,736
147,100 236,736

EE

(a)

R2016511 A158 @ L RBEKRE
FBHERAR(REE] - A27
FEMBAR)EERI([BEHI)AT
S EE ([RGB
It BEAIREHE R REHRE
WHE—IBRAME - MERBEME
2,800 F KW BREERETEZE
5,000 F 5K EEIG 2R - B
UL RWIER B RL =B E &
At R gRERBEERERE
HE 3N —BH ([l  BEeR
& A& AR % 152,800,0007T » A UL
BYEOFEREAQRBEA2016
FNMAISHNRERERE -

MR2019F12 8318 » &% AR
147,100,000 7T ( 2018 FF : A R ¥
140,000,0007T ) ¥E st i FIEE A4 7]
REIFT & - TEEEE FIEM 202146
A308 7K »

Eas5)
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25. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTIES 25.

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) On 9 February 2018 and 17 August 2018, Beijing Shen
Shang and San He Jing Jiao Property Development
Company Limited* (the “Vendor I1” or “San He Jing
Jiao"”) entered into a property acquisition agreement and
a supplemental agreement (collectively referred to as the
“Properties Acquisition Agreements Il"”) pursuant
to which Vendor Il has conditionally agreed to sell, and
Beijing Shen Shang has conditionally agreed to acquire, the
properties (the “Properties I1”) at the cash consideration of
RMB110,000,000. As at 31 December 2018, the balance of
RMB96,736,000 represented a refundable deposit paid for
the acquisition.

On 18 March 2019, Vendor Il and Beijing Shen Shang entered
into a compensation agreement (the “Compensation
Agreement”) pursuant to which it is agreed that the Vendor
Il shall additionally deliver the rights to use one car parking
space to Beijing Shen Shang as compensation for delay in
processing the property ownership certificate of Properties Il

Subsequently, the Board has changed the acquisition plan.
On 5 August 2019, Vendor Il and Beijing Shen Shang
entered into a termination agreement (the “Termination
Agreement”) pursuant to which both parties mutually
agreed to terminate the Properties Acquisition Agreements |I
and the Compensation Agreement with immediate effect and
the transactions contemplated thereunder will not proceed.
At as the date of signing the Termination Agreement, Beijing
Shen Shang has paid consideration of RMB110,000,000 to
the Vendor II.

Details of the termination has been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 5 August 2019.

Subsequent to the termination and before 31 December
2019, the deposit paid of RMB110,000,000 was set off
against the consideration payable for the acquisition of 78%
equity interest of San He Jing Jiao. Details of the acquisition
has been disclosed in Note 26(a).

* For identification purpose only

26. DEPOSITS PAID FOR POTENTIAL INVESTMENT 26.

W RE MR FR T (TROET & (45)

Hret - (%)

(b) 7201842 A9H K201848 A178H -
IR E =R EERE AR
AF[EBWSKZARB) I
FWE R E kAT HE (A E Rk
BiREul) Bt EHIEGHR
BEHEMILFEREKERZ U E
mE(DEN])  BEREABARK
110,000,000 7T ° #2018 & 12 A 31
A s AR¥96,736,0007TF5 FLUK
BEBONAERTS -

R2019%3A18H » B AL 7H
AR UmERE((HERE]) &
It BEE SN N — B
R TR E RN IE Y5
I ET B EREFEENMIE -

Hiz RSB WIEE - 122019
F8ASH - B IELL SURR AT LT
IR (TR ) - Bt - AT
77 LA 165 7E BB 4% LE ) S W BB thp 21
KERZS - REETES®ETNZS
ST - RBATREHEAS
EFREFERESIZNREARE
110,000,0007T °

BRKRIENFBERAAR AR A2019
FEASHMAEFIHE o

4R 1E1E R A2019F 12 A31HAT - B
S 4574 AR #110,000,0007T & £2
BEURBE = S AB78 % AL FE (T IR (B
Frikad - B RUEE R EHIB R M zE26(a)
IR -

* Eas)

Deposit paid for acquisition of
San He Jing Jiao (Note a)

Deposit paid for potential investments Il
(defined in Note b)

P E9RT &

P 9 RT &

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

Wi = KB (Hata)

BERENCEZ ZHTZD)

BEREMIMNETS
2019 2018
RMB000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
110,000 -
56,000 -
166,000 -
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26.

184

DEPOSITS PAID FOR POTENTIAL INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

(a

On 28 October 2019, Shenzhen Shenhe Chuangli Investment
and Development Company Limited* (“Shenhe Chuangli”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Beijing Shen
Shang, San He Jing Jiao and vendor A, vendor B and vendor C,
(collectively referred to as “Vendors Ill”) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Shenhe Chuangli
has conditionally agreed to purchase and the Vendors Il
have conditionally agreed to sell 78% equity interest of San
He Jing Jiao at the consideration of RMB321,000,000 (the
“San He Jing Jiao Acquisition Agreement”). Details of
the acquisition of San He Jing Jiao has been disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 28 October 2019, 18
November 2019, 20 December 2019, 6 February 2020, 11
March 2020 and 15 April 2020.

Pursuant to the San He Jing Jiao Acquisition Agreement,
Beijing Shen Shang and San He Jing Jiao mutually agreed
to transfer the deposit received from Beijing Shen Shang at
the amount of RMB110,000,000 in relation to the Properties
Acquisition Agreements Il (Note 25(b)) to the vendor A.

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of RMB110,000,000
(2018: Nil) represented the deposit paid for the acquisition of
San He Jing Jiao. As at the date of this report, the acquisition
has not been completed.

On 30 December 2019, Shenhe Chuangli, and a vendor
(“Vendor IV") entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Shenhe Chuangli has conditionally
agree to purchase and the Vendor IV has conditionally
agreed to sell 95% equity interest of eight companies,
collectively (1) Beijing Herun wanwu Technology Co., Ltd.*,
(2) Beijing Wanxiang Shengrun Technology Co., Ltd.*, (3)
Ningyun Runyu Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.*, (4) Yueyu
Wanrun (Beijing) Culture Communication Co., Ltd.*, (5)
Jiao Yanpengda Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.*, (6) Beijing
Shuying Wanyu Culture Communication Co., Ltd.*, (7) Wu
Ruo Yue Xiu (Beijing) Cultural Communication Co., Ltd.*,
and (8) Beijing Ronghui Guangyi Technology Co., Ltd.*
(collectively the “Target Companies”) at the consideration
of RMB71,000,000.

Target Companies comprises of companies established under
the Target Companies laws of the PRC with limited liability,
which are principally engaged in the investment holding.
Target Companies hold a total of 125 subsidiaries, each of
which has entered into a Beijing Commercial Real Estate
Sale and Purchase Contract* (the “Contract”) with an
independent third party, involving acquisitions of total 125
properties (the “Properties IlI"). The Properties Il are located
in the Zhiying Commercial Center in Liangxiang Higher
Education Park, Fangshan, Beijing, adjacent to Liangxiang
University City North Station. Details of the acquisition has
been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30
December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, RMB56,000,000 represented

deposits paid for the acquisition of the Target Companies.
The acquisition has been completed on 7 April 2020.

* For identification purpose only

26.

BERBRIMRETR(E)

At -

(a)

(b)

20194108288 » FYITEA &l
VEEREBRAR([RE8EZ] -
KARZEMBAR) - L7ER -
SN RMBEF A BEABRESC
(FBEAMDTLEE WS &
It FEENBERHEREBEME
HNEGHERELEE=ARB78%
#x - REA AR 321,000,0007T
([EFTBURRIRE ) - BRI
B EH RO BRARRT B ES 5
A2019F10H28H ~ 2019411518
H - 20195128208 - 202092 A6
H - 202043 A 118 %2020%F4A15
HEAE R -

B4R =0 R U i - bR R
=N RABE AR EEED B RUER
W BN A B S M BB 1 I (B 2 25(b))
#1574 AR%110,000,0007C 7 & /5
A o

MR2019F12 A318 » % AR
110,000,0007C (20184 : #) 55tk
=R BT ® - RARE
BE - ZKEESBE S AT o

M2019%12 A308 @ FA AL 8—
HEH BBV LEE R - B
It FEBNBERHEREBEME
ANVEEHERE LS \ERF95%8K
EBMIERMEEDREERA
Al Qb REFRERHEARAR
GEEEFRFULR)ERAA -
(HAEEBELR) UEEREARA
Al > G)ABEMSERE (L R) ARA
A eI RGEEmESCEEERA
A (MBEEFUER)UEBEESR
ARG REEESREARA
A(FREIBEEAR]) REAARE
71,000,0007T °

B 22 A8 AR IR A BUA B 6 3 /Y
ZEABRART  TEREREER
X% o BERREARIFA A HK 125 B
YNG9S ib - vy AVA G
AMEMEREEEAR) &S
B FRREE£125BBME(]
2 - MENMIAIERE LR
HERNNEBEEFRL - BERBX
2Tk - AEKBEENFIERA
AR AHA2019F 12 A30B A%
KR o

M2019F 12 A31H » AR
56,000,000 T 5 5t Y B IR A B AT 2
EET 2 - WIEEIEE 1202064 A
7R °

* Eas)

Annual Report 2019  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



e e e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

27.

28.

CONTRACT COSTS

27.

REMA K
BN

Construction costs and expenditure
capitalised

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 are mainly related to land leveling cost, road facilities
and electricity supply, rainwater and wastewater facilities
and land requisition cost.

Contract costs are recognised as part of the cost of
sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the period in which revenue from the related project is
recognised. The amount of capitalised costs recognised in
profit or loss during the year was RMB20,853,000 (2018:
RMB63,651,000). There was no impairment in relation
to the opening balance of captalised costs or the costs
capitalised during the year.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

28.

BHHE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
128,124 136,921

M2019F K%2018F 12 B31HEFE R
MAEHWKAETSE L1 FES B
e M EE - KOS KERBEAN T iR
REEH -

AR AR ERIEEEB KA R
BABERRPHERETEERRE -
FRARBRTERANE MK A S5
A AR #20,853,0007T (20184 A
R#63,651,0007T) - FAWEEBHE
AAU B AN B ) 45 8 S B AL K AR B R
1H o

Fixed-rate loan and interest receivables
Less: Allowance for credit losses

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s loan and
interest receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB14,339,000 which are past due
more than 90 days or more as at the reporting date. The
Directors are in the view that there been no significant
increase in credit risk nor default of the remaining
RMB 14,339,000 based on the repayment history and
creditworthiness of the debtors.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

E SR E R RS
o EREBEEE

B R EFR
2019 2018
RMB000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
31,812 119,181
(17,473) (11,464)
14,339 107,717
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28. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 28. MEWEZRIB(E)
At 31 December 2019, the loan receivables arising from M2019F 12 831H » ZEEBEAMN
credit business are unsecured, bear fixed interest at 6% EERAEET « IRETENKE6%
(2018: 8%) per annum. (20184 : 8%)FT B °
The exposure to the Group's fixed-rate loan receivables to REFREWTEERNT ZR RN E
interest rate risks and their contractual maturity dates are as AHBERMT :
follows:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT

Fixed-rate loan and interest receivables: EEBEREFE

On demand BEK 14,339 -

Within 3 months 3EAR - 6,606

Over 3 months but less than 1 year @3 EAELRE - 101,111
14,339 107,717

The loan and interest receivables outstanding as at 31 2019F 201812 831H @ HAE

December 2019 and 2018 are denominated in Hong Kong BHERSH LT B LETTEE o

dollars.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 6(b). BERET S BENWE60)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

29. DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables Ho e R
Deposits i

Less: Allowance for credit losses

Notes:

At 31 December 2019, other receivables mainly include:

(a

approximately RMB14,827,000, net of impairment loss
of RMB173,000 (2018: RMB15,000,000) represented a
loan to Guangzhou Leyou Internet Technology Co. Ltd*
(“Guangzhou Leyou”), an independent third party. On 5
August 2019, the Company and Guangzhou Leyou entered
into a supplementary agreement, pursuant to which the
Company and Guangzhou Leyou agreed to extend the loan
period for seven months to 6 March 2020.

The unsecured loan bear interest rate at 6% (2018: 8%) per
annum with a term of seven months (2018: eight months).

approximately RMB10,266,000, net of impairment loss
of RMB684,000 (2018: Nil) represented the consideration
receivable from Purchaser I, in relation to the disposal of
the entitled equity interest of Shenzhen Shen He which was
completed on 28 June 2019. Details of the disposal are
disclosed in Note 38(a).

approximately RMB43,087,000, net of impairment of
RMB69,913,000 (31 December 2018: Nil) represented the
consideration receivable from Purchaser Ill, in relation to the
Disposal | which was completed on 4 March 2019. Details of
the Disposal | are disclosed in Note 24.

approximately RMB5,701,000, net of impairment loss
of RMB380,000 (2018: Nil) represented a loan to an
independent third party. The unsecured loan bear interest
rate at 6% per annum with a term of one year.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 6(b).

*

For identification purpose only

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

B SRR

BT & B Hfth PR U %
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
146,480 16,514
133 55
146,613 16,569
(71,615) (124)
74,998 16,445

Haz -

H2019%F12 8318 @ Ht e T E64E -

(a)

(b)

(©)

#) AN R #14,827,0007T (1B FUE &
BARE173,00070) (2018F : AR
#15,000,0007C) ER FRLE =T
BN e B B REHT AR A F) (TR
B )MER - KR201948858 -
AAREEINERF T LT E - &
I RAFEEMNE RS LERER
HARSZ202053 A6R - AHIEEA -

ZEBEMETIZFNE6% (2018
F:8%)FtE - REMLMEA (2018
F:EA) -

# AN R #10,266,000 7T (F154: S5 (E &5
B AR¥684,0007T) (20184 : 4#)
EREKE FIRE - REBRR2019
6 A28B TR ERYNILAZE
B - EALE BENFERHE
38(a) % ©

#9 A\ B # 43,087,000 (1B RLE A
R #69,913,0007z) (20184 12 A 31
B #)IEEKEFIRE  RAEH
MR2019F3 F4A KM EEE -
B ESHEINFBRM 2455 -

#ARH5,701,0007T (FIBR IR BB 1B
AR¥380,0007T) (20184 : %) 5
By —RBBIEZHTNER - EIKH
BERIRFRE6%E - BH—F -

RERHE R BRI M RE6(b) °

EH5)
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30.

31.

188

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances are mainly denominated in RMB and
deposited with banks in the PRC. The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from
the 0.01% to0 0.35% (2018: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.
The bank balances are deposited in creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances
and concluded that the probability of defaults of the
counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no
allowance for credit losses is provided.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

The amount represents advanced payments received from
the Sole Customer in respect of Project and restricted for
settlement of various costs upon approval by the Sole
Customer.

Details of impairment assessment of restricted bank
balances are set out in Note 6(b).

30.

31.

BITERREAS

RITBBEEAREEE - W
ERR AN - ARBTEEMH
SRR EE - AT REPER
HCONE BRI BCHEE - B R A
EERAE) - AEETE R R
BONE EBERRIT IS AR H LB E
st -

BITEBIEFNHFENT0.01%E
0.35% (20184 : 0.01% £0.35% ) &t
BHE - BITEBREROPEENL
PEEERITMIRTT -

HE2019F12A831BIHFE - A%£H
HIRITEBEITRET S - WELY
FHIBTENURMEMN At E
EEBEELEE -

ZRHIBITRER
ZERENABBRE-FEFPHOR

H - WARSH —F P HUET AIE R
BIEER -

BRAZ R RITAERHBEEFE
FHNFIEE6(D) ©
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32.

33.

TRADE PAYABLES 32. EMIRS
Trade payables represented construction payables in ENEXAHEABRNLEMIBEE B
relation to construction costs and other project-related EEY AN ESIRERSYT - YIRS
expenses which are payable based on project progress REBFENEBBEEESN - HIER
measured by the Group. The suppliers have not specified R T AR EE IS TSR -
the credit period granted to the Group.
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the PA T AR R HE R M e~ BR 20 A BE 5
end of the reporting period: DHT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBETTT
Within 90 days SN 9,907 -
Over 90 days 90KIA 57,324 85,324
67,231 85,324
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 33. MBRE&ESH

As at 31 December 2018, a bank loan provided by ICBC
to Shishi Shen Guo Tou is guaranteed by Shenzhen
Zhonghe. The maximum amount guaranteed by Shenzhen
Zhonghe under the financial guarantee contract was
RMB49,787,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the bank
loan was expired and ICBC has filed the Arbitration
against Shishi Shen Guo Tou. Details of the Arbitration
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 September 2018. The Directors have performed
impairment assessment and concluded that there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
of the financial guarantee contract. Accordingly, a loss
allowance of RMB49,787,000 has been recognised for
financial guarantee contract during the year ended 31
December 2018. Details of the impairment assessment are
set out in Note 6(b).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Shenzhen
Zhonghe has been disposed of and the financial guarantee
contract has been disposed accordingly. Details of the
disposal are disclosed in Note 38(a).

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

R2018F 12 A31H » TERiTAA
FRBEIEIREN —FERITERAR
INZREER - XINREBRETEE
REVFERNESSEAARE
49,787,0007T °

HE2018F12A31HILFE - %2R
TEFRDES  RIFRTHAMER
Bl IR M E - BRAMSEMOFBERAR
ARIHEA2018F9A1TMHMAE
WE - EBCETRENS  TET
EERR AV BERE NV ZERA
REEEIL M - FLL - BLE20185F12H
31HIEFE  ERMBERANER
B8 B 15 A R %549,787,0007T ° BB
FHER BRI EE6()

HE2019F 12831 HILEE - FY
BEDHELE  MPBEREGHNED
% - BN EEEMFBRME3SE)
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34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 3. &WEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBFT
Current liabilities mENAR
Construction of infrastructure and EMRmER R EER
development of properties 61,749 84,299
There was no balance of contract liabilities as at 1 January R2018FE 1A 1B EALNBELE
2018. As at 31 December 2019, RMB61,749,000 (2018: £ o R2019F 12 A31H '+ AR
RMB84,299,000) represents the advance payments made 61,749,000 7= ( 2018 &£ : A R ¥&
by the Sole Customer. 84,299,0007T ) ¥ — & F 1T
FRIE o
The Sole Customer made advance payments to the M—RPEBWIR PN EETE
Group while the acceptance and transfer procedure is still AAREBEERERNTIE - BmEE
ongoing. The advance payments result in contract liabilities HAYEERBEEERLEERER
being recognised throughout the construction and R BEBIWSNIEFTTHK LM —
development period until the completion of the acceptance REEED B T EMS LY ENT
and transfer procedure and the Sole Customer obtains HIREA L o
control of the completed infrastructure and property.
The following table shows how much of the revenue TEREIAROERKFEHLEEASNE
recognised relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and ERENREERERNBTHEERT
how much relates to performance obligations that were MBS THENEE -
satisfied in prior periods.
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB‘000
ARWTR ARBFIT
Revenue recognised that was included REVEF AR B BEEHD
in the contract liabilities balance BiERN S
at the beginning of the year 21,893 -
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35. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 35. HMEMZRREER

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTTT

Other payables and accruals (Note a) HEmEf s ke &R
(Kizta) 18,717 21,977
Payable for construction cost of office RPN ERERRHFERFK
18 4,209 12,920
Amount due to former shareholders of FERTE R &% RS == Al
Guangdong Xinmao and Chaozhou AR R FIB (A7 aED)
Jiafu (Note b) - 17,467
22,926 52,364
Notes: B
(a) As at 31 December 2019, approximately RMB10,962,000 (a) A2019F 12 A31H Y ARK
(2018: RMB10,962,000) represented a government grant 10,962,000 7t ( 2018 & : A R ¥
with unfulfilled condition received by Guangdong Xinmao 10,962,0007T ) 8 E R &% MM E
and Chaozhou Jiafu (as defined in Note 37(c)). B (FE BMFE370) Fr U ER M B &
ERIGH BN EES o
(b) As at 31 December 2018, the amount due to former (b) A2018F 12 A310 » ERNEREX
shareholders of Guangdong Xinmao and Chaozhou Jiafu are RN ES BT IR R B F0E A m K -
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no specific terms of TEtE R s FiE s - 22019
repayment. The balance has been fully settled during the year F12A31BIFE  ZEHDERH
ended 31 December 2019. g o

201943 BEAHBERBERLQR 191
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36.  LEASE LIABILITIES

36. HEARE

2019
RMB’000

AR®TT

NSSN

Lease liabilities payable:
Within one year —F R

BN THRXHEERE

Within a period of more than BB —FETBBEME

one year but not more than two years

754

264

1,018

Less: Amount due for settlement 128 AREHENHORIE (G ARBEE)

with 12 months shown under
current liabilities

(754)

Amount due for settlement after 12{8 AZ B HIENNFIBE (B AIEREEE)

12 months shown under
non-current liabilities

37.  ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019

(a) On 11 May 2017, Shenzhen Shenxi, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a capital contribution agreement with SHHH
Development and Shenzhen Newpont Investment
Group Limited ("SNP Investment”), pursuant to
which Shenzhen Shenxi, being the new investor,
agreed to make capital contribution in the total
sum of RMB155,000,000 to Zhong De Logistics.
Upon completion of capital contribution, Shenzhen
Shenxi will hold 20% equity interest in Zhong De
Logistics.

264

37. BRWRMEBLAFTMREE

HF2019%F12A31HILLEE

(a)

M2017E5 8118  JRIILE
(KRRIZEWB AR R
AREEERERFYITH B
BEBEARRAD (RN
BE DT E W Btk
FILE(EATREE)RE
MREDRIEBREARE
155,000,000 7T ° & 5ERK
% FYLEBZEREYR
20% A% HE ©
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37.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

RMB150,000,000 has been paid to Zhong De
Logistics during the year ended 31 December
2017. As at 31 December 2018, the acquisition has
not been completed and RMB150,000,000 was
recognised as deposit paid.

On 12 March 2019, Shenzhen Shenxi, SNP
Investment, SHHH Development, Zhong De
Logistics, Lu Hancai and Ma Xinan (both being
independent third parties) entered into a
supplemental agreement, pursuant to which,
the capital contribution in Zhong De Logistics
through capital injection by Shenzhen Shenxi was
changed to acquisition of 66.67% equity interest
in SHHH Development by Shenzhen Shenxi from
Lu Hancai and Ma Xinan. After the completion of
the acquisition, the Group has held 66.67% equity
interest in SHHH Development.

SHHH Development is engaged in domestic
logistics, freight forwarding, warehousing and

distribution services in the PRC.

The above acquisition has been accounted for
acquisition of assets.

Consideration transferred

37.

EBUEIRE L FIRERE(E)

#HE2019F12A31HILEE (&)

(a

(%)

HE2017F12A318 15
E - EmMBEMRENTARE
150,000,0007T ° 7220184 12
A318 @ WIEEE KT
I B # R A R # 150,000,000
TERBENETE °

R201943 8128 » FHlk
B ORYFHIEE - FIEE
BEE - BEWR - BYFE=
FEESREEBI M ETH
& oB BRYILERRE
MR EE B BRI ERE
EIREERRERIIEGERE
#E[R66.67 %% - NIRAESTE
EKE - AEBREINEER
R E66.67%NHE

RYGBEERTEZNPEY
SEAYR BEERE - B
R D HARIG R

PR EEE AR EREA
HE o

FrEsRAE

RMB’000
UN:

Cash Re
Deposit paid BfET&
Total 5T

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

5,000
150,000

155,000
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37. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF 37. EBNBMHBLATIKEEEZ)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued) #HFE20195E12831HILEE(£E)
(a) (Continued) (a) (4&)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at R RIS E
the date of acquisition are as follows: BEEBWT :
Total
et
RMB’000
AR®TT
Property, plant and equipment W - BE K& 147
Interest in an associate R —ElEsE A Bl 238,549
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRE 93
Other receivables HAtn FEUGR 10,092
Other payables E A R (16,393)
Net assets acquired of P T &= 232,488
Non-controlling interest ORI E PR IE B R ) FE AR 2
in SHHH Development (77,488)
Total consideration MR E 155,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition of assets BB ERINEEEREIE
through acquisition of SHHH Development BENT L T RS
RMB’000
AR®TT
Cash paid BfRE (5,000)
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired B PTUREE IR TT SR MRS 93
(4,907)
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37.  ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF  37. EBUEMEBLATIWEZE £)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued) #HFE20195E12831HILEE(£E)

(b)  On 24 June 2019, Shenhe Chuangli acquired (b)
100% equity interest of Beijing Yufeng at the
consideration of RMB10,660,000 in cash. Beijing
Yufeng is mainly holding an investment property in
the PRC. The acquisition has been accounted for an
acquisition of assets.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at
the date of acquisition are as follows:

20196 8248 » FAAINL
U BE 4L A R 100% P #E - IR
& KRB A AR 10,660,000
e EREREEENPRIFTE
SEYE c WIEEHEDUEE
¢ PN

R FE B RS2 I FT I R
RAGUT :

RMB’000
AR®TT

Investment property (Note 20) WEWZ(HE220)
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRRE
Other payables E A R
Amount due to Shenhe Chuangli JERNRE BIN /1B
Net assets acquired of FrEFEE

Net cash outflow on acquisition of assets
through acquisition of Beijing Yufeng:

20,130

154
(284)
(9,340)

10,660

3 8 W R AL R i A P BT Y
B -

RMB’000
AR®TR

Cash consideration paid ERNEeRE

(10,660)

Less: Bank balance and cash acquired W FTUEEIRTTESR RIR S 154

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

(10,506)
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37.

196

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018

(0)

On 16 November 2018, Shenzhen Tong He
Chuangjian Investment Development Company
Limited* (“Shenzhen Tong He"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired 90% equity
interest of Guangdong Xinmao Biotechnology
Company Limited* (“Guangdong Xinmao") at
a consideration of RMB&,800,000 (the “Share
Transfer Agreement |1”). Guangdong Xinmao
was acquired so as to continue the expansion of
the Group'’s construction of infrastructure and
development of properties operations.

On 16 November 2018, Shenzhen JuSheng
Chuang Jian Investment and Development
Limited*, ("Shenzhen JuSheng”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company acquired 90%
equity interest of Chaozhou Jiafu Packaging
Materials Company Limited* (“Chaozhou Jiafu”)
at a consideration of RMB3,000,000 (the “Share
Transfer Agreement I1”). Chaozhou Jiafu was
acquired so as to continue the expansion of
the Group'’s construction of infrastructure and
development of properties operations.

The above acquisitions have been accounted for
acquisition of assets.

* For identification purpose only

37.

EBUEIRE L FIRERE(E)

#FE20185FE12A31HILEE

(0

2018F 11168 » FIITHRE
BRIBRREERAREMART]
([RNEE ] AREI2EH B
ANEHWEERSBXEVR
BRAF([BERER])0% MK
% - RE AR ARS,800,0007T
([ B i ESamIReER ) - BEEER
EXEMEBRALAEENE
TR MR R R TS -

2018F11H168 » FIIHE
HIEEEAR AR ([ HRINE
B| ARQFRZ2ENBLAR)IK
BENTESREMBABRA
A ([ HIMEE ) o0%ME -
B A ARK3,000,0007T ([ BER
HEBER ) - WEBNEES
FHERET A S BRI ERR M
R RYEBRER -

o

B EHEEAEEREA
S

* E 5
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37. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF 37. EBNBMHBLATIKEEEZ)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued) #HE2018F 128310 1L EE(Z)
(©) (Continued) (© (&)
Consideration transferred FregsgfiiE

Guangdong Chaozhou

Xinmao Jiafu Total
BREX BINES FE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Cash e 8,800 3,000 11,800
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised B P H R RE 32 a9 B i i 55 2
at the date of acquisition are as follows: REGEWTF :

Guangdong Chaozhou

Xinmao Jiafu Total
EREK BINES FEE

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
AREBTE AR®BTRT ARETET

Prepaid lease payments FERAENR 1,500 1,500 3,000
Construction in progress (Note 17)  EETI2(H:E17) 18,651 29,930 48,581
Bank balances and cash R1T#ER MIR S 14,807 25,203 40,010
Amount due to former shareholder — FEfTRIAX B FXIE (7,371) (10,096) (17,467)
Amount due to Shenzhen Tong He  EfTRIIEA &

and Shenzhen JuSheng Y| B EEFIE (11,000) (22,200) (33,200)
Payable for construction R NES == NG )

cost of office FEFR - (12,920) (12,920)
Other payables E AL FER SR (6,787) (7,980) (14,767)
Net assets acquired of Frig & &= 9,800 3,437 13,237
Non-controlling interests JEIE R (1,000) (437) (1,437)
Total consideration wRE 8,800 3,000 11,800
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37. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)
(0) (Continued)

Net cash inflow on acquisition of Guangdong
Xinmao and Chaozhou Jiafu

37. BBUMEMELTWMEEE)

#$E2018FE12A31HILEE (&)

© (&)
WERRZXRHMESFL
BRHARHE
Guangdong Chaozhou
Xinmao Jiafu Total
BREX MNES Bt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Cash consideration paid BERESRE
Less: Bank balance R FTUREEERTT
and cash acquired ERRIRE

As of 31 December 2018, Guangdong Xinmao and
Chaozhou Jiafu has not commenced its business or
operation and is still in progress of construction of
plant.

38. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2019

On 1 April 2019, Shenzhen Shen He entered into a
disposal agreement with the Purchaser I, pursuant
to which Shenzhen Shen He sell the entire equity
interests of Shenzhen Zhonghe and its 30% equity
interests in Shishi Shen Guo Tou to the Purchaser |
at a consideration of RMB13,200,000. The disposal
was completed on 30 April 2019.

On 24 June 2019, the Company entered into a
disposal agreement with the Purchaser I, pursuant
to which the Company sell the entire equity
interests of Shenzhen Shen He and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Shenzhen Shen Shang Chuang
Jian Investment Development Company Limited,
Sichuang Overseas Investment Development
Corporation Limited (“Sichuang Overseas”)
and Sichuang International Ltd (the “"Disposal
Group 1) to the Purchase | at a consideration of
RMB13,950,000. The disposal was completed on
28 June 2019.

(8,800) (3,000) (11,800)
14,807 25,203 40,010
6,007 22,203 28,210

A20184E12A31H » BEHREK
BRI E = A A R sk
2iE - WINERERET

38. HEREBLT

(a)

B E2019F12A31HLEE

A2019F 4818 - FYIL A
MEFIF M NSRS - B
FEIL A [ E A IH S FINER
A2 IR R H R A R RE
®30% KE RERARE
13,200,0007C ° &% HEZHEE,
720194 430858/ °

R2019%F6 A24H - AN RE
BEFIFILEEHRE - Bt
AAEHE RN LAE 2B
BREZEHBRRRIITIL
FAIEREBRRERARA - B
BlEIMEEERBRAR([B
glimo ) R BAIBRBR AR AR
([HEELE])TEAH - RES
AR #13,950,0007C ° % iH &
FIHEEM2019%F6 A28HTEK °
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38. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEMBAT(Z)
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2019 (a) #H#EX2019%F12A31HILLEE
(Continued) (4&)
Consideration received: BIfeE :
Shenzhen Disposal
Zhonghe Group |
FREe HESKE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AER®TRT
Other receivables Hi Uk 13,200* 13,950
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which BEXLZRNBHEERAMGS
control was lost: #:
Shenzhen Disposal
Zhonghe Group |
FRE HESHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AER¥®TRT
Interest in an associate R—HEE R R
R 60,096 -
Bank balance and cash RITEBRERS 17 465
Other receivables H b E UL R 1,676 13,646*
Other payables H AR - (35)
Financial guarantee BITEHEIR (49,787) =
Net assets disposed of Tt EEEFE 12,002 14,076
* This consideration has been included in other * BB R FT A& S B E R

receivable in Disposal Group | and was disposed of

during the year ended 31 December 2019.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

WEREZE2019F12A318IEFE
HE o
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38. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEMBAT(Z)
(@) During the year ended 31 December 2019 (a) #EE2019F12A31HLLFEE
(Continued) (&)
Gain (loss) on disposals of subsidiaries: HEMBLEIKE (ES) :

Shenzhen Disposal
Zhonghe Group | Total
FIRE HH &SR EI #at

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AR®TRE ARBTET ARWTRT

Consideration receivable FEWRE 13,200 13,950 27,150
Net assets disposed of I EEEFE (12,002) (14,076) (26,078)
Gain (loss) on disposal of HEMB QR

subsidiaries (E518) 1,198 (126) 1,072
Net cash outflow arising on disposals: HEZEERM T RITHRHE :

Shenzhen Disposal
Zhonghe Group | Total
FIRE HESE #5t

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARWTT ARWTR

Cash received 2R & - = =
Less: bank balances and cash B TR ERITAR

disposed of &k (17) (465) (482)

(17) (465) (482)
(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2018 (b) #E=E2018F12A31HILFEE

On 23 July 2018, the Company entered into a 201847 H23H » RAR]E
disposal agreement with an independent third BYE=([AAIV])FTILH
party (the “Purchaser IV"), pursuant to which EE - Bt - XAREER
the Company sell the entire equity interests NrEREZEMBRATNG
of Shenzhen Shen Jian and its wholly-owned BlE EHMEE SR ER DA
subsidiary, Xiaoma Chuang Fu Internet Information ([HESKEN) 2HKETE
Service Company Limited* (the “Disposal Group IV RERARK130,000
I1") to the Purchaser IV at a consideration of TC o I EEEEMR20184F9
RMB130,000. The disposal was completed on 17 R17H5E/K o
September 2018.
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38.  DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. HEMEBARE)

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2018 (b) B E2018F 12831 ILEE
(Continued) (&)
Consideration received: BIfeE :
RMB’000
ARETTT
Cash received B UR 4 130
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which BEZZHRHEERARS
control was lost: #r -
RMB'000
AREETTT
Other receivables EAtn UK 2
Bank balances and cash RITHER LIRS 82
Net assets disposed of FIHEEEFE 84
Gain on disposal of a subsidiaries: HENB 2k -
RMB'000
AREETTT
Consideration received BB 130
Net assets disposed of FTHEEEFE (84)
Gain on disposal HE W 46
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEH T RTARE :
RMB'000
ARETTT
Cash received BYIRE 130
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of & : FTHERITAEBR LIRS (82)
48
2019%% ERAARERGERAT 201
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39. SHARE CAPITAL

2019 2018
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
Rir&E & RHEE G|
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREFT
Authorised, issued and EBE BETR
fully paid: B8R :
- Domestic shares of - BREBARE
RMB1 each 1TTHNER
At 1 January and MATRR
31 December 12A318 864,000,000 864,000 864,000,000 864,000
— H-shares of RMB1 each - BREBARE
1TTEIHAR
At 1 January and MATRR
31 December 12A318 605,376,000 605,376 605,376,000 605,376
Total - HJ 1,469,376,000 1,469,376 1,469,376,000 1,469,376
40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 40. FEEKED
Share of net
assets of
of subsidiaries
SEHEATR
PEE
RMB’000
AE®TT
At 1 January 2018 201851 H1R 22,038
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37(c)) BB B A R (MaE37(c) 1,437
Share of other comprehensive income AMEEMEERA 1,568
Share of profit for the year DIEE R F 154
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 25,197
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37(a)) WhE—RINB AR (Hit37() 77,488
Share of other comprehensive income DG EAMEERA 364
Share of loss for the year DMEFANEE (5,391)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest BT IHERR RS (9,070)
At 31 December 2019 720195%12A31H 88,588
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41.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The following is the deferred tax asset recognised and the
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

RIERARE

AT REEBNVECHAEERER
REEBEFENZEHIFN

ECL provision
ARER
BiRE W

RMB’000
AR®TR

At 1 January 2018

R2018F1A1H

Credit to profit or loss (Note 12) STAB=®(HEE12) 1,888
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31H 1,888
Charge to profit or loss (Note 12) Bk (HE12) (1,066)
Exchange adjustments B A2 17
At 31 December 2019 72019%12A31H 839

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses
could be carried forward for five years to offset against
its future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets relating to
unutilised tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had estimated unused tax losses of approximately
RMB19,621,000 (2018: RMB6,113,000) and approximately
of HK$10,492,000 (2018: HK$10,334,000) available for
offset against future profits in the PRC and Hong Kong
respectively. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profits stream. The tax losses arising from the
PRC operations will expire in five years after the relevant
accounting year end. The tax losses arising from other
operations do not expire under current tax legislation in
the relevant tax jurisdiction.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

RIBHBDERROAR - M ERAE
BRFENEEEAROERTOEH -
BRI AR AH AR ENEEN AR
E - RerRAESERARRTE
MAEZFRERAEEESH AR
FEWHR o

RERE IR - A& B A K 8
LEBHRR NG REBH
HEED A ARE19,621,0007T
(20184 : AR#¥6,113,0007T) &4
10,492,000 7T (20184 : 10,334,000
HBIT) o AREATERIARICE RS » )
KA AREEERERELEHEE
E-hEXBEEANTBEEERE
et hFEm o BHEMER
EENTBEERIEEBRHIEREE
EEORITFETEER
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42. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 42.

The Group maintains various retirement schemes for its
employees. The retirement scheme for employees of the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries is a mandatory central
pension scheme organised by the PRC government, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the
Group. Contributions made are based on a percentage of
the eligible employees’ salaries and charged as expenses
when the employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contribution. The employer contributions vest fully
once they are made. The Group operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in fund under the control of
trustees. The Company contributes 5% (2018: 5%)
of relevant payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 (2018:
HK$1,500) per month, to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, in which contribution is matched by employees.

BFEFEER

AEEBAHEREEXR I TRMENR
B AR REFEWB AR AERE
8 28— 18/ BT A A 2 o8 51
FOGRIRSEE - ZRTEIZEERA
EBEZEESHATNR - BRIDIEEE
KEEFM B ETE WNMEE
RHSHZEEHAZ REEIERZ
Nk - BEHR—BEL  BF25HE
BFTE - AEBAEERIHNAERE
BRUBESE - AENEETE
R—ERZAAEGNES  BAE
EEESFAEE - ARRHEBYA
BAYRBEEEREBRT AR
5% (20184F : 5% )fEHHR - LR A
1,500/ 7T (20184 : 1,500/87T) °

43.  OPERATING LEASE 43. BEHSK
The Group as lessee FEREESAEAN
2018
RMB’000
ARETTT
Minimum lease payments paid under FARBLEHENNREEENT
operating leases during the year 352

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

AREBRETAIHHEEHER T
B H 2 RSB RN THEAGEIT

2018
RMB’000
ARBTT

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

204
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44.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 4. BEEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the RIREEIR - AREE A T EAHRIE
following capital commitments:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
UN: & i ARETT

Capital expenditure contracted for but not AR~ 5 EIEH D FTL1E 4

provided in the consolidated financial RINRE B TSR NS
statements in respect of: MWERRX -
(i) Capital contribution to Zhong De () MRREWREE

Logistics (Note 37(a) (K15#37(a)) - 5,000
(i) Capital contribution to (i) ERBEIEE

Shenhe Chuangli (Note 46) (Htzta6) 500 200,000
(iiiy Acquisition of Properties | (i) UeBEME

(Note 25(a)) (Hist25(a)) 5,700 12,800
(iv) Acquisition of Properties Il (iv) W

(Note 25(b)) (K1zE25(0b)) - 13,264
(v) Acquisition of San He Jing Jiao (v) UeBE = a8

(Note 26(a)) (Hizt26(a)) 211,000 -
(vi) Acquisition of Target Companies (vi) WEEBZEAA

(Note 26(b)) (Ktat26(b)) 15,000 -
(vii) Capital contribution to Chaozhou (Vi) FIEINEREE

Jiafu (Note 46) (Kt5ta6) 5,850 -
(viii) Capital contribution to S®JI;EE (viii) FRYIEA BRIRE

BRI E#RAM AT (Note 46) BERARRTEE

(Hit46) 1,000 -

239,050 231,064
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45.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

206

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, the identified related parties which have
transactions with the Group were as follows:

Name of the Company

it £-1

Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited

PEEEEEARAT

Shishi Shen Guo Tou
AR ER

Beijing Luchuang Future
Technology Company Limited
AR DEIRKEHRAR AT

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, the Group entered into the following

transaction with related party:

Name of related party

MELER

45,

RELXS

HZE2019%F X 20184 12 A 31
BIEFE  BEAEBEETRS
MEBIER T

Relationships with the Company

HEEREa B

A non-controlling interest of the Group

AR EIFEAR

An associate of the Group

i SE /NG

A shareholder of the Group

AEBERIR

Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited

hEEEREARRAT]

Management fee expense
ERBRX

The Directors are of the opinion that the above

transactions were negotiated on a normal

commercial terms and conditions that would be

available to third party.

#H E2019%F 20184 12 A 31
BIEFE  AEFEEREEH#E
TATRS

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBTT
203 1,315

EERR - LR ZIEE=
77 S Y IEF B R AR M
HEER -
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45, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45, BEAXS(E)
(a) (Continued) (a) (%)
At the end of the reporting period, the balances of RIBEHAKR » BE &A1
related parties are as follows: T
2019 2018
Name of related party RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE T A AR®TT ARET T
Amount due from an associate FEU—EHs & A R FIE
— Shishi Shen Guo Tou (Note b) —ARRBE (Hatb) - 1,676
Amount due to a non-controlling e — 2 IEIE R
interest ES
— Chung Hwa Finance Holdings —HEFEEE
Limited (Note a) BRAT(Htita) (2,625) (2,061)
Amount due to a shareholder FER — B AR FRIA
— Beijing Lichuang Future Technology ~ — 4L I &IR R RHE
Company Limited (Note b) BRAT(Hatb) (5.219) (1,540)
Notes: et -
a. The above balance is trade in nature, unsecured, a. L& AESHHE U A
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. EIKIR - B RARE K
BiE -
b. The above balance is non-trade in nature, unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. b. FHESRRFESEE A
BEEE - 28 RBERER
P EE -
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FETEABTH

The key management comprises all the Directors,
chief executive officer and supervisors, details of
their remuneration are disclosed in Note 14 to the

TZEEANEEEERES
TBRENES  KE2H M
BN A M IRAR M 143

consolidated financial statements. = o

The remuneration of Directors and key executives BEENTETRASHEHD
are determined by the remuneration committee R A A XBRTRIE R
having regard to the performance of individuals ES@ET -

and market trends.
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. MWELTEE
General information of subsidiaries EHMELATN—EE
Particulars of the subsidiaries held by the Company at 31 2019 2018412 A31 B AR T
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: BHM B AT BN T
Place of
incorporation/ Class of Proportion of
registration/  shares Paid-up/issued Proportion ownership interest voting power held Principal
Narme of subsidiaries operation  held registered capital held by the Company by the Company  activities
e/
B/ B#R/
KBLARER BRMY  FRRGER  Bf0ERES FATRERERERLN FATRERRRLA TERR
Directly Indirectly
B 4
R 20 [P m 018
Zhongfang Chaozhou** PRC /A RMB200,000,000  100%  100% - - 100%  100% Property
HEAN e TER  ARE200000000T development
ETES
Chaozhou Construction and PRC NA RMB1,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100%  Notcommence
Development Company Limited** & AER ARE1,000,0007 business
BmhEERREERAT gz
Beiing Shen Shang** PRC /A RMB1,000000  100%  100% - - 100%  100% Investment
FREE E TR NBE1,000,0007C holding
REBR
Shenzhen Shen Wu Investment & ~ PRC /A RMB1,000,000  100%  100% - - 100%  100%  Inactive
Development Company Limitec®* 2 TR AEH1,0000007 gheg
MImtnEEsRERAA
Shenzhen Shen He* (Note v PRC NA RMB1,000,000 - 100% - - - 100%  Inactive
AR E i ARE1,0000007C gEex
Shenzhen Shen Shang Chuang PRC NA RMB1,000,000 - - - 100% - 100%  Inactive
Jian Investment Development NER ABRH1,0000007 il
Company Limited** (Note v)
M EERREYR
BRAR W)
Shenzhen Juxi Chuangjian PRC /A R\B1,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Inactive
Investment and Development 1 ol AEH1,000,0007 BhEg
Company Limited**

RITRBRAEERARLY
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46.  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. MELATE(E)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) ERMEATN—BEE (&)
Place of
incorporation/ ~ Class of Proportion of
registration/  shares Paid-up/issued Proportion ownership interest voting power held Principal
Name of subsidiaries operation ~ held registered capital held by the Company by the Company  activities
et/
B/ B#R/
WELFER ERMY  FRROER  BO0ERES FATRERERERLA FOTRRRRERS ERH
Directly Indirectly
B 3
m 2018“ 2018 018
Shenzhen Shenxi Chuangjian PRC /A R\B1,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Investment
Investment and Development R i ARE1,000,0007T holding
Company Limited** REH
M BERRESR
BRAE
Shenhe** PRC /A 2019 100%  100% - - 100%  100% Inactive
(Note i & Note vi E TR RMB300,000 gELz
KRBT Wik iti) 2018
RMB200,000,000
20195 :
ARE500,0007T
20185
AR200000,0007C
Shenzhen Zhonghe** (Note v) PRC /A R\B1,000,000 - - - 100% - 100%  Investment
MIFa" W) A TR NEE1,000,0007C holding
RER
Shenzhen Tonghe** PRC NA RIMB10,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Investment
HIEs i TR ARE1,0000007 holding
RER
Tai He Chuang Jian** PRC NA RMB1,000000  100% - - 100% 100% 100%  Investment
RaEE E TR ARE1,0000007C holding
REBR

2019 EEARBRROERLE 209



— /- Sy ol SN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

46.  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. MELATE(E)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) ERMEATN—BEE (&)
Place of
incorporation/ ~ Class of Proportion of
registration/  shares Paid-up/issued Proportion ownership interest voting power held Principal
Name of subsidiaries operation ~ held registered capital held by the Company by the Company  activities
et/
B/ B#R/
WELFER ERMY  FRROER  BO0ERES LN FOTRRRRERS ERH
Directly Indirectly
B 3
m 018 08 018
Shenzhen Ju Sheng Chuang Jian ~ PRC /A RMB1,000,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Investment
Investment and Development R i ARE1,000,0007T holding
Limited** REZR

RIMERARRRYRERDT

Guangdong Xinmao** PRC /A RIB3,800,000 - - 90% 90% 90% 90%  Not commence
EREN hE Bl AE8,8000007 business
gk
Chaazhou Jiafu** (Note i PRC VA RMB10,000,000 - - 90% 90% 90% 90%  Not commence
AMER ) E TEE AF10,000,0007 business
ERex
Kingma Overseas HK Ordinary 15$20,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Securities
2EA Bk Lk 20,000%7 investment
E5RE
Chung Hwa Finance HK Ordinary HK$50,000,000 - - 55% 55% 55% 5% Credit business
PEEE Bk Lak 50,000,007 FEEH
Sichuang Overseas (Note v) HK Ordinary S520,000 - - - 100% - 100%  Securiies
SEENIEY) 3 LAk 2000057 investment
E5RE
Kingma International Ltd. BvI Ordinary US§1 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Mot commence
SEERERLT AERIHE  EAER E30 business
Ehax
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46.  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. MEBLATIEE &)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) EENBATIN—RBEE(Z)
Place of
incorporation/ ~ Class of Proportion of
registration/  shares Paid-up/issued Proportion ownership interest voting power held Principal
Name of subsidiaries operation ~ held registered capital held by the Company by the Company  activities
et/
B/ B#R/
KELARER ERME  FREORM  BWERRE KLRRRAARRGLA FOTRRRRERS ERH
Directly Indirectly
B 3
m 018 m o RN ws
Sichuang International Ltd. (Notey) - HK Ordinary US§1 - - - 100% - 100% Not commence
BREBERAT M) Bk Lk 15T business
gEiz
Modern Key International Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$1,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Mot commence
REERRRAA ZBREE  ERR 1000570 business
fEe%
World Ease Investment Limited BVI Ordinary HKS1,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100%  Notcommence
ERRARRLA ABRaEE  EAk 1000570 business
ggex
Beiing Yufeng™* (Note i) PRC N/A RMB100,000 - - 100% - 100% - Property
SROR Hist) e iR ARE100,0007 investment
nERE
SHHH Development** PRC /A RMB12,000,000 - - 66.67% - 66.67% - Domestic logistics,
(Notes v and v i iR AEE12,000,0007 freight forwarding,
RICBEEE i) warehousing
and distribution
services

AR 58
R 2R

PR
HITRAEERERRERLAT PR N/A RIB,000,000 = - 100% - 100% - Not commence
(Note & Note i hE iR ARHE1,0000007 business
FIMAAELRELE FE -

BRAR Wik

* English name for identification purpose only * B AEERER
# Wholly domestic owned enterprise ! HRZEER
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46.

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

All of the above subsidiaries are limited company which
the places of operations are the same as their places of
incorporation.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period or at any
time during the year.

Notes:

(i) It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31
December 2019.

(ii) The registered capital has not been paid up at 31 December
2019.

(iii) The registered capital has not been fully paid up at 31
December 2018.

(iv) It was acquired of during the year ended 31 December 2019.
Details are disclosed in Notes 37(a) and 37(b).

(v) It was disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2019.
Details are disclosed in Note 38(a).

(vi) SHHH Development is expected to be sold within twelve
months after the year ended December 2019, and has been
classified as assets held for sale (Note 24) and are presented
separately in the statement of financial position.

(vii) During the year end 31 December 2019, due to the
implementation of the Group's overall development strategy,
the Board approved the resolution regarding the reduction
of the registered capital of Shenzhen Shenhe Chuangli
Investment and Development Company Limited from
RMB200,000,000 to RMB500,000.

MEATIERE(E)
FRMEARN—REH(E)

A LRMBARBRERAR - &
SR EFEMA AR

BEMBARETENNREHRK
RERERFRERERENEFES o

Hiet -

(i) REZE2019F12 A31 B I FE#HT
KL -

(i) M2019512 8318 » EMELRHE K
R -

(iii) M2018F 128318 » MELRHE K
EEBIR -

(iv) HEREE2019F12A318IEFE
Ui - FHBEEMAMIEE37(@) KR37(Db) ©

(v) HEEREZE2019F12A318 IS E
& o FEFEANHIEIS()

(vi) ARG R E R REE20195
1ZALFEERT_EAREL I
ERFEHENEE(ME24) - IR0
MBRRREBZ2 -

(vii) HE2019F12A31BIEFE » R
AEBEHREEERERE  E294
HEERARDRYTMAGEINIREER
ERABNEFMERMNRZSR - B
i A R#200,000,000 TR E A R
500,0007T °
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. MEBLABHEWBEZ)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEXEZERIESNEDIHEL
material non-controlling interests Gk
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned TREY ANEBE SR B AFEITRREZS
subsidiary of the Group that have material non-controlling HISER BB A TIMEES -
interests:
Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interest and
and principal voting rights held by (Loss) profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
ERAIBER FARRRRAERAREGR
WELFRHR TEERME Bl B AREHARMGN (BR)EH RitFARES

2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTE QEUNGSVE ARRTT NS SW

Chung Hwa Finance HK 45% 45% (2.823) 154 12,231 23,760
hERE (3
Guangdong Xinmao PRC 10% 10% (25) - 975 1,000
BRER hE
Chaozhou Jiafu PRC 10% 10% (24) - 413 437
BER i
SHHH Development (Note) PRC 33.33% - (2519 - 74,969 -
MlsBERR W) il
(5,391) 154 88,588 25,197
Note:  On 4 July 2019, Shenzhen Shenxi entered into the disposal Bzt : 20197848 @ FYLEEE HI
agreement with the Purchaser Il, whereby the Purchase Il has SN HEWE B BHIBEG
conditionally agreed to purchase and Shenzhen Shenxi has REEEMZRILEAFEFRZE D
conditionally agreed to sell 66.67% equity interests and the ERYEIBIBEE66.67% %1 K%
shareholder’s loan of SHHH Development at the consideration HEZ - REA AR 173,000,000
of RMB173,000,000. Details of the assets and liabilities T BEEFYEEBEREEEEENR
attributable to SHHH Development are disclosed on Note 24. BENFBERH 24 E -

2019 EEARBRROERLE 213



— /- By ol SSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fae)

Bt 75 3R AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

46.

214

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.

Chung Hwa Finance

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company (Note a)

Non-controlling interest of
Chung Hwa Finance (Note b)

Notes: Biat -
(a) On 2 December 2019, Chung Hwa Finance declared a (a)
dividend with approximately RMB20,153,000 (equivalent to
HKD22,867,252) to its shareholders.
(b) As per the capital contribution agreement, non-controlling (b)

BTN (E)

HREXFRERESHFZEMEL
FIR9EE (2)

B AN S B G R S AR 2R 0 B
BRBINMBERBEESITX - A
THBER RS R B AR EE

BIHEEE -
REEET
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARETIT
MEEE 375,495 383,181
IEREEE - 11
mEaE (337,114) (319,195)
B N=R - -
RAREE AEMh R
(Hiita) 26,150 40,237
PRI E IR
(Hiatb) 12,231 23,760

interest will not share the pre-acquisition reserve of

approximately RMB11,198,000.

R2019F12 A28 » REEERER
REIRME B4 AR 20,153,000 7T
(FHE722,867,252/87T) °

BIFEFE W - IEERER ST E D
ik W 5% AT 6 #8549 AR ¥ 11,198,000
7TE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

46.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Chung Hwa Finance (Continued)

Revenue

Expenses

(Loss) profit for the year

(Loss) profit attributable to
owners of the Company

(Loss) profit attributable to the
non-controlling interest of
Chung Hwa Finance

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the Company
Other comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling
interest of Chung Hwa Finance

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive (expense) income
attributable to owners of the Company

Total comprehensive (expense) income
attributable to the non-controlling
interest of Chung Hwa Finance

Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

Yzs

F

FRUER)EM

ZANSIE 2PN
ikl

hEE IR G
(B4R ) )

FR(ER)E

ZA/NCIE 2PN
HAth 2 WA

hEE IR SR
HAth 2 WA

FREMEEEA

RRABHEAANEIEEE
GEILON: L

REEE TSR R
2 (RO WAL

FAZE (RIS WARLER

MEBATRFE(Z)

BEEXHERRESNEDZEMEL
FIA9R¥S (2)
HREEE(E)

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TTT AREFIT

4,537 10,188

(10,809) (9,846)

(6,272) 342

(3,449) 188

(2,823) 154

(6,272) 342

446 1,915

364 1,568

810 3,483

(3,003) 2,103

(2,459) 1,722

(5,462) 3,825
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. MEATEE &)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEXERBRESHIEZEHEL
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BINHE(E)
Chung Hwa Finance (Continued) REEE(E)
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest ENFHREEE
of Chung Hwa Finance SRR E R RIAR B (9,070) -
Net cash (outflow) inflow from e EE RS ORE)RA
operating activities HRR (678) 71,872
Net cash outflow from REFESHRE M
investing activities HER = (77,583)
Net cash inflow from BB EHIR S MAFRE
financing activities 345 1,609
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be(nd)mAFE (333) (4,102)
SHHH Development FYEEERE
2019
RMB’'000
AR®TT
Current assets MENEE 8,147
Non-current assets ERBEE 231,307
Current liabilities mENAE (14,525)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE -
Equity attributable to owners of RARER ANEIE RS
the Company 149,960
Non-controlling interests of Y& B R IFIEMRAR R
SHHH Development 74,969
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. MEATEE &)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEXIEERESHNIERZEHEL
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BN (&)

SHHH Development (Continued) FNEEBRRE(Z)
2019
RMB’000
AR®TT
Revenue A =
Expenses fisZ (7,558)

Loss and total comprehensive expense for  BAAETE K & E S 424%8

the period __ (2,558
Loss and total comprehensive expense KNBHEE AEEEIB R 2 HEF 2%

attributable to owners of the Company (5,039)
Loss and total comprehensive expense TG IBIEEE R I RRAR R

attributable to the non-controlling EhEE N EER B

interests of SHHH Development (2,519)

Loss and total comprehensive expense for  ERNEE & 2 E B X 458
the period (7,558)

2019
RMB’000

AR®TT

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 215 F3EHE AR AR EE 2 P& 2, =
Net cash outflow from operating activities — #&& 72 IR &R H F5E (76)
Net cash inflow from investing activities KREEKZ RS RAFE =
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEEB 2 IRERANFE =

Net cash outflow RERH T (76)

2019 EEARBRROERLE 217



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fae)

Bt 75 3R AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

47.

218

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 47.

OF THE COMPANY

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a subsidiary
Tax liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
REBRRIRE
BEEHBEE

mENRE

& LA B 8 2 ) ROR
HAtb FE R
RITRBEIRE

RENRR
HADRE (50 N B B
J& 5 — R /B8 2 B 5K0R
HBEAE

RENEERE
RERE

L E-3 ]
EEEN

et

HEo

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 29 May

2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Jing Ming

SREEA

Director

EFE

Annual Report 2019

F 2 F KR B o 0l &

2019 2018

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hrst AR®TFT ARBFTT
248,698 443,698

31 31

248,729 443,729

99,698 436,200

33,066 15,061

649 142

133,413 451,403

34,950 32,065

245,100 378,310

4,799 4,799

284,849 415,174

(151,436) 36,229

97,293 479,958

1,469,376 1,469,376
(@) (1,372,083) (989,418)
97,293 479,958

ARABWBFBRIE  KEFER
2020F5 A9 Az E IR RS - W

HINIESARESE

Leng Xiao Rong
B
Director

EFE

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 47.
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

FAFIMBIRRR FEME(E)

Notes: Bis -
(@) Reserves (a) &
Statutory
Share surplus Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
EERR
BinidfR LTS RitER et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2018 H2018F1A1H 320,476 103,215 (894,942) (471,251)
Loss for the year, representing total FRER  REFER
comprehensive expense for the year FHERZ e - - (518,167) (518,167)
At 31 December 2018 and 72018124318 &
1 January 2019 20191 A1H 320,476 103,215 (1,413,109) (989,418)
Loss for the year, representing total FREE RREAR
comprehensive expense for the year 2HEAY A% - - (382,665) (382,665)
At 31 December 2019 72019%12A31H 320,476 103,215 (1,795,774) (1,372,083)
48. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD 48. REHRER
(i) Completion of the acquisition of Target (i) SEREERAT
Companies
As disclosed in Note26(b), the acquisition of the AN TE26(b)FT iR ER - $22020
Target Companies has been completed on 7 April FA4RA7THE TR KEEZEA
2020. Al e
(i)  Extension of loans to Guangzhou Leyou (i) FEEMNEFERIT]

As disclosed in Note 29(a), the loan due
from Guangzhou Leyou was approximately
RMB 15,000,000 (before provision for credit loss) as
at 31 December 2019. Guangzhou Leyou settled
RMB 1,000,000 on 28 April 2020. On 20 May 2020,
the Company and Guangzhou Leyou entered into
a supplementary agreement, pursuant to which the
Company extends the loan period for the remaining
principal of RMB14,000,000 to Guangzhou Leyou.
The loan bear interest rate at 6% per annum with a
term of 12 months to 6 March 2021.

2019 EBELAARERAOERLAA

BB EE29(a)FT i ER - 722019
F12A318 - EREMN G
B4 A AR ¥ 15,000,000
TT(REEREEER) - BEM
L TA2020F4 A28 HIBE A
R #1,000,0007T ° 7420204
58208 -+ KA R EE N 857
R - B AR
EREMNERHTASARKE
14,000,000 TR EHE - B3
BEMEE%TE - FH A2
B A EZE2021F386H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

48.

49.

220

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD 48.

(Continued)

(iii)  Extension of the acquisition of Properties |

As disclosed in Note 25(a), the acquisition of
Properties has yet to be completed as at 31
December 2019. On 20 May 2020, Beijing Shen
Shang and Vendor | entered into a supplementary
agreement, pursuant to which Beijing Shen Shang
agreed to extend the completion date of the
acquisition of Properties | due to the outbreak
of coronavirus. The acquisition is expected to be
completed on or before 30 June 2021.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 49,

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Groups’ liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

(iii)

BEM&ER(E)

SERAU R R

A FE25() T EE - $22019
F12A31H - WEDEHK
SRk » R202095820H -+ 4t
FURMEEE HIF L E RS
Bt - mREETERRSE
&t EmR B ED
IR TER B o B R I5 TR B
202196 A30H K Z BITEAK ©

EREEHELE A RHHE

TREJIAEERAREEHELAR
MEH(BRASIIFRSEY)F
5 FARMERBELRERBENKA
BERAEBGEARERERDER
RMETABRERENRERE -

activities.
Amount
Lease duetoa
liabilities shareholder
ER—3
HEBE &R A
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFIT ARETIT
At 1 January 2018 7R2018%F1H1H - -
Changes from cash flow BeREws
Advance from a shareholder FEUR — B AR FIE - 1,540
At 31 December 2018 M20185F12H31H - 1,540
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 16 J& FH & S B 15 2R 45 £ R
F165R 2R 1,904 -
As at 1 January 2019 (restated) M20195F1 A1 (K& E5) 1,904 1,540
Non-cash changes R EEE
Finance cost BhE RN 53 -
Changes from cash flow BeREws
Advance from a shareholder FEUR — B AR FIE - 3,679
Repayment of leases BEME (939) -
At 31 December 2019 720195 12A31H 1,018 5,219

Annual Report 2019  Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



P —— e ——— /=
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31AILFE

50. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 50. EFEIHFHRETH

Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE2019F12A31HILFE

(i) Part of the consideration for acquisition of the (i) UL BB B A BB sE26(b))
Subsidiaries Il (Note 26(b)) of RMB56,000,000 have B B A R #56,000,000
been settled by the outstanding loan and interest TTAHKEERERERLTE
receivables of RMB56,000,000. AR#56,000,0007TH 85

(ii) Part of the consideration for the acquisition of San (ii) FEUEE = A R AB (B 5E26(a)) &Y
He Jing Jiao (Note 26(a)) of RMB110,000,000 have 5 R E A K% 110,000,000
been settled by the deposit paid for acquisition of TCARL U BB W 2N (BT 5E25(b))
Properties Il (Note 25(b)). P MTRIET 24 8H -

(iii) Other receivables of approximately RMB8,711,000 (iif) H bl sk 4 AR #8,711,000
have been off-set by payable for construction cost TLUATL IR A = A A AN FE AT
of office. FRIAHIE o

51. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 51. BB

During the year ended 31 December 2019, for enhancing HZE2019F 128318 IHEE - AIEF

the relevance of the presentation of the consolidated 25 A TESRENA-EY - D E5

financial statements, reclassifications have been made to M EESAMERE 2NN ET

certain comparative figures presented in the consolidated L g DUZEBRERE 258 A

financial statements in respect of the prior year to achieve o A UTABRE T EE

comparability with the current year’s presentation. As B Y {EET R A ERMEAMNE - AF

a result, the following line items regarding comparative ARFEEMHLZ7

figures have been amended and adjusted, together
with the related notes to conform to the current year’s

presentations:
ET
reported Reclassification ~ As restated
Lnzien ENSR 7l
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TT AR®TT AR®TT
Impairment losses on other receivables Hi N HRER R (124) 124 -
Impairment losses on loan and interest receivables [EWET R F S
REBR (1,826) 1,826 -
Impairment losses on amount due from an associate et — A& A FIUIEL)
HEER (5.679) 5,679 -
Financial guarantee IBHER (49,787) 49,787 =
Impairment loss under expected BHEEBRER T
credit loss model, net of reversal REBE  NRED - (57,416) (57,416)

2019 EEARBRROERLE 221



Financial Summary

MBRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Revenue

Sales taxes on turnover
Cost of sales

Other income

Impairment losses under expected
credit loss model, net of reversal

Impairment losses on goodwill

Impairment losses recognised

in respect of interest
in an associate
Finance cost
Exchange gain (loss), net

Loss on disposal of convertible

instruments designed as

financial asset as fair value

through profit or loss

Fair value change on convertible

instruments designed as

financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss

Loss from charge in fair value of
held-for-trading investments

Loss from change in fair value of
fixed assets through profit or loss

Loss from changes in fair value of

investment properties
Gain (loss) on disposal of
subsidiaries, net
Loss on disposal of

held-for trading investments

Administrative and other
operating expenses

Share of (loss) profit of an associate

(Loss) profit before tax
Income tax expenses

(Loss) profit for the year
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) profit attributable to
owners of the Company

222

WA

BEBEHEN

HERA

HitA

BHEEBREL T
RERR - NRED

BB ZRERR

PR — RS ARl
R HERE

BT

& 5 Mk (6518 ) FAR

HERTEAROAEE
STARSRMEEE
HAARTANER

BERBRDABEINA
REMM AR
RRT AN AR
EEZD

HFEEREZ
DA EERYNER

SAARGMETEEAR
EEZ2PNER

REWEDAEE

HEME A Rk (B 18)
ik

HEREEEREN
BR

TR EMEERX

JEft—FRB = AR
(BR)&H

FRIRA (518 &%
FIEBiRx

FR(HR)EH
FRERES

e VNG 2N
(4R &%

Foygi k=t
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
I Sl ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
26,560 80,091 15,499 108,370 311,400
= - - (468) (765)
(21,330) (64,966) (2,066) (78,707) (293,945)
1,316 257 3,013 538 2,077
(77,614) (57,416) - - _
= (1,320) (24,459) (20,000) -
= - - (3,561) -
(53) - - (51) (531)
90 1,532 (9,861) 16,898 11,578
= - - (1,141) -
= - - - 1,084
- - (42) (30) (7,917)
= (30) - - -
(730) - - - _
1,072 46 (2,003) - -
= - - (993) (9,377)
(14,047) (9,536) (8,533) (8,864) (9,880)
(8,548) (85,940) 738 41 -
(93,284) (137,282) (27,714) 12,032 3,724
(1,156) (1,779) (1,877) (5,881) (6,497)
(94,440) (139,061) (29,591) 6,151 2,773)
(5,391) 154 3,241 3,802 -
(89,049) (139,215) (32,832) 2,349 2,773)
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Financial Summary

HRERE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION GAaMBRAE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
NS5l ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Non-current assets ETHEE 451,327 557,519 617,871 516,734 334,997
Current assets MENBE 545,084 629,473 524,968 755,668 588,349
Current liabilities mBEE 188,634 (297,059)  (116,228)  (151,734)  (134,624)
Net current assets FEEESE 356,450 332,414 408,740 603,934 453,725
Total assets less current REERRDAR
liabilities 80,777 889,933 1,026,611 1,120,668 788,722
Non-current liability FnBEE 264 - - _ _
Net assets EEYE 807,513 889,933 1,026,611 1,120,688 453,725
Capital and reserves: BEARRGRME -
Share capital ez 1,469,376 1,469,376 1,469,376 1,469,376 1,224,480
Reserves & (750,451)  (604,640)  (468,260) (433,975  (435,758)
Equity attributable ZAN/NGIEZ DN
to owners of FEhHER
the Company 718,925 864,736 1,001,116 1,035,401 788,722
Non-controlling interests FE R 88,588 25,197 25,495 85,267 -
Total equity B 807,513 889,933 1,026,611 1,120,668 788,722
20194% BEARRREROERAT 223



Particulars of the Investment Property

REMEFE

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT BERSHE

Location Type Lease term

HhRE L Eiib

Shop of No. 15 Guang An Road, Commercial Medium-term lease

No. 138 He Sha Road,

Da Tan Sha Island Li Wan District,
Guangzhou City,

Guangzhou Province,

The PRC

H EES FRERFA LY
ERAE

BT

BEBABADE

TR 13858

B SR
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Glossary

ERAAE

In this report (other than the Financial Statements), unless the RARE(HBERERBIN)  BXERBAH
context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have 1 A TAEAENUTRE -

the following respective meanings.

“2018 Corresponding Period”

[20184F [R5

“2019 Financial Year”

[2019F B BN F /% |

“Articles”
[ARIERE]

“Beijing Hua Xia Ding”
[EREES ]

“Beijing Lichuang Future”

[N BIRR
“Beijing Shen Shang”
[ s ]

“Beijing Zhong Tou”
[HERAFz ]

“Board”

=

“Chaozhou Jiafu”

[ ER

“Chaozhou Jinshan”

[N 1L ]

“Chung Hwa Finance”
[hEFE]
“"Company”

BN

“Director(s)”

==

for the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31A1LFE

for the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A3181LFE

The Articles of Association of the Company
RABIEBERARE

Beijing Hua Xia Ding Technology Company Limited*
IEREESMZARAR

Beijing Lichuang Future Technology Company Limited*

LR P EIRERIXBR AT

Beijing Shen Shang Investment & Consulting Company Limited*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
ERERREBABRAR  ARRIZENEBAR]

Beijing Zhong Tou Chuang Zhan Property Limited*
ERPREREXEFRAF

the board of Directors

=g

Chaozhou Jiafu Packaging Materials Company Limited*

BN EEREMHERAR

Chaozhou Jinshan Investment and Development Company Limited*

AN 2 IR EFREAR AR

Chung Hwa Finance Limited (formerly known as Newpont Finance Limited), a
licensed money lender in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance
PEFEERAF(FIBFREERRAR)  REGREAMEIDHEBFER
fBEA

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited*
S ARBERKRNHERAT

the directors of the Company

AABES
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Glossary

ERAAE

“Domestic Shares”
[RER

"Group”
[R&EE

“Guangdong Xinmao”

[BREX]

“Guangzhou Leyou”

[ EEN |

“Hai Yue Real Estate”

[ EREHE ]

"Hong Kong”
(&%

“Hou Feng Trading”
[EE2E 5]

“H-Shares”

[HAx

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

226

domestic shares with a nominal value of RMB1 each in the share capital of the
Company which are subscribed for in RMB
RARIRAFERABAREITTHRNER - LARERE

the Company and its subsidiaries

AN e NG

Guangdong Xinmao Biotechnology Company Limited*

BEREXEMRRARAQT]

Guangzhou Leyou Internet Technology Co., Ltd*
N EEH B Bt R R B IR A A

Guangzhou Hai Yue Real Estate Development Company Limited*

BN ERMERRER DA

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
I A RAFMBEEBRFRTTHE

Hou Feng Trading Company Limited*
ATEEESERAF

overseas listed foreign ordinary share(s) of the Company with a nominal value of
RMB1 each, all of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars
RABEREEARBITTZIFEIIN ETHINE EBAR - 2 AR AT R B & A
BTRABRER

the independent third party(ies) who is/are, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry,
independent of the Company and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules)

RER—I6BERE  RESFA - SEBREE  BURKAARREBEA
T(EBER EHRADNBIE=
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Glossary

ERAAE

“Kingma Overseas”

[& K&

“Listing Rules”

[ LR A

“Model Code”
[EE=ra]

"PRC"
[FREL]
“RMB”
[ARE]

“San He Jing Jiao”
[ =35

"SFO”
[ &% MR 5RA )

“Share”

[RAn

“Shareholders”

[RER ]

“Shen Wu Investment”

i |

“Shenzhen Shen He”

[ARYIERN ]

“Shenzhen Shen Jian”

[ARINLEE ]

e e e

Kingma Overseas Investment Development Corporate Limited
eHEIMTERRBR LA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B ArES EMARA

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

ERETABEZETERRZHRESTA

the People’s Republic of China
hEE AR A

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
PENETEE® AR

San He Jing Jiao Property Development Company Limited*

A RREHERERRAT

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the law of Hong Kong)
BH MBI (FREPISTIE)

H-Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)
HA% & & R

holders of the H-Shares and Domestic Shares
HEE R AERFEEA

Shenzhen Shen Wu Investment & Development Company Limited*, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

FITLYREERERDF]  ARR2EWMB AR

Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian Investment Development Company Limited*

FRITLMAEREERERAT

Shenzhen Shen Jian Investment Development Company Limited*, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company
RYTLRREEREGR AR ARG ENBAR

201943 BEAHBERBERLQR 227
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Glossary

ERAAE

“Shenzhen Shenxi”
[RYIEE ]
“Shenzhen Tong He"”
RYIRE

“Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long”
RIIE R RE |

“SHHH Development”
DRy &g R |

“Shishi Shen Guo Tou”
[ A RmZRE

"SNP Investment”

[ARYIFFFABIRE |

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 32 P

“Tai He Chuang Jian”
ES=p-lk=al

“Zhongfang Chaozhou”
[ =8N

“Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan
Industrial Park Project”

[N SR TEERA

“Zhong De Logistics”
[

*  For identification purpose only

228

Shenzhen Shenxi Investment & Development Company Limited*, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

RYDAERABRARAT - AR A2 ENBAT

Shenzhen Tong He Chuangjian Investment Development Company Limited*, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

FIMRAEREEREREMRR  ARA2ENB AR

Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long Investment Company Limited*

RN EREERERRAT]

Shenzhen He Hui Huang Development Company Limited*
ATmEEEREAR AR

Shishi Shen Guo Tou Commercial Property Company Limited*, an associate of
the Company
AMABIREAEEBR AR - AAE 2B AT

Shenzhen Newpont Investment Group Limited*

RN ERE AR AT

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBMERSMERAR

Shenzhen Tai He Chuang Jian Investment Development Company Limited*, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
AN REGEEREZRAREELRF - AAFEEWEAF

Zhongfang Chaozhou Investment Development Company Limited*

RN ERBERR AR
a infrastructure construction project in Jing Nan Industrial Park, in Chaozhou
Rz FNE R T3 B ey B R b 2 ek A B

Shenzhen Zhong De Logistics Company Limited*
AR ERBRAF]

* EHES
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